25|

Entry 1 School Information and Cover Page
(New schools that were not open for instruction for
the 2018-19 school year are not required to complete

or submit an annual report this year).
Created: 07/05/2019 » Last updated: 11/01/2019

Please be advised that you will need to complete this cover page (including signatures) before all of the
other tasks assigned to you by your authorizer are visible on your task page. While completing this cover
page task, please ensure that you select the correct authorizer (as of June 30, 2019) or you may not be
assigned the correct tasks.

BASIC INFORMATION

a. SCHOOL NAME EVERGREEN CHARTER SCHOOL

(Select name from the drop down menu)

al. Popular School Name (No response)
(Optional)

b. CHARTER AUTHORIZER (As of Regents Authorized Charter School
June 30th, 2019)

Please select the correct authorizer as of
June 30, 2019 or you may not be
assigned the correct tasks.

c. DISTRICT / CSD OF LOCATION Hempstead

d. DATE OF INITIAL CHARTER 01/2009
e. DATE FIRST OPENED FOR 09/2009
INSTRUCTION

1/8



f. APPROVED SCHOOL MISSION (Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized
schools only)

MISSION STATEMENT

The mission of Evergreen Charter School (ECS) is to nurture the intellectual, physical and social
development of children, grades K 8, through a comprehensive program that promotes academic
excellence and prepares its students for success in school and in life. Evergreen promotes respect for
self, respect for others, and respect for the environment.

g. KEY DESIGN ELEMENTS (Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized schools
only)

KEY DESIGN ELEMENTS (Brief heading followed by a description of each Key Design Elements
(KDE). KDEs are those general aspects of the school that are innovative or unique to the school’s
mission and goals, are core to the school’s overall design, and are critical to its success. The
design elements may include a specific content area focus; unique student populations to be
served; specific educational programs or pedagogical approaches; unique calendar, schedule, or
configurations of students and staff; and/or innovative organizational structures and systems.

Variable 1 ECS ensures that students of varied cultural and social
backgrounds and different ability levels achieve their
academic potential while developing a positive sense of self
worth.

Variable 2 ECS fosters individual growth and development through the
implementation of a challenging and comprehensive
educational program.

Variable 3 Instruction in a second language, i.e. Spanish, and
integration of content regarding Hispanic history and culture
in part of ECS' curriculum.

Variable 4 ECS features an enriched arts and physical education
program and fosters healthy life choices within a child
centered school environment that places a premium on
environmental education and conservation.

Variable 5 ECS students possess a strong academic foundation
sufficient to be successful at every subsequent level of
education through college and beyond.

Variable 6 (No response)
Variable 7 (No response)
Variable 8 (No response)
Variable 9 (No response)
Variable 10 (No response)

2/8



Need additional space for No

variables

h. SCHOOL WEB ADDRESS (URL) www.ecsli.org

i. TOTAL MAX APPROVED 525
ENROLLMENT FOR THE 2018-19
SCHOOL YEAR (exclude Pre-K

program enrollment)

j- TOTAL STUDENT ENROLLMENT 520
ON JUNE 30, 2019 (exclude Pre-K

program enrollment)

k. GRADES SERVED IN SCHOOL YEAR 2018-19 (does not include Pre-K program
students)
Check all that apply

Grades Served K,1,2,63,4,5,6,7,8

11. DOES THE SCHOOL CONTRACT No
WITH A CHARTER OR

EDUCATIONAL MANAGEMENT
ORGANIZATION?

FACILITIES INFORMATION

m. FACILITIES
Will the school maintain or operate multiple sites in 2019-207?

Yes, 2 sites

School Site 1 (Primary)
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ml. SCHOOL SITES
Please provide information on Site 1 for the upcoming school year.

Site 1

mla. Please provide the contact information for Site 1.

School
Leader

Operati
onal
Leader

Complia
nce
Contact

Complai
nt
Contact

DASA
Coordin
ator

Phone
Contact
for After
Hours
Emerge
ncies

m1lb. Is site 1 in public (co-

Physical Address

605 Peninsula
Blvd.
Hempstead, NY
11550

Name

Karen Leeper

Karen Leeper

Karen Leeper

Karen Leeper

Karen Leeper

Karen Leeper

Phone Number District/CSD

516 292 2060 Hempstead

Work Phone

Private Space

located) space or in private

space?

4/8

Alternate Phone

Grades to be
Served at Site
for coming year
(K5,609, etc.)

K4

Receives Rental
Assistance for
Which Grades (If
yes, enter the
appropriate
grades. If no,
enter No).

N/A

Email Address



IF LOCATED IN PRIVATE SPACE IN NYC OR IN DISTRICTS OUTSIDE NYC

mld. Upload a current Certificate of Occupancy (COO) and the annual Fire Inspection

Report for school site 1 if located in private space in NYC or located outside of NYC .

Site 1 Certificate of Occupancy (COO)

https://nysed cso reports.fluidreview.com/resp/99611085/yFPTXS6fVy/

Site 1 Fire Inspection Report

https://nysed cso reports.fluidreview.com/resp/99611085/nBJtmagxAKU/

School Site 2

m2. SCHOOL SITES
Please provide information on Site 2 for the upcoming school year.

Site 2

Physical Address

120 Greenwich
St.

Hempstead, NY
11550

Phone Number

516 743 9850

District/CSD

Hempstead

5/8

Grades to be
Served at Site
for coming year
(K5,609, etc.)

58

Receives Rental
Assistance for
Which Grades (If
yes, enter the
appropriate
grades. If no,
enter No).

N/A



m2a. Please provide the contact information for Site 2.

School
Leader

Operati
onal
Leader

Complia
nce
Contact

Complai
nt
Contact

DASA
Coordin
ator

Phone
Contact
for After
Hours
Emerge
ncies

m2b. Is site 2 in public (co-

located) space or in private

space?

Name

Karen Leeper

Karen Leeper

Karen Leeper

Karen Leeper

Karen Leeper

Karen Leeper

Work Phone Alternate Phone Email Address

Private Space

IF LOCATED IN PRIVATE SPACE IN NYC OR IN DISTRICTS OUTSIDE NYC

m2d. Upload a current Certificate of Occupancy (COO) and the annual Fire Inspection

Report for school site 2 if located in private space in NYC or located outside of NYC .

Site 2 Certificate of Occupancy (COO)

https://nysed cso reports.fluidreview.com/resp/99611085/s65leHxILr/

Site 2 Fire Inspection Report

https://nysed cso reports.fluidreview.com/resp/99611085/bZoeZBX06f/

CHARTER REVISIONS DURING THE 2018-19 SCHOOL YEAR
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nl. Were there any revisions to Yes
the school’s charter during the
2018-19 school year? (Please

include approved or pending
material and non-material

charter revisions).

n2. Summary of Charter Revisions

Category (Select Best Specific Revision Date Approved by
Description) (150 word limit) BOT (if applicable)

Add two additional
classes per grade
Change in Maximum  level from three

1 Approved Enrolilment classes per grade December 12, 2018
level to five classes
per grade level.

2

3

4

5

More revisions to add? No

ATTESTATION

Date Approved by
Authorizer (if
applicable)

April 9, 2019

o. Individual Primarily Responsible for Submitting the Annual Report.

Name Karen Leeper
Position Interim Principal
Phone/Extension

Email

718



p. Our signatures (Executive Director/School Leader/Head of School and Board
President) below attest that all of the information contained herein is truthful and
accurate and that this charter school is in compliance with all aspects of its charter,
and with all pertinent Federal, State, and local laws, regulations, and rules. We
understand that if any information in any part of this report is found to have been
deliberately misrepresented, that will constitute grounds for the revocation of our
charter. Check YES if you agree and then use the mouse on your PC or the stylist on

your mobile device to signh your name).

Yes

Signature, Head of Charter School

Signature, President of the Board of Trustees

Date 2019/07/12

Thank you.
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August 2014 i

The University of the State of New York
THE STATE EDUCATION DEPARTMENT
Office of Facilities Planning - Room 1060 Education Building Annex
Albany, New York 12234

NONPUBLIC SCHOOL BUILDING FIRE SAFETY REPORT

(PLEASE PRINT)

All buildings which are owned, operated, or leased by nonpublic schools must be inspected annually for compliance with
applicable sections of 8NYCRR 155 Regulations of the Commissioner of Education and for compliance with the New York
State Uniform Fire Prevention and Building Code (NYSUFPBC).

School Name

EN eleleleleN] ol r e ele Tslculdal o

Facility/Building Name

Lialoly] Jole] L c]deHlo B

Street Address (NO PO Box Numbers)

&
-3
™
A
3
-

VzZle| [6lelelelshiy [

City/Town/Village u - Zip Code

NEEZEEND L D sTslo

Name of Municipality Responsible for Local Code Enforcement
VIVLILIAEE ] [dF] [weMeleFlelap
Nonpublic School BEDS Code o

At ALINE A 1,

INSTRUCTION

» Read the "Manual for New York State Nonpublic School Facility Fire Safety Inspections’ prior to inspecting
the facility.

e A separate report must be completed for each building and location.

e Part I: General Information. School officials must complete this section annually.

e Part Il-B Regulations of the Commissioner 155.25: This section must be completed for schools with
electrically operated partitions (Question 8, Non-Conformance Report Sheet) pursuant to the Fire Code
and Property Maintenance Code of New York State.

Questions 9-26 on the Non-Conformance Report Sheet must be completed for all schools.
= Part lll Certifications. To be completed by individuals as indicated.

e This form must be kept on file at the school for three years and must be available for public review.

e Submitting the Report: The final submission package includes a total of five pages. After the inspection,
sign the Certifications page (Part Ill, p.5), staple the pages together, and mail to the address above.

1




Part I: General Information and Fire/Life Safety History
(to be completed annually)

1. Indicate the primary use of this facility: (check prfe box)
(?) Student Instruction | ‘ b) Other Student Use (dormitory, dining

| ‘hall, physical education building, etc.)

No \/
If yes, is the sprinkler alarm connected with the building alarm? Yes No

No_\_/ |

2. |s there a fire sprinkler system in this facility? Yes

3. lIs there a fire hydrant system for facility protection? Yes
if yes, indicate ownership of the system.
1
Public Owned School Owned Other (?U\Jkﬂ—ﬁi L (specify)
OuE D

4. Indicate the ownership of this facility.

Leased Owned_ Other (specify)
5. What is the current gross square footage of this facility? g
(to the nearest whole ten feet) 2 l’[ ] | M IZ_J
6. If this facility is used for instruction, complete (a) - (d); otherwise go to question #7.
a) Fire drills were held in accordance with Section 807 of State  Yes \/ No
Education Law and Sections F405 and F408 of the
New York State Fire Code.
b) Average time to evacuate this facility: { j
Minutes Seconds
¢) Arson and fire prevention instruction was provided in accordance with Section 808 of
State Education Law; which requires every school in New York State to provide a
minimum of 45 minutes of instructions in arson, fire prevention, injury preveption,
and life safety during each month that scheool is in session. /
Yes No
d) Employee fire prevention, evacuation, and fire safety training was provided a
Records maintained in accordance with Section F406 of the New York State Fire Code.
Yes No
7. Ifthe fire alarm was activated since the last annual fire Yes No

inspection, was the fire department immediately notified?



8. Have there been any fires in this facility since the last annual
fire inspection?

If yes, indicate:;

a) Number of fires [_'l_ul

b) Total number of injuries l j J

c) Total cost of property damage $ . f


































(ﬁ57§ T Ize Incorpomted Vlllage of Hempstead

wwr “New York State’s Largest lncorporated Village”
Honorable Don L. Hyan, Mayor

CHARLESB E, RENFROE
Deputy Mayor

FERRY PETTUS
Trusiee

LaMONT JOHNSON
Trusles

JEFFERY J, DANIELS June 11. 2018

Trustee

PATRICIA PEREZ
Village Clerk

DEBRA URBANG-DISALVO, Erq.
Village Altarney

RAYMOND J. CALAME
Treasurer

RE. 114 Greenwich Street
SCHOOL aka 120 Greenwich Street
Hempstead, NY 11550
Sec. 34 Block 357 Lot 71

Dear Sir/Madam:

Please be advised that the 131’ 0"x 57'8" building (school)
at the above premises was built under Building Permit #
710, issued May 27, 1926 and according to our records a
Certificate of Occupaney was not mandatory at that time.

Very truly yours,

W? /gﬁi/m/?\g
oseph Simone

Superintendent Bldg. Dept.:

JS:aps

THE INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF HEMPSTEAD 09 NICHOLS COURT P.0. BOX 32 HEMPSTEAD, NY 11550-0032 PHONE (516) 480-3400 FAX (516) 463-4313






Entry 2 NYS School Report Card Link

Last updated: 07/12/2019

EVERGREEN CHARTER SCHOOL

1. CHARTER AUTHORIZER (As of REGENTS Authorized Charter School
June 30th, 2019)

(For technical reasons, please re select
authorizer name from the drop down

menu).
2. NEW YORK STATE REPORT https://data.nysed.gov/essa.php?
CARD instid=800000063984&year=2018&createreport=1&0OverallSt

atus=1&section 1003=1&EMindicators=1&EMcomposite=1&E
Magrowth=1&EMcompgrowth=1&EMelp=1&EMprogress=1&EM

chronic=1&EMpart=1&staffqual=1&expend=1&38ELA=1&38M
ATH=1&48SCl=1&nyseslat=1&feddata=1

Provide a direct URL or web link
to the most recent New York
State School Report Card for the
charter school (See

https://reportcards.nysed.govy/).

(Charter schools completing year
one will not yet have a School
Report Card or link to one. Please
type "URL is not available" in the
space provided.)
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E Entry 3 Progress Toward Goals

Created: 07/12/2019 -« Last updated: 10/30/2019

PROGRESS TOWARD CHARTER GOALS

Board of Regents authorized and NYCDOE authorized charter schools only. Complete the tables provided.
List each goal and measure as contained in the school’s currently approved charter, and indicate whether
the school has met or not met the goal. Please provide information for all goals by November 1st.

1. ACADEMIC STUDENT PERFORMANCE GOALS

If performance data is not available by August 1st, please state this in the last column and update by
November 1st.

2018-19 Progress Toward Attainment of Academic Goals

Academic Student Measure Used to Goal Met or Not Met Indicate if data is not
Performance Goal Evaluate Progress available. If/when
Toward Attainment of available, Describe
Goal Efforts School Will
Take If Goal Is Not
Met

Academ 75% of kindergarten
ic Goal students will be Fountas & Pinnell Met
1 proficient in ELA

To close the
performance gap, the
school will undertake
the following
initiatives:
* Continue to
strengthen the
school’s Response to
Intervention (RTI)
Program.
* Provide additional
training and time for
teachers to analyze
student performance
data on an ongoing
basis with the
support of the Data
Specialist.
* Provide professional
development
opportunities that

Academ 75% of first grade support the

ic Goal students will be Fountas & Pinnell Not Met implementation of

2 proficient in ELA the English Language

1/25



Academ 75% of second grade

ic Goal students will be Fountas & Pinnell
3 proficient in ELA

Academ 75% of third grade

ic Goal students will be Fountas & Pinnell
4 proficient in ELA

Academ 75% of fourth grade

2/25

Met

Met

Arts Standards,
includes research
based strategies to
improve teacher
pedagogy and
supports literacy
instruction to English
Language Learners
and students
receiving RTI
services.

* Continue to utilize
iReady, a technology
based program that
diagnoses student
performance and
provides data on
student growth,
abilities and needs
along with an action
plan for instruction.

To close the
performance gap, the
school will undertake
the following
initiatives:

* Continue to
strengthen the
school’s Academic
Intervention Services
(AIS) Program and
Response to
Intervention (RTI)
Program.

* Provide additional
training and time for
teachers to analyze
student performance
data on an ongoing
basis with the
support of the Data
Specialist.

* Provide professional
development
opportunities that



ic Goal
5

Academ 75% of fifth grade

ic Goal
6

students will be
proficient in ELA

students will be
proficient in ELA

Fountas & Pinnell

Fountas & Pinnell

3/25

Not Met

Not Met

support the
implementation of
the English Language
Arts Learning
Standards, includes
research based
strategies to improve
teacher pedagogy
and supports literacy
instruction to English
Language Learners
and students
receiving AIS and RTI
services.

* Continue to utilize
iReady, a technology
based program that
diagnoses student
performance and
provides data on
student growth,
abilities and needs
along with an action
plan for instruction.

To close the
performance gap, the
school will undertake
the following
initiatives:

* Continue to
strengthen the
school’s Academic
Intervention Services
(AIS) Program and
Response to
Intervention (RTI)
Program.

* Provide additional
training and time for
teachers to analyze
student performance
data on an ongoing
basis with the
support of the Data
Specialist.

* Provide professional
development
opportunities that
support the
implementation of
the English Language



Academ
ic Goal
7

75% of tested
students in
kindergarten will
reach or surpass the
expected on level
range scaled score
on the i Ready
Diagnostic in Reading
OR 75% of tested

students in
kindergarten will i Ready Diagnostic
demonstrate Assessment in

adequate growth in Reading
Reading by reducing
the gap that exists
between their
preliminary (fall) i
Ready scaled score in
Reading and the on
level range scaled
score by 50% on the
final diagnostic
assessment (spring)

4/25

Met

Arts Learning
Standards, includes
research based
strategies to improve
teacher pedagogy
and supports literacy
instruction to English
Language Learners
and students
receiving AIS and RTI
services.

* Continue to utilize
iReady, a technology
based program that
diagnoses student
performance and
provides data on
student growth,
abilities and needs
along with an action
plan for instruction.

To close the
performance gap, the
school will undertake
the following
initiatives:

* Continue to
strengthen the
school’s Response to



Academ
ic Goal
8

75% of tested
students in first
grade will reach or
surpass the expected
on level range scaled
score on the i Ready
Diagnostic in Reading
OR 75% of tested
students in first
grade will
demonstrate
adequate growth in
Reading by reducing
the gap that exists
between their
preliminary (fall) i
Ready scaled score in
Reading and the on
level range scaled
score by 50% on the
final diagnostic
assessment (spring)

75% of tested
students in second
grade will reach or

i Ready Diagnostic

Assessment in
Reading

5/25

Not Met

Intervention (RTI)
Program.

* Provide additional
training and time for
teachers to analyze
student performance
data on an ongoing
basis with the
support of the Data
Specialist.

* Provide professional
development
opportunities that
support the
implementation of
the English Language
Arts Standards,
includes research
based strategies to
improve teacher
pedagogy and
supports literacy
instruction to English
Language Learners
and students
receiving RTI
services.

* Continue to utilize
iReady, a technology
based program that
diagnoses student
performance and
provides data on
student growth,
abilities and needs
along with an action
plan for instruction.

To close the
performance gap, the
school will undertake
the following
initiatives:

* Continue to
strengthen the
school’s Response to
Intervention (RTI)
Program.

* Provide additional
training and time for
teachers to analyze
student performance
data on an ongoing



Academ
ic Goal
9

Academ
ic Goal
10

surpass the expected
on level range scaled
score on the i Ready
Diagnostic in Reading
OR 75% of tested
students in second
grade will
demonstrate
adequate growth in
Reading by reducing
the gap that exists
between their
preliminary (fall) i
Ready scaled score in
Reading and the on
level range scaled
score by 50% on the
final diagnostic
assessment (spring)

75% of tested
students in third
grade will reach or
surpass the expected
on level range scaled
score on the i Ready
Diagnostic in Reading
OR 75% of tested
students in third
grade will
demonstrate
adequate growth in
Reading by reducing
the gap that exists
between their
preliminary (fall) i
Ready scaled score in
Reading and the on
level range scaled
score by 50% on the
final diagnostic

i Ready Diagnostic

Assessment in
Reading

i Ready Diagnostic

Assessment in
Reading

6/25

Not Met

Met

basis with the
support of the Data
Specialist.

* Provide professional
development
opportunities that
support the
implementation of
the English Language
Arts Standards,
includes research
based strategies to
improve teacher
pedagogy and
supports literacy
instruction to English
Language Learners
and students
receiving RTI
services.

* Continue to utilize
iReady, a technology
based program that
diagnoses student
performance and
provides data on
student growth,
abilities and needs
along with an action
plan for instruction.



2. Do have more academic goals

to add?

2018-19 Progress Toward Attainment of Academic Goals

Academ
ic Goal
11

assessment (spring)

Academic Student
Performance Goal

75% of tested
students in fourth
grade will reach or
surpass the expected
on level range scaled
score on the i Ready
Diagnostic in Reading
OR 75% of tested
students in fourth
grade will
demonstrate
adequate growth in
Reading by reducing
the gap that exists
between their
preliminary (fall) i
Ready scaled score in
Reading and the on
level range scaled
score by 50% on the
final diagnostic
assessment (spring)

(No response)

Measure Used to
Evaluate Progress
Toward Attainment of
Goal

i Ready Diagnostic
Assessment in
Reading

7125

Goal

Not Met

Met or Not Met

If Not Met, Describe
Efforts School Will
Take

To close the
performance gap, the
school will undertake
the following
initiatives:

* Continue to
strengthen the
school’s Academic
Intervention Services
(AlIS) Program and
Response to
Intervention (RTI)
Program.

* Provide additional
training and time for
teachers to analyze
student performance
data on an ongoing
basis with the
support of the Data
Specialist.

* Provide professional
development
opportunities that
support the
implementation of
the English Language
Arts Learning
Standards, includes
research based
strategies to improve
teacher pedagogy
and supports literacy
instruction to English
Language Learners
and students
receiving AlIS and RTI
services.

* Continue to utilize



Academ
ic Goal
12

75% of tested

students in fifth

grade will reach or

surpass the expected

on level range scaled

score on the i Ready

Diagnostic in Reading

OR 75% of tested

students in fifth

grade will

demonstrate i Ready Diagnostic
adequate growth in ~ Assessment in
Reading by reducing  Reading
the gap that exists

between their

preliminary (fall) i

Ready scaled score in

Reading and the on

level range scaled

score by 50% on the

final diagnostic

assessment (spring)

75% of tested
students in sixth
grade will reach or
surpass the expected
on level range scaled
score on the i Ready
Diagnostic in Reading

8/25

iReady, a technology
based program that
diagnoses student
performance and
provides data on
student growth,
abilities and needs
along with an action
plan for instruction.

To close the
performance gap, the
school will undertake
the following
initiatives:

* Continue to
strengthen the
school’s Academic
Intervention Services
(AIS) Program and
Response to
Intervention (RTI)
Program.

* Provide additional
training and time for
teachers to analyze
student performance
data on an ongoing
basis with the
support of the Data



Academ
ic Goal
13

Academ

OR 75% of tested
students in sixth
grade will
demonstrate
adequate growth in
Reading by reducing
the gap that exists
between their
preliminary (fall) i
Ready scaled score in
Reading and the on
level range scaled
score by 50% on the
final diagnostic
assessment (spring)

75% of tested
students in seventh
grade will reach or
surpass the expected
on level range scaled
score on the i Ready
Diagnostic in Reading
OR 75% of tested
students in seventh
grade will
demonstrate

i Ready Diagnostic
Assessment in
Reading

i Ready Diagnostic

9/25

Not Met

Specialist.

* Provide professional
development
opportunities that
support the
implementation of
the English Language
Arts Learning
Standards, includes
research based
strategies to improve
teacher pedagogy
and supports literacy
instruction to English
Language Learners
and students
receiving AIS and RTI
services.

* Continue to utilize
iReady, a technology
based program that
diagnoses student
performance and
provides data on
student growth,
abilities and needs
along with an action
plan for instruction.

To close the
performance gap, the
school will undertake
the following
initiatives:

* Continue to
strengthen the
school’s Academic
Intervention Services
(AIS) Program and
Response to
Intervention (RTI)
Program.

* Provide additional
training and time for
teachers to analyze
student performance
data on an ongoing
basis with the
support of the Data
Specialist.

* Provide professional
development
opportunities that



ic Goal
14

Academ
ic Goal
15

adequate growth in
Reading by reducing
the gap that exists
between their
preliminary (fall) i
Ready scaled score in
Reading and the on
level range scaled
score by 50% on the
final diagnostic
assessment (spring)

75% of tested
students in eighth
grade will reach or
surpass the expected
on level range scaled
score on the i Ready
Diagnostic in Reading
OR 75% of tested
students in eighth
grade will
demonstrate
adequate growth in
Reading by reducing
the gap that exists

Assessment in
Reading

i Ready Diagnostic

Assessment in
Reading

10/25

Not Met

Not Met

support the
implementation of
the English Language
Arts Learning
Standards, includes
research based
strategies to improve
teacher pedagogy
and supports literacy
instruction to English
Language Learners
and students
receiving AIS and RTI
services.

* Continue to utilize
iReady, a technology
based program that
diagnoses student
performance and
provides data on
student growth,
abilities and needs
along with an action
plan for instruction.

To close the
performance gap, the
school will undertake
the following
initiatives:

* Continue to
strengthen the
school’s Academic
Intervention Services
(AIS) Program and
Response to
Intervention (RTI)
Program.

* Provide additional
training and time for
teachers to analyze
student performance
data on an ongoing
basis with the
support of the Data
Specialist.

* Provide professional
development
opportunities that
support the
implementation of
the English Language
Arts Learning



Academ
ic Goal
16

between their
preliminary (fall) i
Ready scaled score in
Reading and the on
level range scaled
score by 50% on the
final diagnostic
assessment (spring)

75% of tested
students in
kindergarten will
reach or surpass the
expected on level
range scaled score
on the i Ready
Diagnostic in Math
OR 75% of tested
students in
kindergarten will
demonstrate
adequate growth in
Math by reducing the
gap that exists
between their
preliminary (fall) i
Ready scaled score in
Math and the on
level range scaled
score by 50% on the
final diagnostic
assessment (spring)

i Ready Diagnostic
Assessment in Math

11725

Met

Standards, includes
research based
strategies to improve
teacher pedagogy
and supports literacy
instruction to English
Language Learners
and students
receiving AIS and RTI
services.

* Continue to utilize
iReady, a technology
based program that
diagnoses student
performance and
provides data on
student growth,
abilities and needs
along with an action
plan for instruction.

To close the
performance gap, the
school will undertake
the following
initiatives:

e Continue to
strengthen the



Academ
ic Goal
17

75% of tested
students in first
grade will reach or
surpass the expected
on level range scaled
score on the i Ready
Diagnostic in Math
OR 75% of tested
students in first
grade will
demonstrate
adequate growth in
Math by reducing the
gap that exists
between their
preliminary (fall) i
Ready scaled score in
Math and the on
level range scaled
score by 50% on the
final diagnostic
assessment (spring)

75% of tested

i Ready Diagnostic
Assessment in Math

12725

Not Met

school’s Response to
Intervention (RTI)
Program.

* Provide additional
training and time for
teachers to analyze
student performance
data on an ongoing
basis with the
support of the Data
Specialist.

* Provide professional
development
opportunities that
support the
implementation of
the Mathematics
Learning Standards,
includes research
based strategies to
improve teacher
pedagogy and
supports
mathematics
instruction to English
Language Learners
and students
receiving RTI
services.

* Continue to utilize
iReady, a technology
based program that
diagnoses student
performance and
provides data on
student growth,
abilities and needs
along with an action
plan for instruction.

To close the
performance gap, the
school will undertake
the following
initiatives:

* Continue to
strengthen the
school’s Response to
Intervention (RTI)
Program.

* Provide additional
training and time for
teachers to analyze



Academ
ic Goal
18

Academ
ic Goal
19

students in second
grade will reach or
surpass the expected
on level range scaled
score on the i Ready
Diagnostic in Math
OR 75% of tested
students in second
grade will
demonstrate
adequate growth in
Math by reducing the
gap that exists
between their
preliminary (fall) i
Ready scaled score in
Math and the on
level range scaled
score by 50% on the
final diagnostic
assessment (spring)

75% of tested
students in third
grade will reach or
surpass the expected
on level range scaled
score on the i Ready
Diagnostic in Math
OR 75% of tested
students in third
grade will
demonstrate
adequate growth in
Math by reducing the
gap that exists
between their
preliminary (fall) i
Ready scaled score in
Math and the on
level range scaled

i Ready Diagnostic
Assessment in Math

i Ready Diagnostic
Assessment in Math

13/25

Not Met

Met

student performance
data on an ongoing
basis with the
support of the Data
Specialist.

* Provide professional
development
opportunities that
support the
implementation of
the Mathematics
Learning Standards,
includes research
based strategies to
improve teacher
pedagogy and
supports
mathematics
instruction to English
Language Learners
and students
receiving RTI
services.

* Continue to utilize
iReady, a technology
based program that
diagnoses student
performance and
provides data on
student growth,
abilities and needs
along with an action
plan for instruction.



score by 50% on the
final diagnostic
assessment (spring)

75% of tested
students in fourth
grade will reach or
surpass the expected
on level range scaled
score on the i Ready
Diagnostic in Math
OR 75% of tested
students in fourth

grade will
Academ  demonstrate
ic Goal  adequate growth in
20 Math by reducing the

gap that exists
between their
preliminary (fall) i
Ready scaled score in
Math and the on
level range scaled
score by 50% on the
final diagnostic
assessment (spring)

i Ready Diagnostic

Assessment in Math Met

3. Do have more academic goals Yes

to add?

2018-19 Progress Toward Attainment of Academic Goals

Academic Student
Performance Goal

Measure Used to
Evaluate Progress
Toward Attainment of
Goal

Goal Met, Partially
Met, or Not Met

14 /25

If Not Met, Describe
Efforts School Will
Take

To close the
performance gap, the
school will undertake
the following
initiatives:

e Continue to
strengthen the
school’s Academic
Intervention Services
(AIS) Program and
Response to
Intervention (RTI)
Program.

* Provide additional



Academ
ic Goal
21

75% of tested
students in fifth
grade will reach or
surpass the expected
on level range scaled
score on the i Ready
Diagnostic in Math
OR 75% of tested
students in fifth
grade will
demonstrate
adequate growth in
Math by reducing the
gap that exists
between their
preliminary (fall) i
Ready scaled score in
Math and the on
level range scaled
score by 50% on the
final diagnostic
assessment (spring)

75% of tested
students in sixth
grade will reach or

i Ready Diagnostic
Assessment in Math

15/25

Not Met

training and time for
teachers to analyze
student performance
data on an ongoing
basis with the
support of the Data
Specialist.

* Provide professional
development
opportunities that
support the
implementation of
the Mathematics
Learning Standards,
includes research
based strategies to
improve teacher
pedagogy and
supports
mathematics
instruction to English
Language Learners
and students
receiving AIS and RTI
services.

* Continue to utilize
iReady, a technology
based program that
diagnoses student
performance and
provides data on
student growth,
abilities and needs
along with an action
plan for instruction.

To close the
performance gap, the
school will undertake
the following
initiatives:

* Continue to
strengthen the
school’s Academic
Intervention Services
(AIS) Program and
Response to
Intervention (RTI)
Program.

* Provide additional
training and time for
teachers to analyze
student performance



Academ
ic Goal
22

surpass the expected
on level range scaled
score on the i Ready
Diagnostic in Math
OR 75% of tested
students in sixth
grade will
demonstrate
adequate growth in
Math by reducing the
gap that exists
between their
preliminary (fall) i
Ready scaled score in
Math and the on
level range scaled
score by 50% on the
final diagnostic
assessment (spring)

75% of tested
students in seventh
grade will reach or
surpass the expected
on level range scaled

i Ready Diagnostic
Assessment in Math

16 /25

Not Met

data on an ongoing
basis with the
support of the Data
Specialist.

* Provide professional
development
opportunities that
support the
implementation of
the Mathematics
Learning Standards,
includes research
based strategies to
improve teacher
pedagogy and
supports
mathematics
instruction to English
Language Learners
and students
receiving AIS and RTI
services.

* Continue to utilize
iReady, a technology
based program that
diagnoses student
performance and
provides data on
student growth,
abilities and needs
along with an action
plan for instruction.

To close the
performance gap, the
school will undertake
the following
initiatives:

* Continue to
strengthen the
school’s Academic
Intervention Services
(AIS) Program and
Response to
Intervention (RTI)
Program.

* Provide additional
training and time for
teachers to analyze
student performance
data on an ongoing
basis with the



Academ
ic Goal
23

Academ
ic Goal
24

score on the i Ready
Diagnostic in Math
OR 75% of tested
students in seventh
grade will
demonstrate
adequate growth in
Math by reducing the
gap that exists
between their
preliminary (fall) i
Ready scaled score in
Math and the on
level range scaled
score by 50% on the
final diagnostic
assessment (spring)

75% of tested
students in eighth
grade will reach or
surpass the expected
on level range scaled
score on the i Ready
Diagnostic in Math
OR 75% of tested
students in eighth
grade will
demonstrate
adequate growth in
Math by reducing the
gap that exists
between their
preliminary (fall) i
Ready scaled score in
Math and the on
level range scaled
score by 50% on the
final diagnostic

i Ready Diagnostic
Assessment in Math

i Ready Diagnostic
Assessment in Math

17725

Not Met

Met

support of the Data
Specialist.

* Provide professional
development
opportunities that
support the
implementation of
the Mathematics
Learning Standards,
includes research
based strategies to
improve teacher
pedagogy and
supports
mathematics
instruction to English
Language Learners
and students
receiving AlIS and RTI
services.

* Continue to utilize
iReady, a technology
based program that
diagnoses student
performance and
provides data on
student growth,
abilities and needs
along with an action
plan for instruction.



Academ
ic Goal
25

assessment (spring)

75% of third grade
students will be
proficient in ELA

75% of fourth grade
students will be
proficient in ELA

75% of fifth grade
students will be
proficient in ELA NYS Common Core
English Language
75% of sixth grade Arts Test
students will be

proficient in ELA

75% of seventh
grade students will
be proficient in ELA

75% of eighth grade
students will be
proficient in ELA

Evergreen students
will outperform

18 /25

Not Met

To close the
performance gap, the
school will undertake
the following
initiatives:

* Continue to
strengthen the
school’s Academic
Intervention Services
(AIS) Program and
Response to
Intervention (RTI)
Program.

* Provide additional
training and time for
teachers to analyze
student performance
data on an ongoing
basis with the
support of the Data
Specialist.

* Provide professional
development
opportunities that
support the
implementation of
the English Language
Arts Learning
Standards, includes
research based
strategies to improve
teacher pedagogy
and supports literacy
instruction to English
Language Learners
and students
receiving AIS and RTI
services.

* Continue to utilize
iReady, a technology
based program that
diagnoses student
performance and
provides data on
student growth,
abilities and needs
along with an action
plan for instruction.



Academ
ic Goal
26

Academ
ic Goal
27

Academ
ic Goal
28

students enrolled in
the local district on
the Grade 3 NYS
Common Core
English Language
Arts Test

Evergreen students
will outperform
students enrolled in
the local district on
the Grade 4 NYS
Common Core
English Language
Arts Test

Evergreen students
will outperform

students enrolled in

the local district on
the Grade 5 NYS
Common Core
English Language
Arts Test

NYS Common Core
English Language
Arts Test

NYS Common Core
English Language
Arts Test

NYS Common Core
English Language
Arts Test

19/25

Met

Met

Not Met

To close the
performance gap, the
school will undertake
the following
initiatives:

» Continue to
strengthen the
school’s Academic
Intervention Services
(AIS) Program and
Response to
Intervention (RTI)
Program.

* Provide additional
training and time for
teachers to analyze
student performance
data on an ongoing
basis with the
support of the Data
Specialist.

* Provide professional
development
opportunities that
support the
implementation of
the English Language
Arts Learning
Standards, includes
research based
strategies to improve
teacher pedagogy
and supports literacy
instruction to English
Language Learners
and students
receiving AIS and RTI
services.



Academ
ic Goal
29

Academ
ic Goal
30

Academ
ic Goal
31

Evergreen students
will outperform
students enrolled in
the local district on
the Grade 6 NYS
Common Core
English Language
Arts Test

Evergreen students
will outperform
students enrolled in
the local district on
the Grade 7 NYS
Common Core
English Language
Arts Test

Evergreen students
will outperform
students enrolled in
the local district on
the Grade 8 NYS
Common Core
English Language
Arts Test

75% of third grade
students will be
proficient in
Mathematics

75% of fourth grade

NYS Common Core
English Language Met
Arts Test

NYS Common Core
English Language Met
Arts Test

NYS Common Core
English Language Met
Arts Test

20/25

* Continue to utilize
iReady, a technology
based program that
diagnoses student
performance and
provides data on
student growth,
abilities and needs
along with an action
plan for instruction.

To close the
performance gap, the
school will undertake
the following
initiatives:

* Continue to
strengthen the
school’s Academic
Intervention Services
(AIS) Program and
Response to
Intervention (RTI)
Program.

* Provide additional
training and time for
teachers to analyze



Academ
ic Goal
32

Academ
ic Goal
33

Academ
ic Goal
34

Academ
ic Goal

students will be
proficient in
Mathematics

75% of fifth grade
students will be
proficient in
Mathematics

75% of sixth grade
students will be
proficient in
Mathematics

75% of seventh
grade students will
be proficient in
Mathematics

75% of eighth grade

students will be
proficient in
Mathematics

Evergreen students
will outperform
students enrolled in
the local district on
the Grade 3 NYS
Common Core
Mathematics Test

Evergreen students
will outperform
students enrolled in
the local district on
the Grade 4 NYS
Common Core
Mathematics Test

Evergreen students
will outperform

students enrolled in
the local district on

NYS Common Core
Mathematics Test

NYS Common Core
Mathematics Test

NYS Common Core
Mathematics Test

NYS Common Core

21/25

Not Met

Met

Met

Met

student performance
data on an ongoing
basis with the
support of the Data
Specialist.

* Provide professional
development
opportunities that
support the
implementation of
the Mathematics
Learning Standards,
includes research
based strategies to
improve teacher
pedagogy and
supports
mathematics
instruction to English
Language Learners
and students
receiving AlIS and RTI
services.

* Continue to utilize
iReady, a technology
based program that
diagnoses student
performance and
provides data on
student growth,
abilities and needs
along with an action
plan for instruction.



35

Academ
ic Goal
36

Academ
ic Goal
37

Academ
ic Goal
38

Academ
ic Goal
39

Academ
ic Goal
40

4. ORGANIZATIONAL GOALS

2018-19 Progress Toward Attainment of Organizational Goals

Org
Goal 1

Org
Goal 2

the Grade 5 NYS
Common Core
Mathematics Test

Evergreen students
will outperform
students enrolled in
the local district on
the Grade 6 NYS
Common Core
Mathematics Test

Evergreen students
will outperform
students enrolled in
the local district on
the Grade 7 NYS
Common Core
Mathematics Test

Evergreen students
will outperform
students enrolled in
the local district on
the Grade 8 NYS
Common Core
Mathematics Test

75% of fourth grade
students will be
proficient in Science

Organizational Goal

Evergreen Charter
School will have an
annual average
attendance rate of
90%

95% of students will
return to Evergreen
Charter School

Mathematics Test

NYS Common Core
Mathematics Test

NYS Common Core
Mathematics Test

NYS Common Core
Mathematics Test

Grade 4 NYS Science
Test

Measure Used to
Evaluate Progress

PowerSchool

Met

Met

Met

Met

Goal

Attendance Summary Met

Report

Enrollment Data

22/ 25

Met

Met or Not Met

If Not Met, Describe
Efforts School Will
Take



Org
Goal 3

Org
Goal 4

Org
Goal 5

Org
Goal 6

Org
Goal 7

Org
Goal 8

Org
Goal 9

Org
Goal 10

Org
Goal 11

Org
Goal 12

Org
Goal 13

Org
Goal 14

Org
Goal 15

Org
Goal 16

Org
Goal 17

Org
Goal 18

Org
Goal 19

Org

80% of parents will
express satisfaction
with the instructional
program and staff at
Evergreen Charter
School

Parent Survey

23725

Met



Goal 20

5. Do have more organizational No

goals to add?

6. FINANCIAL GOALS

2018-19 Progress Toward Attainment of Financial Goals

Financial Goals Measure Used to Goal Met or Not Met If Not Met, Describe
Evaluate Progress Efforts School Will
Take

Financia
| Goal 1

Financia
| Goal 2

Financia
| Goal 3

Financia
| Goal 4

Financia
| Goal 5

7. Do have more financial goals (No response)
to add?

24 /25



2018-19 Progress Toward Attainment of Financial Goals

Financial Goals Measure Used to Goal Met or Not Met If Not Met, Describe
Evaluate Progress Efforts School Will
Take

Financia
| Goal 6

Financia
| Goal 7

Financia
| Goal 8

Financia
| Goal 9

Financia
| Goal
10

Thank you.

25/ 25



ﬁ Entry 4 Expenditures per Child

Created: 07/19/2019 -« Last updated: 07/20/2019

EVERGREEN CHARTER SCHOOLSection Heading

Financial Information

This information is required of ALL charter schools. Provide the following measures of fiscal
performance of the charter school in Appendix B (Total Expenditures and Administrative Expenditures
Per Child):

1. Total Expenditures Per Child
To calculate ‘Total Expenditures per Child’ take total expenditures (from the unaudited 2018-
19 Schedule of Functional Expenses) and divide by the year end FTE student enroliment.

(Integers Only. No dollar signs or commas).

Note: The information on the Schedule of Functional Expenses on pages 41-43 of the
Audit Guide can help schools locate the amounts to use in the two per pupil

calculations: http:/www.p12.nysed.gov/psc/AuditGuide.html

Line 1: Total Expenditures 11023395
Line 2: Year End FTE student enrollment 525

Line 3: Divide Line 1 by Line 2 20997

1/2



2. Administrative Expenditures per Child
To calculate ‘Administrative Expenditures per Child' To calculate “Administrative Expenditures per

Child” first add together the following:

1. Take the relevant portion from the ‘personnel services cost’ row and the ‘management and general’
column (from the unaudited 2018 19 Schedule of Functional Expenses)

2. Any contracted administrative/management fee paid to other organizations or corporations

3. Take the total from above and divide it by the year end FTE enrollment. The relevant portion that must
be included in this calculation is defined as follows:

Administrative Expenditures: Administration and management of the charter school includes the
activities and personnel of the offices of the chief school officer, the finance or business offices, school
operations personnel, data management and reporting, human resources, technology, etc. It also
includes those administrative and management services provided by other organizations or corporations
on behalf of the charter school for which the charter school pays a fee or other compensation. Do not
include the FTE of personnel whose role is to directly support the instructional program.

Notes:
The information on the Schedule of Functional Expenses on pages 41-43 of the Audit Guide
can help schools locate the amounts to use in the two per pupil calculations:

http:/www.pl12.nysed.gov/psc/AuditGuide.html.

Employee benefit costs or expenditures should not be reported in the above calculations.

Line 1: Relevant Personnel Services

Cost (Row) 783921
Line 2: Management and General Cost 744059
(Column)

Line 3: Sum of Line 1 and Line 2 1527980
Line 5: Divide Line 3 by the Year End 2910

FTE student enrollment

Thank you.

2/2
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ConNDON
O’'MEARrA
McGintyY &F
DONNELLY LLP

Certified Public Accountants

One Battery Park Plaza

New York, NY 10004-1405
Independent Auditor’s Report Tel: (212) 661 - 7777
Fax: (212) 661 -4010

To the Board of Trustees of
Evergreen Charter School

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Evergreen Charter School (the “School”)
which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2019 and June 30, 2018 and the
related statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the years then ended and the
related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation

and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.




1\

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to on the previous page present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Evergreen Charter School as of June 30, 2019 and June 30, 2018
and the results of its activities and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
September 25,2019 on our consideration of the School’s internal control over financial reporting and
on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing and not to
provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the School’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

C@O‘MW%MLLF

September 25, 2019




EVERGREEN CHARTER SCHOOL

Statement of Financial Position

Assets
June 30
2019 2018
Current assets
Cash $ 2,661,914 $ 1,139,911
Government contracts receivable 330,757 1,322,530
Other receivables 51,844 46,992
Prepaid expenses 182.684 175.246
Total current assets 3,227,199 2,684,679
Restricted cash 75,000 75,000
Property and equipment, net 2,098,057 1,022,097
Real estate deposits - 59.904
Total assets $ 5,400,256 $ 3.841.680
Liabilities and Net Assets
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 819,240 $ 697,060
Net assets without donor restrictions 4,581,016 3.144.620
Total liabilities and net assets without
donor restrictions $ 5,400,256 $ 3.841.680

See notes to financial statements.

(98]




EVERGREEN CHARTER SCHOOL

Statement of Activities

Support and revenue
Public School Districts —
Student enrollment
Other
State grants
Federal grants
Other
Total support and revenue

Expenses
Program services
Regular education
Elementary school
Middle school
Special education
Total program services
Supporting activities
Management and general
Total expenses

Increase in net assets without donor
restrictions

Net assets without donor restrictions, beginning of
year

Net assets without donor restrictions, end of year

See notes to financial statements.

For the
Year Ended
June 30
2019 2018

$10,329,292 $ 8,397,657
68,625 62,500
387,630 326,882
403,368 167,406
39.820 42.398
11.228.735 8.996.843
5,540,821 5,115,544
2,470,492 1,371,175
373.880 369.674
8,385,193 6,856,393
1.407.146 1.445.794
9.792.33 8.302.187
1,436,396 694,656
3.144.620 2.449.964
$ 4,581,016 $ 3.144.620

[+
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EVERGREEN CHARTER SCHOOL
Statement of Cash Flows
For the

Year Ended
June 30

Cash flows from operating activities

2019

2018

Increase in net assets without donor restriction $ 1,436,396 $ 694,656
Adjustments to reconcile increase in net assets
without donor restriction to net cash provided by
(used in) operating activities
Depreciation and amortization 261,736 245,290
(Increase) decrease in assets
Government contracts receivable 991,773 (1,073,163)
Other receivables (4,852) (4,574)
Prepaid expenses (7,438) (19,262)
Increase in liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 122.180 54,659
Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities 2.799.795 (102.394)
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property and equipment (1,337,696) (354,880)
Real estate deposits 59.904 (59.904)
Net cash (used in) investing activities (1.277.792) (414.784)
Net increase (decrease) in cash 1,522,003 (517,178)
Cash, beginning of year 1,214,911 1,732,089
Cash, end of year $ 2,736,914 $ 1.214.911
Consists of:
Unrestricted $ 2,661,914 $ 1,139,911
Restricted 75.000 75.000
Total $ 2.736.914 $ 1214911

See notes to financial statements.
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EVERGREEN CHARTER SCHOOL

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30,2019 and June 30,2018

Note 1 — Nature of organization and summary of significant accounting policies

Nature of organization

The Evergreen Charter School (the “School”) is a New York State nonprofit corporation. The
School’s primary goal is to nurture the intellectual, physical and social development of children,

through a comprehensive program that promotes academic excellence and prepares its students for
success in school and in life.

Basis of presentation

Net assets of the School are reported in each of the following two classes: (a) net assets without
donor restriction, and (b) net assets with donor restriction.

Net assets of the restricted classes are created only by donor-imposed restrictions on their use.
Donor-restricted contributions whose restrictions are met in the same accounting period are reported
as contributions without donor restrictions.

As of JTune 30, 2019 and June 30, 2018, the School has no net assets with donor restrictions.
Funding

The School is funded through various contracts with the New York State Department of Education
and through tuition based upon a per pupil allocation from the public school districts in which the

students are registered.

Cash equivalents

The School deems all highly liquid investments with original maturities of 90 days or less to be cash
equivalents. As of June 30,2019 and June 30, 2018, the School has no cash equivalents.

Allowance for doubtful accounts

As of June 30, 2019 and June 30, 2018, the School’s management has determined that there are no
potentially uncollectible receivables and thus, an allowance for doubtful accounts is not necessary.
Such estimate is based on management’s experience, the aging of the receivables, subsequent
receipts and current economic conditions.
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EVERGREEN CHARTER SCHOOL

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
June 30,2019 and June 30,2018

Note 1 — Nature of organization and summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost. The School capitalizes property and equipment
expenditures over $1,000. Leasehold improvements are being amortized using the straight-line
method over a ten year period which is the lesser of the estimated useful life or lease term. Furniture

and equipment is being depreciated using the straight-line method over estimated useful lives of five
years.

Revenue

All contributions are considered to be available for general use unless specifically restricted by the
donor.

All other revenue sources, including government grants and tuition, are recorded as revenue when
earned.

Reimbursements under government contracts are subject to audit by the various government
agencies. The effects of any potential audit disallowances for these contracts have not been
recognized in these financial statements. Management is of the opinion that any potential
disallowances will not be material to the accompanying financial statements.

In-kind services

A number of volunteers have donated time to the School. While these contributed services are
important in assisting the School in carrying out its operations, these volunteer services have not
been recorded in the accompanying statement of activities because they do not meet the revenue
recognition criteria for recording such services.

Functional expenses and allocations

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a
functional basis. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated between the program services and
supporting activities benefited. Expenses attributable to more than one functional category are
allocated based on time and effort.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the amounts reported in the financial statements. Actual results could differ from these estimates.
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EVERGREEN CHARTER SCHOOL

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
June 30, 2019 and June 30,2018

Note 1 — Nature of organization and summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Concentrations of credit risk

The School’s financial instruments that are potentially exposed to concentrations of credit risk
consist primarily of cash and receivables. Attimes during the year, the School’s bank accounts were
in excess of the FDIC insurance limit. The School places its cash with what it believes to be quality
financial institutions. The School has not experienced any losses in such accounts to date.
The School’s receivables consist of amounts due from public schools, government contracts and
other miscellaneous receivables. The School’s management monitors its cash and the collectability
of its receivables. As aresult, the School believes no significant concentrations of credit risk exist
with respect to its cash and receivables.

Subseguent events

The School has evaluated events and transactions for potential recognition or disclosure through
September 25, 2019, which is the date the financial statements were available to be issued.

Note 2 — Liquidity and availability of financial assets

The School’s working capital and cash flows vary due to timing of payments received from public
school districts, government grants and other revenue items.

The following is a summary of the School’s financial assets as of June 30, 2019 that are available to
pay general expenditures within one year of the statement of financial position date:

Cash — unrestricted $ 2,661,914
Government contracts receivable 330,757
Other receivables 51.844

Total $ 3.044.515

To manage liquidity the School maintains a $900,000 line of credit with a bank that may be drawn
upon as needed during the year.

Note 3 — Restricted cash

In accordance with New York State Board of Education Regulations, the School established an
escrow account in order to be able to cover certain expenses in the case of insolvency of the School.




EVERGREEN CHARTER SCHOOL

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
June 30, 2019 and June 30, 2018

Note 4 — Property and equipment

A summary of the property and equipment as of June 30, 2019 and June 30, 2018 is as follows:

2019 2018

Land $ 1,239,319 § 102,356
Leasehold improvements 1,115,435 1,115,435
Furniture and equipment 1.094.959 894.226
Sub-total 3,449,713 2,112,017

Less: accumulated depreciation
and amortization 1.351,656 1.089.920
Total $ 2.098.057 §$ 1.022.097

During the 2018 fiscal year, the School wrote off fully depreciated assets totaling $83,779. There
was no write-offs in the 2019 fiscal year.

During June 2018, the School entered into two contracts of sale for the purchase of two properties
near the School in Hempstead, New York, for a total cost of $1,090,000. As of June 30, 2018, the
School has made real estate deposits toward the purchases totaling $59,904. The School purchased
the properties during the 2019 fiscal year. The School intends to use the properties for the expansion
of the middle school and its recreational and educational activities.

Note 5 — Commitments

Community Center lease

In April 2019, the School entered into a lease agreement with Circulo Real Property Holding
Corporation (the “Corporation™), a related party, to rent space at its Community Center. The lease
commenced on the date of the closing of the Agency’s Town of Hempstead Local Development
Corporation Revenue Bonds Series 2019 (the “Bonds”), which was August 2019, and terminates and
expires on the date none of the Bonds remain outstanding and no Bonds or other debt issued to
refund any of the Bonds remain outstanding (“Refunding Bonds”).




EVERGREEN CHARTER SCHOOL

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
June 30,2019 and June 30, 2018

Note 5 — Commitments (continued)

Community Center lease (continued)

The lease requires payments in an amount equal to the principal and interest payments due on the
Bonds and redemption premium, if any, due on the Bonds and any principal and interest payments
and redemption premium, if any, due on any Refunding Bonds. The lease payments also will include
any amounts required to restore any debt service reserve fund for the Bonds or any Refunding Bonds
to its required funding level as noted in the Bond documents, any amounts required to restore the
Repair Fund, any Bonds Trustee fees and expenses, any TOHLDC fees and expenses imposed under
the Bond documents and all other sums, cost, expenses, charges or other payments that the School
assumes, agrees or is obligated to pay pursuant to any provision of the lease or under the Bond
documents. The lease requires the School to deposit $25,000 with the Bond Trustee upon the
commencement of the lease and annually for the next nine years for security for the full and faithful
performance by the School of all repair, maintenance and replacement obligations. The School is
also subject to certain financial covenants as defined in the lease. The lease agreement also contains
certain restrictive borrowing covenants.

Church leases

In August 2017, the School entered into a three year lease for additional space expiring August 14,
2020. The lease requires monthly payments of $13,871 with annual increases of 3% per year
thereafter. The School has the option to extend the lease for two terms of one year.

In August 2019, the School entered into a second lease for additional office space with a church
expiring June 30, 2022. The lease requires monthly payments of $29,167 through June 2020 and

increasing to $37,500 per month thereafter. The School has the option to extend the lease for a term
of one year.

Rental expense for the 2019 and 2018 fiscal years was approximately $1,412,000 and $1,305,000,
respectively.




EVERGREEN CHARTER SCHOOL

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
June 30,2019 and June 30,2018

Note 5 — Commitments (continued)

Real estate

As of June 30, 2019, the future minimum annual payments under the lease agreements are as
follows:

Community Church

Fiscal Year Center Leases Total
2020 $ 1,234,610 $ 467,833 § 1,702,443
2021 1,198,184 464,176 1,662,360
2022 1,197,403 450,000 1,647,403
2023 1,195,684 - 1,195,684
2024 1,202,935 - 1,202,935
2025 and thereafter 24.579.,735 - 24.579.735

Total $30.608.551 $ 1.382.009 $31.990.560

Line of credit

The School has a $900,000 revolving line of credit with a bank. The line bears interest at the Wall
Street Journal’s Prime Rate plus .5% which as of June 30,2019 was 6.0%. The line is secured by all
assets of the School and expires in February 2020. As of June 30,2019 and June 30,2018, there was
no balance outstanding under the line.

Note 6 — Retirement plan

The School sponsors a non-contributory 403(b) plan that covers all eligible employees. An eligible
employee can defer a portion of his/her compensation not to exceed limits set by the Internal
Revenue Code for a 403(b) plan. For fiscal years ended 2019 and 2018, the School contributed
$72,633 and $31,859 to the plan, respectively.

Note 7 — Related party transactions

The Chair, Vice Chair and a member of the Board of Trustees of the School are the Executive
Director, Assistant Executive Director and an employee, respectively, of the Agency, a not-for-profit
organization. During the 2019 and 2018 fiscal years, the School reimbursed the Agency
approximately $212,000 and $178,000, respectively, for expenses paid by the Agency relating to the
School’s utilities, repair and maintenance and other shared costs based upon the reimbursement
methods detailed in the lease between the two organizations. In addition, the School entered into a
lease agreement with the Agency to rent space (see note 35).
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EVERGREEN CHARTER SCHOOL

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
June 30,2019 and June 30,2018

Note 8 — Tax status

The School is exempt from income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code
(the “Code™). In addition, the School has been determined by the Internal Revenue Service to be a
publicly supported organization and not a private foundation within the meaning of Section 509(a)(1)
of the Code.




Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control
Over Financial Reporting

ConpON
O’MEARA
McGinty &5
DONNELLY LLP

Certified Public Accountants

One Battery Park Plaza
New York, NY 10004-1405
Tel: (212) 661 - 7777
Fax: (212) 661 -4010

and on Compliance and Other Matters Based
on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance
With Government Auditing Standards

To the Board of Trustees of
Evergreen Charter School

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of
Evergreen Charter School (the “School”) which comprise the statement of financial position as of
June 30, 2019 and the related statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the year

then ended and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated
September 25, 2019.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the School’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,
in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify
any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.




Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the School’s financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion
on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
School’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the School’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Condhs O'Mlann OWe3f = Chulf LLP

September 25,2019




EVERGREEN CHARTER SCHOOL

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

Section I — Summary of Auditor’s Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor’s report issued: Unmodified
Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified? Yes \ No
Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are
not considered to be material weakness(es)? Yes \ None noted
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? Yes \ No
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Evergreen Charter School
Statement of Financial Position
as of June 30

2019
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,661,914
Grants and contracts receivable 330,757
Accounts receivables 51,844
Prepaid Expenses 182,684
Contributions and other receivables -
Other current assets -
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 3,227,199
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, Building and Equipment, net $ 2,098,057
Restricted Cash 75,000
Security Deposits -
Other Non-Current Assets -
TOTAL NON-CURRENT 2,173,057
ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS 5,400,256

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 819,240
Accrued payroll, payroll taxes and benefits -
Current Portion of Loan Payable -
Due to Related Parties -
Refundable Advances -
Deferred Revenue -
Other Current Liabilities
TOTAL CURRENT 819,240
LIABILITIES
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Loan Payable; Due in More than One Year $ -
Deferred Rent -
Due to Related Party -
Other Long-Term Liabilities -

TOTAL LONG-TERM
LIABILITIES

TOTAL LIABILITIES 819,240




NET ASSETS
Unrestricted
Temporarily restricted
Permanently restricted

TOTAL NET ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

4,581,016

4,581,016

5,400,256




Evergreen Charter Sch
Statement of Financial Pc
as of June 30

2018

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $
Grants and contracts receivable
Accounts receivables
Prepaid Expenses
Contributions and other receivables
Other current assets

1,139,911
1,322,530
46,992
175,246

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, Building and Equipment, net $
Restricted Cash
Security Deposits
Other Non-Current Assets

2,684,679

1,022,097
75,000

59.904

TOTAL NON-CURRENT
ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

1,157,001

3,841,680

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $
Accrued payroll, payroll taxes and benefits
Current Portion of Loan Payable
Due to Related Parties
Refundable Advances
Deferred Revenue
Other Current Liabilities

697,060

TOTAL CURRENT
LIABILITIES
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Loan Payable; Due in More than One Year $
Deferred Rent
Due to Related Party
Other Long-Term Liabilities

697,060

TOTAL LONG-TERM
LIABILITIES

TOTAL LIABILITIES

697,060




NET ASSETS
Unrestricted
Temporarily restricted
Permanently restricted

TOTAL NET ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

3,144,620

3,144,620

3,841,680




Evergreen Charter School
Statement of Activities

OPERATING REVENUE
State and Local Per Pupil Revenue - Reg. Ed
State and Local Per Pupil Revenue - SPED
State and Local Per Pupil Facilities Revenue
Federal Grants
State and City Grants
Other Operating Income
Food Service/Child Nutrition Program

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE

EXPENSES
Program Services
Regular Education
Special Education
Other Programs
Total Program Services
Management and general
Fundraising

TOTAL EXPENSES
SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) FROM OPERATIONS

SUPPORT AND OTHER REVENUE
Interest and Other Income
Contributions and Grants
Fundraising Support
Investments
Donated Services
Other Support and Revenue

TOTAL SUPPORT AND OTHER REVENUE

Net Assets Released from Restrictions / Loss on

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR

as of June 30

2019

Unrestricted Temporarily
Restricted

$ 10,329,292 $ =

403,368

108,445
387.630

11,228,735

$ 5,540,821 $ -
373,880

2,470,492

8,385,193
1,407,146

9,792,339

1,436,396

$ - % -
1,436,396

$ 3,144,620 $ -



PRIOR YEAR/PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS -

NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR $ 4,581,016 $




2018

Total Total
10,329,292 $ 8,397,657
403,368 167,406
108,445 104,898
387,630 326.882
11,228,735 8,996,843
5,540,821 $ 5,115,544
373,880 369,674
2,470,492 1.371.175
8,385,193 6,856,393
1,407,146 1,445,794
9,792,339 8,302,187
1,436,396 694,656
R $ -
- $ .
1,436,396 694,656
3,144,620 $ 2,449,964



$ 4,581,016 $ 3,144,620




Evergreen Charter School
Statement of Cash Flows

CASH FLOWS - OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Increase (decrease) in net assets
Revenues from School Districts
Accounts Receivable
Due from School Districts
Depreciation
Grants Receivable
Due from NYS
Grant revenues
Prepaid Expenses
Accounts Payable
Accrued Expenses
Accrued Liabilities
Contributions and fund-raising activities
Miscellaneous sources
Deferred Revenue
Interest payments
Other
Other

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS - INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of equipment
Other
NET CASH PROVIDED FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS - FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Principal payments on long-term debt
Other
NET CASH PROVIDED FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS $

Cash at beginning of year
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR

as of Ju
2019

$ 1,436,396

261,736

991,773

(7,438)

122,180

(4,852)

$ 2,799,795
$

(1,337,696)

59,904

$ (1,277,792)
$

$ -

1,522,003

1,214,911

$ 2,736,914




ine 30

2018

$ 694,656

245,290
(1,073,163)

(19,262)
54,659

(4,574)

$ (102,394)

(354,880)
(59,904)
$ (414,784)

$ -

$ (517,178)
1,732,089
$ 1,214,911




Evergreen Charter School
Statement of Functional Expenses
as of June 30

2019
Program Services Suj
No. of Regular Special Other Total Fundraising
Positions Education Education Education
Personnel Services Costs $ $ $ $ $
Administrative Staff Personnel - - - - -
Instructional Personnel - 2,212,033 197,959 1,185,394 3,595,386
Non-Instructional Personnel - 611,520 - 231,550 843,070
Total Salaries and Staff - 2,823,553 197,959 1,416,944 4,438,456
Fringe Benefits & Payroll Taxes 602,474 42,239 302,340 947,053
Retirement -
Management Company Fees - - - -
Legal Service -
Accounting / Audit Services 54,485 3,820 27,342 85,647
Other Purchased / Professional / 92,790
Consulting Services 73,942 6,809 12,039
Building and Land Rent / Lease 939,924 54,421 225,835 1,220,180
Repairs & Maintenance 108,050 6,809 37,809 152,668
Insurance 20,685 1,450 10,380 32,515
Utilities 87,591 4,089 91,680
Supplies / Materials 136,573 11,174 103,592 251,339
Equipment / Furnishings 70,244 3,020 12,863 86,127
Staff Development 119,172 7,701 76,290 203,163
Marketing / Recruitment -
Technology 10,080 723 5,407 16,210
Food Service 231,181 20,297 111,924 363,402
Student Services 6,074 1,245 25,537 32,856

Office Expense 25,727 1,450 5,333 32,510



Depreciation 141,511 9,921 71,015 222,447
OTHER 89,555 4,842 21,753 116,150

Total Expenses $ 5,540,821 ¢$ 373,880 $ 2,470,492 ¢$ 8,385,193 $




2018

porting Services

Management Total Total
and General
$ $ $ $
783,921 783,921 783,921 767,144
- 3,595,386 2,811,651
- - 843,070 654,363
783,921 783,921 5,222,377 4,233,158
167,269 167,269 1,114,322 960,703
15,127 15,127 100,774 184,169
79,890 172,680
79,890 38,222
215,508 215,508 1,435,688 1,327,721
26,964 26,964 179,632 156,085
5,743 5,743 38,258 35,906
16,193 16,193 107,873 123,372
43,467 43,467 294,806 264,913
- - 86,127 57,277
- - 203,163 187,399
2,863 2,863 19,073 -
- - 363,402 312,466
- 32,856 15,826
5,742 5,742 38,252 104,490



39,289 39,289 261,736 245,289
5.170 5,170 121,320 55.191

$ 1,407,146 $ 1,407,146 $ 9,792,339 $ 8,302,187




E Entry 5c Additional Financial Docs

Created: 10/28/2019 -« Last updated: 10/29/2019

The additional items listed below should be uploaded if applicable. Please explain the reason(s) if the
items are not included. Examples might include: a written management letter was not issued; the school
did not expend federal funds in excess of the Single Audit Threshold of $750,000; the corrective action
plan will be submitted by the following date (should be no later than 30 days from the submission of the
report); etc.

Section Heading

1. Management Letter

https://nysed cso reports.fluidreview.com/resp/118749431/8mMIlunnVv3/

Explanation for not uploading (No response)
the Management Letter.

2. Form 990
https://nysed cso reports.fluidreview.com/resp/118749431/FINDgRIBTE/

Explanation for not uploading (No response)
the Form 990.

3. Federal Single Audit

Note: A copy of the Federal Single Audit must be filed with the Federal Audit Clearinghouse. Please refer
to OMB Uniform Guidelines for the federal filing requirements.

(No response)
Explanation for not uploading We did not expend more than $750,000 in federal funds.

the Federal Single Audit.

4. CSP Agreed Upon Procedure Report

(No response)

Explanation for not uploading Not applicable.
the procedure report.
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5. Evidence of Required Escrow Account

Note: For BOR schools chartered or renewed after the 2017-2018 school year, the
escrow account per school is $100,000.

https://nysed cso reports.fluidreview.com/resp/118749431/pN6HONalce/

Explanation for not uploading (No response)
the Escrow evidence.

6. Corrective Action Plan

A Corrective Action Plan for Audit Findings and Management Letter Recommendations, which must
include:

a. The person responsible

b. The date action was taken, or will be taken
c. Description of the action taken

d. Evidence of implementation (if available)

https://nysed cso reports.fluidreview.com/resp/118749431/|IDKdnGTC4H/

Explanation for not uploading (No response)

the Corrective Action Plan.
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ConpoN
O’MEARA
McGintyY &F
DONNELLY LLP

Certified Public Accountants

One Battery Park Plaza
New York, NY 10004-1405
Tel: (212) 661 - 7777
Fax: (212) 661 -4010

September 25, 2019

Mr. Gil Bernardino
President

Evergreen Charter School
605 Peninsula Boulevard
Hempstead, NY 11550

Dear Mr. Bernardino:

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the Evergreen Charter School
(the “School™) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, we considered the School’s internal control
over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the
purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control.

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect
and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or combination of
deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be significant
deficiencies or material weaknesses.




2

Although our consideration would not necessarily disclose all matters that concern the internal
control, we submit, for your consideration, a comment and recommendation, which we believe is
an opportunity for strengthening the internal control.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Trustees, management
and the New York State Department of Education and is not intended to be used and should not
be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

We wish to express our appreciation for the cooperation and courtesies extended to our
representatives during the audit. We would be pleased to discuss our comments with you
further, should you so desire.

Very truly yours,

Codn Otoan D 5 (et LL

cc: Sarah Brewster, Ph.D., J.D., LM.S.W., Vice President
José Canosa, Esq., Treasurer
Ms. Lisett M. Knox, Director of Finance and Operations
Mr. Matthew D. Dapolito, CPA
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General

On December 18, 2013, the Nonprofit Revitalization Act (the “Act”) was signed into law by
New York State. The Act modernizes the laws applicable to nonprofits and enhances nonprofit
governance and oversight. Most provisions of the Act took effect on July 1, 2014 and the
remaining provisions of the Act took effect on January 1, 2015. We again recommend that the
School familiarize itself with the Act in order to be in compliance with the required guidelines of
the Act. The School may also wish to consult with legal counsel regarding the Act to ensure its
compliance with its applicable provisions.






















































































































































































































Business Market Rate Savings

September 30,2019 | Page 1 of 3

Questions?

. E EVERGREEN CHARTER SCHOOL Avlailable by p‘hoqe 24 go'urs ;r da?/, 7 da)lfls q week: ;
I'ﬁ {605 PENINSULA BLVD Telecommunications Relay Services calls accepte

HEMPSTEAD NY 11550-5424 1-800-CALL-WELLS (1-800-225-5935)
TTY: 1-800-877-4833
En espanol: 1-877-337-7454

Online: wellsfargo.com/biz

Write: Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. (348)
r.0O. box 6955
Portland, OR 97228-6995

Your Business and Wells Fargo

s>ince August 2003, the Wells Fargo/Gallup Small Business Index has surveyed small business owners on current and future perceptions of
their business financial situation. View the latest results at wellsfargoworks.com.

__A\__».‘

__-tivity summary Account number: _
Beginning balance on 9/1 $83,521.40 EVERGREEN CHARTER SCHOOL
Deposits/Credits 2.06 New York account terms and conditions apply
Withdrawals/Debits - 0.00 For Direct Deposit use
Ending balance on 9/30 $83,523.46 Routing Number (RTN)_

For Wire Transfers use
Average ledger balance this period $83,521.40 Routing Number (HTN):_

Interest summary '

Interest paid this statement $2.06
Average collectad balance $83,521.40
Annual percentage yield earned 0.03%
Interest earned this statement period $2.06

Interest paid this year $17.82




September 30, 2019 m Page 2 of 3

Transaction history

- Deposits/ Withdrawals/ Ending daily
Date Description ' Credits Debits balance
a0 IIClEstRayment s e e e e L BOD S e e B30 b
Ending balance on 9/30 83,523.46
Totals $2.06 $0.00

The Ending Daily Balance does not reflect any pending withdrawals or holds on depaosited funds that may have been outstanding on your account when your
transactions posted. If you had insufficient available funds when a transaction posted, fees may have been assessed.

Monthly service fee summary

For a complete list of fees and detailed account information, see the Wells Fargo Account Fee and Information Schedule and Account Agreement applicable to
your account (EasyPay Card Terms and Conditions for prepaid cards) or talk to 2 banker. Co to wellsfarge.com/iesiag for a link Lo these documents, and answers
to common monthly service fee questions.

Fee period 09/01/2019 - 09/30/2019 ~ Standard monthly service fee $6.00 You paid $0.00
How to avoid the monthly service fee Minimum required This fee period
Have any ONE of the following account requirements

« Average collected balance $500.00 $83,521.00 [V]

- Total automatic transfers from an eligible Wells Fargo business checking account $25.00 $0.00
YOG

Account transaction fees summary
Units Excess Service charge per Total service

Service charge description Units used ~included units excess units () 7 charge (S)
DEpOSIEATEIE & e e e e D e e O
Cash Deposited (S) 0 5,000 0 0.0030 0.00

Total service charges | $0.00
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General statement policies for Wells Fargo Bank

B Notice: Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. may furnish information about accounts

bel

onging to individuals, including sole proprietorships, to consumer

reporting agencies. If this applies to you, you have the right to dispute the
accuracy of information that we have reported by writing to us at: Overdraft

Col

lections and Recovery, P.O. Box 5058, Portland, OR 97208-5058.

You must describe the specific information that is inaccurate or in dispute

and the basis for any dispute with supporting documentation, in the case of
information that relates to an identity theft, you will need to provide us with
an identity theft report.

Account Balance Calculation Worksheet

CA

220

1. Use the following worksheet to calculate your overall account balance.
2. Go through your register and mark each check, withdrawal, ATM
transaction, payment, deposit or other credit listed on your statement.
Be sure that your register shows any interest paid into your account and
any service charges, automatic payments or ATM transactions withdrawn
from your account during this statement period. |
3. Use the chart to the right to list any depcjsits,‘ transfers to ydﬁr account,
outstanding checks, ATM withdrawals, ATM payments or any other
withdrawals (including any from previous months} which are listed in
your register but not shown on your statement.
ENTER
A. The ending balance
shown on your statement........ccoevveens. S S
ADD
B. Any deposits listed in your S
“egister or transfers into $
your account which are not S
shown on your statement, 2j= §
.......................................... TOTAL $
CALCULATE THE SUBTOTAL
(Add Parts A and B)
.......................................... TOTAL $
SUBTRACT
C. The total outstanding checks and
withdrawals from the chart above............. - $

LCULATE THE ENDING BALANCE
(Part A+ Part B-Part C)
This amount should be the same

as the current balance shownin | S
YOUF CReCKTRGISIEE L L e o lir ynmains sows poomnims some S

10 Wells Fargo Bank, NLA. All rights reserved. Member FDIC. NMLSR ID 399801

Number | ~ Items Outstanding Amount

Total amount $







25 |

Entry 5d Financial Services Contact Information

Regents, NYCDOE and Buffalo BOE authorized schools should enter the financial contact information
requested and upload the independent auditor's report and internal controls reports as one combined
file.

EVERGREEN CHARTER SCHOOLSection Heading

1. School Based Fiscal Contact Information

School Based Fiscal Contact School Based Fiscal Contact School Based Fiscal Contact
Name Email Phone

2. Audit Firm Contact Information

School Audit Contact  School Audit Contact School Audit Contact Years Working With
Name Email Phone This Audit Firm

3. If applicable, please provide contact information for the school's outsourced
financial services firm.

Firm Name Contact Mailing Email Phone Years with
Person Address Firm

Nonprofit

Fiscal Matt Dapolito 10

Management

1/1



New York State Education Department

Request for Proposals to Establish Charter Schools Authorized by the
Board of Regents

2019-20 Budget & Cash Flow Template

General Instructions and Notes for New Application Budgets and Cash Flows Templates

Complete ALL SIX columns in BLUE

Enter information into the GRAY cells

Cells containing RED triangles in the upper right corner in columns B through G contain guidance on
that particular item

School district per-pupil tuition information is located on the State Aid website at
https://stateaid.nysed.gov/charter/. Rows may be inserted in the worksheet to accomodate
additional districts if necessary.

The Assumptions column should be completed for all revenue and expense items unless the item is
self-explanatory. Where applicable, please reference the page number or section in the application
narrative that indicates the assumption being made. For instance, student enroliment would
reference the applicable page number in Section |, C of the application narrative.




Evergreen Charter School

PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2018-2019

July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020

Please Note The student enroliment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 15-5. This wm populate the data in row 10.

Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income

Actual Student Enroliment
Total Paid Student Enrollment

REGULAR SPECIAL MANAGEMENT &

EDUCATION EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING GENERAL TOTAL
12,302,788 - - - - 12,302,788
10,605,951 387,468 - - 1,298,900 12,292,319

1,696,837 (387,468) - - (1,298,900) 10,469
600 - -
600 - 600

PROGRAM SERVICES

REGULAR

SPECIAL

SUPPORT SERVICES

MANAGEMENT &

REVENUE
REVENUES FROM STATE SOURCES
Per Pupil Revenue
District of Location
School District 1 Baldwin
School District 2 Copiague
School District 3 East Islip
School District 4 East Meadow
School District 5 Freeport
School District 6 Hempstead
School District 7 Hicksville
School District 8 Lawrence
School District 9 Malverne
School District 10 Rockville Centre
School District 11 Roosevelt
School District 12 Uniondale
School District 13 Valley Stream 13
School District 14 Westbury
School District 15 West Hempstead
School District 16

Special Education Revenue
Grants

Stimulus

Other
Other State Revenue

CY Per Pupil Rate

EDUCATION

EDUCATION

FUNDRAISING

GENERAL

$16,833.00 116,064 = - - - 116,064
$16,560.00 32,623 = = = - 32,623
$15,810.00 15,573 15,573
$17,275.00 17,016 17,016
$17,468.00 292,502 292,502
$19,578.00 10,220,695 10,220,695
$16,374.00 16,128 16,128
$23,196.00 45,696 45,696
$22,175.00 43,685 43,685
$20,551.00 20,243 20,243
$18,225.00 53,855 53,855
$21,983.00 627,944 627,944
$16,972.00 16,717 16,717
$20,991.00 41,352 41,352
$17,513.00 17,250 - - - - 17,250

11,577,343 11,577,343

TOTAL REVENUE FROM STATE SOURCES

REVENUE FROM FEDERAL FUNDING

IDEA Special Needs

Title |

Title Funding - Other

School Food Service (Free Lunch)

Grants
Charter School Program (CSP) Planning & Implementation
Other

Other Federal Revenue

11,577,343 11,577,343

208,620

208,620

433,200

433,200

TOTAL REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES

LOCAL and OTHER REVENUE
Contributions and Donations, Fundraising
Erate Reimbursement
Interest Income, Earnings on Investments,
NYC-DYCD (Department of Youth and Community Developmt.)
Food Service (Income from meals)

641,820 641,820




Evergreen Charter School

PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2018-2019

July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020

Please Note The student enroliment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 15-5. This wm populate the data in row 10.

Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income

Actual Student Enroliment
Total Paid Student Enrollment

REGULAR SPECIAL MANAGEMENT &

EDUCATION EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING GENERAL TOTAL
12,302,788 - - - - 12,302,788
10,605,951 387,468 - - 1,298,900 12,292,319

1,696,837 (387,468) - - (1,298,900) 10,469
600 - -

REGULAR

PROGRAM SERVICES
SPECIAL

SUPPORT SERVICES

MANAGEMENT &

Text Book
Other Local Revenue

EDUCATION

EDUCATION

OTHER

FUNDRAISING

GENERAL

TOTAL REVENUE FROM LOCAL and OTHER SOURCES

TOTAL REVENUE

EXPENSES
ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF PERSONNEL COSTS
Executive Management
Instructional Management
Deans, Directors & Coordinators
CFO / Director of Finance
Operation / Business Manager
Administrative Staff
TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF

INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS
Teachers - Regular
Teachers - SPED
Substitute Teachers
Teaching Assistants
Specialty Teachers
Aides
Therapists & Counselors
Other

No. of Positions

83,625
83,625

83,625
83,625

12,302,788 12,302,788

TOTAL INSTRUCTIONAL

NON-INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS
Nurse
Librarian
Custodian
Security
Other - Cafeteria
TOTAL NON-INSTRUCTIONAL

SUBTOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS

PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS

Payroll Taxes
Fringe / Employee Benefits
Retirement / Pension

6 00

300 - - - - 387,968 387,968

100 - - - : 92,700 92,700

900 - - - - 423,509 423,509
13 904,177 904,177
3200 2,258,921 - - - - 2,258,921

400 - 306,000 - : - 306,000

200 140,000 - - : : 140,000

2400 1,597,499 - - - - 1,597,499

3000 298,018 - - - - 298,018

250 177,000 - - - - 177,000

| 95 ] 4,471,438 306,000 4,777,438
200 151,250 - - - - 151,250

1000 328,472 : - - - 328,472

254,289 - - - - 254,289

734,011 734,011
5,205,449 306,000 904,177 6,415,626

TOTAL PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS
TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS

CONTRACTED SERVICES
Accounting / Audit

398,217 23,409 - - 69,170 490,795

955,200 56,151 - - 165,916 1,177,267

1,353,417 79,560 235,086 1,668,063
6,558,865 385,560 1,139,263 8,083,688

[ - -1 -1 -1 114,000 | 114,000




Evergreen Charter School

PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2018-2019

July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020

Please Note The student enroliment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 15-5. This wm populate the data in row 10.

Total Revenue

Total Expenses

Net Income

Actual Student Enroliment
Total Paid Student Enrollment

Legal

Management Company Fee

Nurse Services

Food Service / School Lunch

Payroll Services

Special Ed Services

Titlement Services (i e. Title 1)

Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting

REGULAR SPECIAL MANAGEMENT &
EDUCATION EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING GENERAL TOTAL
12,302,788 5 - 12,302,788
10,605,951 387,468 1,298,900 12,292,319
1,696,837 (387,468) (1,298,900) 10,469
600 - -
600 5 600
PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORT SERVICES
REGULAR SPECIAL MANAGEMENT &
EDUCATION EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING GENERAL
5 = 40,000 40,000
32,455 1,908 5637 40,000
135,000 135,000

TOTAL CONTRACTED SERVICES

SCHOOL OPERATIONS
Board Expenses

167,455 1,908 159,637 329,000

Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials 97,327 - - 97,327
Special Ed Supplies & Materials - - - -
Textbooks / Workbooks = - - -
Supplies & Materials other 271,618 - - 271,618
Equipment / Furniture 293,000 - - 293,000
Telephone 38,000 - - 38,000
Technology 26,500 - - 26,500
Student Testing & Assessment = o - -
Field Trips 20,000 - - 20,000
Transportation (student) = - - -
Student Services - other 46,000 - - 46,000
Office Expense 38,000 - - 38,000
Staff Development 213,000 - - 213,000
Staff Recruitment 13,500 - - 13,500
Student Recruitment / Marketing = = - -
School Meals / Lunch 522,390 - - 522,390
Travel (Staff) 5,000 - - 5,000
Fundraising = - - -
Other 92,180 - - 92,180
FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE
Insurance 110,000 - - 110,000
Janitorial 80,000 - - 80,000
Building and Land Rent / Lease 1,759,936 - - 1,759,936
Repairs & Maintenance 110,500 - - 110,500
Equipment / Furniture - - - -
Security = - - -
Utilities 142,680 - - 142,680

TOTAL FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION
DISSOLUTION ESCROW & RESERVES / CONTIGENCY

2,203,116 2,203,116




Evergreen Charter School

PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2018-2019

July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020

Please Note The student enroliment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 15, This wm populate the data in row 10.

Total Revenue

Total Expenses

Net Income

Actual Student Enroliment
Total Paid Student Enrollment

REGULAR SPECIAL MANAGEMENT &

EDUCATION EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING GENERAL TOTAL
12,302,788 - - - - 12,302,788
10,605,951 387,468 - - 1,298,900 12,292,319

1,696,837 (387,468) - - (1,298,900) 10,469
600 - -

REGULAR

PROGRAM SERVICES
SPECIAL

SUPPORT SERVICES

MANAGEMENT &

EDUCATION

TOTAL EXPENSES

NET INCOME

ENROLLMENT - *School Districts Are Linked To Above Entries*

District of Location

School District 1 Baldwin
School District 2 Copiague
School District 3 East Islip
School District 4 East Meadow
School District 5 Freeport
School District 6 Hempstead
School District 7 Hicksville
School District 8 Lawrence
School District 9 Malverne
School District 10 Rockville Centre
School District 11 Roosevelt
School District 12 Uniondale
School District 13 Valley Stream 13
School District 14 Westbury
School District 15 West Hempstead

TOTAL ENROLLMENT

REVENUE PER PUPIL

EXPENSES PER PUPIL

10,605,951

EDUCATION

387,468

OTHER

FUNDRAISING

GENERAL

1,298,900

12,292,319

REGULAR SPECIAL TOTAL
EDUCATION EDUCATION ENROLLED

7 7

2 2

1 1

1 1

17 17

530 530

1 1

2 2

2 2

1 1

3 3

29 29

1 1

2 2

1 1

600 ()




Assumgtions

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note

when




Assumgtions

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note

when

List exact titles and staff FTE"s ( Full time eqiuilivalent)




Assumgtions

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note

when




Assumgtions

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note

when




Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Board of
Trustees Member — Board of Regents-Authorized Charter Schools

Name:
Gil Bernardino

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (the Charter School Name,
if the charter school is the only school operated by the education
corporation);

Evergreen Charter School

1.

List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees
(“Board”) (e.g. president, treasurer, parent representative).

President of the Board of Trustees

Are you an employee of any school operated by the education corporation?
Yes __ X _No

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you
hold, your responsibilities, your salary and your start date.

Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school,
education corporation, and/or an entity that provides comprehensive
management services (‘CMQ”), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which
contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or education corporation;
or do you serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling
interest in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans
to contract or do business with, the charter school, education corporation,
and/or a CMO, whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not limited to,
the lease of real or personal property to the said entities?

Yes __ X No

If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.




4. ldentify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that
you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with
you in your house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s)
operated by the education corporation during the time you have served on the
Board, and in the six-month period prior to such service, If there has been no
such interest or transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered
Yes to Questions 2-3 above, you need not disclose again your employment

status, salary, etc.

Date(s) Nature of Steps taken to Name of person
financial interest/ | avoid a conflict | holding interest or
transaction of interest, engaging in
(e.g., did not transaction and
vote, did not relationship to
participate in you
discussion)
2018-2019 | work for the Disclosed
School Year landlord of the conflict of Sarah Brewster,
school. My wife is | interest with wife.
also on the Board | respect to
of Trustees working for
landlord and
recused self
from voting
when applicable.










Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Board of
Trustees Member — Board of Regents-Authorized Charter Schools

Name:
Sarah Brewster

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (the Charter School Name,
if the charter school is the only school operated by the education
corporation):

Evergreen Charter School

1. List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees
(“Board”) (e.g. president, treasurer, parent representative).

Vice President of the Board of Trustees

2. Are you an employee of any school operated by the education corporation?
Yes _ X_ No

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you
hold, your responsibilities, your salary and your start date.

3. Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school,
education corporation, and/or an entity that provides comprehensive
management services (“CMO"), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which
contracts, or may confract, with the charter school or education corporation;
or do you serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling
interest in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans
to contract or do business with, the charter school, education corporation,
and/or a CMO, whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not limited to,
the lease of real or personal property to the said entities?

Yes X No

It Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.




4. ldentify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that
you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with
you in your house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s)
operated by the education corporation during the time you have served on the
Board, and in the six-month period prior to such service. If there has been no
such interest or transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered
Yes to Questions 2-3 above, you need not disclose again your employment
status, salary, etc.

Date(s) Nature of Steps taken to Name of person
financial interest/ | avoid a conflict | holding interest or
transaction of interest, engaging in
(e.g., did not transaction and
vote, did not relationship to
participate in you
discussion)
2018-2019 I work for the Disclosed
School Year landlord of the conflict of Gil Bernardino
school. My interest with husband.
husband is also on | respect to
the Board of working for
Trustees landlord and
recused self
from voting
when applicable.










Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Board of

Trustees Member — Board of Regents-Authorized Charter Schools

Name:
Jose Fernando Canosa

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (the Charter School Name,
if the charter school is the only school operated by the education
corporation): ’

Evergreen Charier School

1. List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees
(“Board”) (e.g. president, treasurer, parent representative).

Member of the Board of Trustees

2. Are you an employee of any school operated by the education corporation?
Yes _ X_No

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you
hold, your responsibilities, your salary and your start date.

3. Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school,
education corporation, andfor an entity that provides comprehensive
management services (“CMOQO”), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which
contracts, or may contract, with the chaiter school or education corporation;
or do you serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling
interest in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans
to contract or do business with, the charter school, education corporation,
and/or a CMO, whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not limited to,
the lease of real or personal property to the said entities?

Yes X No

If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.




4. ldentify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that
you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with
you in your house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s)
operated by the education corporation during the time you have served on the
Board, and in the six-month period prior to such service. If there has been no
such interest or transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered
Yes to Questions 2-3 above, you need not disclose again your employment

status, salary, etc.

Date(s) Nature of | Steps taken to Name of person
financial interest/ | avoid a conflict | holding interest or
transaction of interest, engaging in
(e.g., did not transaction and
vote, did not relationship to
participate in you
discussion)
None.




5. Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm,
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or
employee of an organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are
doing business with the school(s) through a management or services
agreement, please identify only the name of the organization, your position in
the organization, and the relationship between such organization and the
school(s). If there was no financial interest, write “None.”

Organization | Nature of Approximate Name of Trustee
conducting business value of the and/or immediate
business conducted business family member of Stens
with the conducted household holding i P
, . aken to
school(s) an interest in the avoid
organization -
conducting business c?nfllct of
with the school(s) interest
and the nature of the
interest
None.
/ / % {7~ 2@/?
tule Date

Please note that this document is considered a public record and, as such, may
be made available to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of
Information Law. Personal contact information provided below will be redacted.






Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Board of
Trustees Member — Board of Regents-Authorized Charter Schools

Name:
Gladys Rodriguez

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (the Charter School Name,
if the charter school is the only school operated by the education
corporation):

Evergreen Charter School

1. List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees
(“Board”) (e.g. president, treasurer, parent representative).

Member of the Board of Trustees

2, Are you an employee of any school operated by the education corporation?
Yes _ X_ No

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you
hold, your responsibilities, your salary and your start date.

3. Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school,
education corporation, and/or an entity that provides comprehensive
management services (“CMOQ"), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which
contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or education corporation;
or do you serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling
interest in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans
to contract or do business with, the charter school, education corporation,
and/or a CMO, whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not limited to,
the lease of real or personal properiy to the said entities?

Yes X No

If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.




4.

[dentify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that
you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with
you in your house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s)
operated by the education corporation during the time you have served on the
Board, and in the six-month period prior to such service. If there has been no
such interest or transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered
Yes to Questions 2-3 above, you need not disclose again your employment

status, salary, etc.

Date(s) Nature of Steps takento | Name of person
financial interest/ | avoid a conflict | holding interest or
transaction of interest, engaging in
(e.g., did not transaction and
vote, did not relationship to
participate in you
discussion)
None.




5. ldentify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm,
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or
employee of an organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are
doing business with the school(s) through a managemént or services
agreement, please identify only the name of the organization, your position in
the organization, and the relationship between such organization and the
school(s). If there was no financial interest, write “None.”

Organization | Nature of | Approximate Name of Trustee
conducting business value of the and/or immediate
business conducted business family member of Steps
with the conducted household holding P
, . taken to
school(s) an interest in the avoid
organization conflict of
conducting business .
with the school(s) Interest
and the nature of the
interest
None.

Mﬁiﬂ{@u Qune_ 19, 2017

SigAature ’ Date

Please note that this document is considered a public record and, as such, may
be made available to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of
Information Law. Personal contact information provided below will be redacted.







Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Board of
_Trustees Member - Board of Regenis-Authorized Charter Schools

Name:
Nancy Iglesias

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (the Charter School Name,
if the charter school is the only school operated by the education
corporation}:

Evergreen Charter School

1. List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees
("Board”) (e.g. president, treasurer, parent representative).

Member of the Board of Trustees

2. Are you an employee of any school operated by the education corporation?
Yes __ X_No

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you
hold, your responsibilities, your salary and your start date.

3. Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school,
education corporation, and/or an entity that provides comprehensive
management services ("CMQ), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which
contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or education corporation;
or do you serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling
interest in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans
to contract or do business with, the charter school, education corporation,
and/or a CMO, whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not limited to,
the lease of real or personal property to the said entities?

Yes X No

If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.




4. Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that
you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with
you in your house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s)
operated by the education corporation during the time you have served on the
Board, and in the six-month period prior to such service. If there has been no
such interest or transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered
Yes to Questions 2-3 above, you need not disclose again your employment
status, salary, etc.

Date(s) | Nature of Steps taken to | Name of person
financial interest/ | avoid a conflict | holding interest or
transaction “of interest, engaging in
(e.g., did not | transaction and
vote, did not | relationship to
participate in you
discussion)
| None. |




5. identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm,
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a
financial interest or other refationship. If you are a member, director, officer or
employee of an organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are
doing business with the school(s} through a management or services
agreement, please identify only the name of the organization, your position in
the organization, and the relationship between such organization and the
school(s). If there was no financial interest, write “None.”

Organization | Nature of | Approximate Name of Trustee
conducting business value of the and/or immediate
business | conducted | business family member of Steps
with the conducted household holding take:? o
school(s) an interest in the avoid
organization conflict of
conducting business int t
with the school(s) interes
and the nature of the
interest
None.
v -:---.-.._)_..,.’..__ AF"
IR et S M 7/ 1) Ze /s
Date / ’

Signa'\ture =

Please note that this document is considered a public record and, as such, may
be made available to members of the public upori request under the Freedom of
Information Law. Personal contact information provided below will be redacted.







Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Board of
Trustees Member — Board of Regents-Authorized Charter Schools

Name:
Yvonne Mowatt

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (the Charter School Name,
if the charter school is the only school operated by the education
corporation):

Evergreen Charter School

1. List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees
(“Board”) (e.g. president, treasurer, parent representative).

Member of the Board of Trustees

2. Are you an employee of any school operated by the education corporation?
Yes _ X__No

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you
hold, your responsibilities, your salary and your start date.

3. Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school,
education corporation, and/or an entity that provides comprehensive
management services (“CMO™), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which
contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or education corporation;
or do you serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling
interest in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans
to contract or do business with, the charter school, education corporation,
and/or a CMO, whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not limited to,
the lease of real or personal property to the said entities?

Yes __ X No

If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.




4.

Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that
you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with
you in your house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s)
operated by the education corporation during the time you have served on the
Board, and in the six-month period prior to such service. If there has been no
such interest or transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered
Yes to Questions 2-3 above, you need not disclose again your employment
status, salary, etc.

Date(s) Nature of Steps taken to Name of person
financial interest/ | avoid a conflict | holding interest or
transaction of interest, engaging in
(e.g., did not transaction and
vote, did not relationship to
participate in you
discussion)
None.




5. ldentify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm,
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or
employee of an organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are
doing business with the school(s) through a management or services
agreement, please identify only the name of the organization, your position in
the organization, and the relationship between such organization and the
school(s). If there was no financial interest, write “None.”

Organization | Nature of | Approximate Name of Trustee
conducting | business value of the and/or immediate
business | conducted business family member of Steps
with the conducted household holding P
. . taken to
school(s) an interest in the id
organization a\fllq : t of
. . conflict o
conducting business interest

with the school(s)
and the nature of the

W, mﬁz@ﬁ‘ %/! s?l// ¢

Please note that this document is considered a public record and, as such, may
be made available to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of
Information Law. Personal contact information provided below will be redacted.







Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Board of
Trustees Member — Board of Regents-Authorized Charter Schools

Name:
Luis Ras

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (the Charter School Name,
if the charter school is the only school operated by the education
corporation):

Evergreen Charter School

1. List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees
(“Board”) (e.g. president, treasurer, parent representative).

Member of the Board of Trustees

2. Are you an employee of any school operated by the education corporation?
Yes _X__No

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you
hold, your responsibilities, your salary and your start date.

3. Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school,
education corporation, and/or an entity that provides comprehensive
management services (“CMO”"), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which
contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or education corporation;
or do you serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling
interest in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans
to contract or do business with, the charter school, education corporation,
and/or a CMO, whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not limited to,
the lease of real or personal property to the said entities?

Yes X No

If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.




4.

Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that
you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with
you in your house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s)
operated by the education corporation during the time you have served on the
Board, and in the six-month period prior to such service. If there has been no
such interest or transaction, write None. Please note that if you-answered
Yes to Questions 2-3 above, you need not disclose again your employment

status, salary, etc.

Date(s) Nature of Steps taken to Name of person
financial interest/ | avoid a conflict | holding interest or
transaction of interest, engaging in
{e.g., did not transaction and
vote, did not relationship to
participate in you
discussion)
None.




5. Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm,
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or
employee of an organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are
doing business with the school(s) through a management or services
agreement, please identify only the name of the organization, your position in
the organization, and the relationship between such organization and the
school(s). If there was no financial interest, write “None.”

Organization | Nature of | Approximate Name of Trustee
conducting business value of the and/or immediate
business conducted business family member of .
with the conducted household holding P
: : taken to
school(s) an interest in the .
g avoid
organization :
. . conflict of
conducting business :
interest

with the school(s)
and the nature of the
interest

None.

\\

Signature | ™ Date

§/(5/x:
[ &

Please note that this document is considered a public record and, as such, may
be made available to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of
Information Law. Personal contact information provided below will be redacted.







Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Board of
Trustees Member ~ Board of Regents-Authorized Charter Schools

Name:
Ariel Sotelo

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (the Charter School Name,
if the charter school is the only school operated by the education
corporation):

Evergreen Charter School

1. List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees
("Board”) (e.g. president, treasurer, parent representative).

Member of the Board of Trustees

2. Are you an employee of any school operated by the education corporation?
Yes _ X _No

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you
hold, your responsibilities, your salary and your start date.

3. Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school,
education corporation, and/or an entity that provides comprehensive
management services (“CMO”), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which
contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or education corporation;
or do you serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling
interest in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans
to contract or do business with, the charter school, education corporation,
and/or a CMO, whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not limited to,
the lease of real or personal property to the said entities?

Yes X No

If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.




4. Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that
you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with
you in your house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s)
operated by the education corporation during the time you have served on the
Board, and in the six-month period prior to such service. If there has been no
such interest or transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered
Yes to Questions 2-3 above, you need not disclose again your employment
status, salary, etc.

Date(s) Nature of Steps taken to Name of person
financial avoid a conflict | holding interest or
interest/transacti of interest, engaging in

on (e.g., did not transaction and
vote, did not relationship to

participate in you

discussion)
Not applicable.




5. ldentify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm,
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or
employee of an organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are
doing business with the school(s) through a management or services
agreement, please identify only the name of the organization, your position in
the organization, and the relationship between such organization and the
school(s). If there was no financial interest, write “None.”

Organization | Nature of | Approximate Name of Trustee
conducting | business value of the and/or immediate
business conducted business family member of Steps
with the conducted household holding P
- A taken to
school(s) an interest in the avoid
organization .
. . conflict of
conducting business .
with the school(s) Interest
and the nature of the
interest
Circulo de la | Circulo is The rent is | work for the landlord | Disclosed
Hispanidad the tandlord | approximately | of the charter school, | conflict of
of the $1,200,000a | Circulo de la interest with
school. year. Hispanidad. respect to
working for
landlord and
recused self
from voting
when
applicable.,
&/199
Signatdre” Date

Please note that this document is considered a public record and, as such, may
be made available to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of
information Law. Personal contact information provided below will be redacted.







Entry 8 BOT Table

Last updated: 07/18/2019

1. SUNY AUTHORIZED charter schools are required to provide information for VOTING Trustees only.
2. REGENTS, NYCDOE, and BUFFALO BOE AUTHORIZED charter schools are required to provide
information for all VOTING and NON VOTING trustees.

1. Current Board Member Information (Enter info for each BOT member)

Trustee Position Committ  Voting Number Start End Date Board
Name on the ee Member of Terms  Date of of Meetings
and Board Affiliation Per By Served Current Current Attended
Email S Laws Term Term During
Address (Y/N) (MM/DD/Y (MM/DD/Y 2018 19
YYY) YYY)
Executive
Gil Financial,
Bernardin  Chair Educatio Yes 3 09/01/20 08/31/20 11
n and 17 20
o}
Accounta
bility,
Personnel
Executive
, Finance,
Jose Treasurer Educatio Yes 5 09/01/20 8/31/202 7
Canosa n and 18 1
Accounta
bility
Executive
, Finance,
Sarah Vice Educatio 09/01/20  8/31/202
. n and Yes 3 11
Brewster Chair 18 1
Accounta
bility,
Personnel
Gladys Executive
Rodrigue Secretary , Finance, Yes 3 (1)2/01/20 3/31/201 9
y4 Personnel
Educatio
n and
Nancy  Trustee/m ~ccounta 09/01/20  08/31/20
. bility, Yes 2 6
Iglesias ember : 18 21
Executive
Personnel

1/3



6 Yvonne
Mowatt

7 Ariel
Sotelo

8 Luis Ras

9

Trustee/M
ember

Treasurer

Trustee/M
ember

la. Are there more than 9

members of the Board of

Trustees?

Executive
, Finance,
Personnel

Educatio
n and
Accounta
bility,
Finance
and
Personnel

Executive

Personnel

No

Yes

Yes

Yes

09/01/20
18

09/01/20
17

09/01/20
17

2. INFORMATION ABOUT MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES

1. SUNY-AUTHORIZED charter schools provide response relative to VOTING Trustees only.
2. REGENTS, NYCDOE, and BUFFALO BOE-AUTHORIZED charter schools provide a response

relative to all trustees.

a. Total Number of BOT Members on

June 30, 2019 8
b.Total Number of Members Added 0
During 2018 19
c. Total Number of Members who 0
Departed during 2018 19
d.Total Number of members in 2018 19,
as set by in Bylaws, Resolution or 8
Minutes
3. Number of Board meetings 11
held during 2018-19
4. Number of Board meetings 11

scheduled for 2019-20

2/3

08/31/20
21

08/31/20
20

08/31/20
20

8

8

9



Thank you.

3/3



Entry 9 - Board Meeting Minutes

Last updated: 07/18/2019

Instructions for submitting minutes of the BOT monthly meetings

Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized schools must either provide a link to a complete set of
minutes that are posted on the charter school website, or upload a complete set of board meeting
minutes from July 2018 June 2019, which should match the number of meetings held during the 2018 19
school year.

EVERGREEN CHARTER SCHOOL

Are all monthly BOT meeting No
minutes posted, which should

match the number of meetings

held during 2018-19 school year,

on the charter school's website?

B. Upload all monthly Board meeting minutes, which should match the number of
meetings held during the 2018-19 school year.

Combine all monthly meeting minutes into one .PDF file.

https://nysed cso reports.fluidreview.com/resp/109727652/WwNFCVDEEJA/

1/1



Evergreen Charter School
Meeting of the Board of Trustees
605 Peninsuia Blvd, Hempstead, NY 11550

Minutes from

July 17, 2018
7:45 pm
Members:

Mr. Gil Bernardino Present
Dr. Sarah Brewster Present
Mr. José Canosa, Fsq. | Absent
Ms. Nancy Iglesias Absent
Mr. Luis Ras, Esq. Present
Ms. Yvonne Mowatt Present
Ms. Gladys Rodrignez | Present
Mr. Ariel Sotelo Present
Also present:

Ms. Karen Leeper, Interim Principal, Middle School Director
Ms. Christine Weigand, Interim Elementary School Director
Ms. Christine Wise, Director of Data and Attendance

Ms. Knox, Director of Finance and Operations

Note: As always, the Board Meeting was conducted in English and Spanish.

1. Call to Order 7:45 Welcome and Call to
order: President Gil
President Bernardino thanked everyone for being here tonight. Bernardino

H. Summary Report by Mr. Bernardino

Summary Report by
Mr. Bernardino discussed efforts by administration, the Board and staff to | President Gil
prepare for the new school year, This included staffing hires and changes in Bernardino

staffing responsibilities, purchase of equipment and other related matters,

Mr. Bernardino talked about promoting Ms. Leeper the Assistant Principal to Interim Principal,
Middle School Director and promoting Christine Weigand to Interim Elementary School
Director.



III. Questions and Comments from the Board of Trustees related to the
President of the Board’s Report:

There were none.
IV. Questions and Comments from the Public related to Principal’s report:

A parent comment that she had a good relationship with existing administration and
that she was pleased to continue working with Ms. Leeper and Ms. Weigand.

V. Financial Report: Presented by Ms. Knox, Director of Finance and
Operations:

Mrs. Knox reported on district payments and billing issues.

VL Questions and Comments from the Board of Trustees related to the Financial
Report:

There weie none.

VII. Questions and Comments from the Public related to the Financial Report:

There were none

VIII. Parents’ Association report.

No report.

IX. Approval of Minutes
Minutes of June, 27, 2018
Motion Trustee Yvonne Mowatt

Second: Trustee Ariel Sotelo
Vote: 6:0

Questions and
comments from
the Board of

Trustees

Questions and
Comments from
the Public

Financial Report
presented by
Lisett Knox

Questions and
Comments from
the Board

Questions and
Comments from
the Public

Parent Association
Report,

Approval of
Minutes from Past
Meeting




XII.

Reading of the Resolutions: Reading and
Consideration of

Resolutions were read in English and Spanish. Resolutions
Questions and comments from the public related to resolutions Questions and
Trustee Sarah Brewster explained the resolutions. comments from the
public
Approval of Resolutions Voting of the
: Resolutions

Evergreen Charter School
Agenda Items for Resolutions:
June 27, 2018

1. Resolved, the Board of Trustees approves the proposal by administration to hire
Generation Ready Curriculum Consultant to support the Spanish Department (14 days,

$1,500/day).

Motion: Trustee Sarah Brewster
Second: Trustee Yvonne Mowatt
Vote: 6:0

2. Resolved, the Board of Trustees approves the following staff recommendations pending
all reference checks, and fingerprinting clearance:

Elementary School

Name Position Status
Pamela Dubler, Reading Teacher FT
Alexandra Frank Classroom Teacher FT
Jenna Rinaldi Art Leave Replacement, pend FT
Middle School

Name Position Status
Taylor Foerster Art Teacher FT
Vanessa Morales Special Education Teacher FT
Thomas Bova Fifth or Sixth Grade Teacher FT



Elementary & Middle School

Name Position Status
Harold Gutiérrez Mausic Teacher FT

Non-Instructional Staff:

Name Position Status
Lucia Duran Lunch Aide, Blementary School P/T
Ashley Colon Lunch Aide, Elementary School P/T
Lynett Vasquez Lunch Aide, Elementary School P/T
Giselle Sandoval Lunch Aide, Elementary School P/T
Bria Dennis Lunch Aide, Elementary School P/T
Amber Evans Lunch Aide, Elementary School P/T
Maria Amaya, Assistant Chef, Elementary School F/T
Sara Auris Kitchen Assistant, Elementary School P/T
Edly Mufioz Kitchen Prep, Middle School P/T
Kamika Hill Lunch Aide, Middle School P/T
Gene Spears Custodial, Middle School P/T

Jean Lopez Custodial, Middle School P/T

Motion: Trustee Sarah Brewster
Second: Trustee Luis Ras
Vote: 6:0

3. Resolved, the Board of Trustees approves the purchase of promethean board to support
classroom needs.

Motion: Trustee Sarah Brewster
Second: Trustee Yvonne Mowatt
Vote: 6:0

4. Resolved, the Board of Trustees approves the purchase and installation of cables, internet,
phones and cameras for new classrooms.

Motion: Trustee Ariel Sotelo
Second: Trustee Gladys Rodriguez
Vote: 6:0



5. Resolved, the Board of Trustees approves the following personnel appointments:

Name Position - Status
Karen Leeper Interim Principal, Director of Middle School FT

Motion: Trustee Yvonne Mowatt
Second: Trustee Sarah Brewster
Vote: 6:0

6. Resolved, the Board of Trustees approves the following personnel appointments:

Name Position Status
Christine Weigand  Interim Director of Elementary School FT

Motion: Trustee Yvonne Mowatt
Second: Trustee Gladys Rodriguez
Vote: §6:0

XIII, Old/New Business/New business: LOlleew Business

Discussion followed on summer school, plans for middle school and related issues.

XIV. Announcements: | Announcements |

President Bernardino wished everyone a happy summer.

XV. Adjournment | Adjournment
Motion to adjourn made by: Trustee Yvonne Mowatt
Seconded by: Trustee Luis Ras
Approved: 6:0

Meeting adjourned at: 8:07 pm

Minutes submitted by: /QQULW f M

Gladys Rodriguez, Se(f'retary




Evergreen Charter School
Meeting of the Board of Trustees
605 Peninsula Blvd, Hempstead, NY 11550

Minutes from
September 26, 2018
7:56 pm
Members:
Mr. Gil Bernardino Present
Dr. Sarah Brewster Present
Mr. José Canosa, Esq. | Excused
Ms. Nancy Iglesias Excused
Mr. Luis Ras, Esqg. Present
Ms. Yvonne Mowatt Present
Ms. Gladys Rodrignez | Present
Mr. Ariel Sotelo Present

Also present:

Ms. Karen Leeper, Interim Principal, Middle School Director
Ms. Christine Weigand, Interim Elementary School Director
Ms. Christine Wise, Director of Data and Attendance

Ms. Knox, Director of Finance and Operations

Note: As always, the Board Meeting was conducted in English and Spanish.

I. Call to Order 7:56 Welcome and Call to

_ order: President Gil
President Bernardino thanked everyone for being here tonight. He introduced Bernardino

the board members, welcomed the new parents and wished everyone a happy
and productive school year. He explained that an audit for the school has been
recently completed and introduced the anditors for their report.

II. Presentation by the Auditors by Kevin Foley and Michael Asaro of Report by the
Condon O’Meara McGinty & Donnelly. Auditors

The auditors presented the draft of the audit to the public. They presented the
financial statements and responded to questions from the Board and public. They completed the



audit of the schools financial statements as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018 and June 30,
2017. They explained that the audit was performed in accordance with auditing standards

generally accepted in the United States of America.

III. Questions and Comments from the Board of Trustees related to the Auditors
Report:

There was a comment about receivables from the school districts that pay late and
a question about cash reserve in case of an emergency. In addition to answering

the questions, president Bernardino explained the importance of the andits and
financial transparency.

IV. Questions and Comments from the Public related to Auditors report:
There was a question about expenses allocated to the middle school
I Monthly Principal Report by Ms. Karen Leeper

Evergreen Charter School
Principal’s Report to the Board
September 26, 2018

I. Enrollment:

Grade Level Number of Students
Kindergarten 74
First Grade 74
Second Grade 75
Third Grade 50
Fourth Grade 50
Fifth Grade 48
Sixth Grade 51
Seventh Grade 50
Eighth Grade 49
Total: 521

II. Attendance:;

Questions and
comments from
the Board of
Trustees

Questions and
Comments from
the Public

Report presented
by Ms. Karen
Leeper

1) See attached Attendance Count Report (includes absence/tardy reports from

9/4/2018-9/18/2018).




IOI. Curriculum & Instruction:

1) An Instructional Calendar is currently being developed using Google Calendar in
an effort to keep all staff informed of various dates throughout the school year.

2) Grade level meetings will take place the week of Septentber 24, 2018.

3) A new science program is currently being implemented in second grade.

4) Mini classroom observations were conducted by administration.

IV.  Professional Development:

1) 2018 August Professional Development (see attached brochures).

2) Wednesday, September 26, 2018
Elementary School Literacy Professional Development, Presented by Pam Kinnon
(literacy consultant),

3) Thursday, September 6, 2018
Tuesday, September 11, 2018
Wednesday, September 26, 2018
Middle School Literacy Professional Development, Presented by Michelle
McCabe (literacy consultant),

4) Friday, September 14, 2018
Thursday, September 20, 2018
Elementary School Mathematics Professional Development, Presented by Sue
Morris (math consultant).

5) Monday, September 10, 2018
Tuesday, September 11, 2018
Friday, September 21, 2018
Middle School Mathematics Professional Development, Presented by Anthony
Volforte (math consultant).

V. Parent Involvement/Activities:

1) Middle School Visitation for 5" and 6" Grade Families took place on Tuesday,
Augnst 7, 2018.

2) Orientation for 7" and 8" Grade Families took place on Tuesday, August 14,
2018.

3) Teacher Meet and Greet took place on Friday, August 31, 2018.



4) A Calendar of Events was distributed to families for the month of September.

5) ENL Kindergarten Orientation:
Thursday, September 13, 2018
Monday, October 1, 2018

6) Kindergarten Orientation for new entrants is scheduled for Wednesday,

September 26, 2018,

7) Meet the Teacher Night for the Elementary School is scheduled for Thursday,

September 20, 2018.

8) Planting the Seeds for a Successful School Year Parent Workshop presented by
Ms. Plaza and Ms. Spiazzi is scheduled for Tuesday, September 25, 2018.
9) Open House Night for the Middle School is scheduled for Thursday, September

27,2018.

10) Title I Parent Meetings are scheduled for Thursday, September 20, 2018
(elementary school) and Thursday, September 27, 2018 (middle school).

3. Personnel:

New Staff Members
Name Position
Cabrina Tasevoli Kindergarten Teacher
Jaclyn Lee First Grade Teacher
Devan Casey First Grade Teacher
Alexandra Frank Second Grade Teacher
Taylor Sciara Third Grade Teacher
Lisa Camilli Special Education Teacher
Gracia Guzman Spanish Teacher
Martine Bellen ENL Teacher (MS)
Michelle Stack Intervention Teacher
Kristy Restivo ELA Teacher (MS)
Alex Benabides Social Studies Teacher (MS)
Virginia Sullivan Science Teacher (MS)
Alex Eichhorn Technology Teacher (MS)
Thomas Bova Sixth Grade Teacher
Taylor Foerster Art Teacher (MS)

Positions that need to be filled

(2) Permanent Substitute Teachers

Middle School Special Education Teacher

4. Student Assessment:




1y
2)

3)

4)

1)

1)
2)

1Y)

2017-18 NYSESLAT (for all grades), NYS ELA and Mathematics Results for
grades 3-7 and NYS Science Results for grade 4 (see attachment).

Grades K-5 are currently being assessed for reading levels using the Fountas and
Pinnell Benchmark System.

The NYSITELL has been nsed to assess the English language proficiency of new
entrants whose home language is a language other than English, as indicated on
their Home Language Questionnaire. Based on N'YSITELL results, students will
be categorized into one of five levels (Entering, Emerging, Transitioning,
Expanding and Commanding) which will determine the units of study in ESL
each stodent will receive.

The iReady Diagnostic Reading and Mathematics Assessment for Grades 1-8
began the week of September 17, 2018.

Challenges:

Coordinating student services with outside providers.

Successes:

First day of school.
Teacher Meet and Greet.
2018 Summer Professional Development.

Proposals:

Ms. Wise is requesting to attend the Annual Recertification Training for Principal
and Teacher Evaluators workshop at Nassau BOCES on Wednesday, September
26,2018,

Hire Calpulli Mexican Dance Company for Friday, October 12, 2018 (elementary
school) and on Friday, October 19, 2018 {(middle school) as a culmination activity
for Hispanic Heritage Month.

National Theatre for Children Assembly (elementary school)- The Conservation
Caper on Friday, October 19, 2018 (free of charge).

Presentations by Officer Galvin for students and parents regarding Cyberbullying
and Internet Safety in the month of October (grant requirement).

Educational Trips and School Wide Instructional Activities:

The Elementary School has implemented a Habits of Mind initiative to support
student’s problem-solving skills,



2) The Middle School has implemented a Positive Behavioral Interventions and
Supports (P.B.1.S.} Program to highlight and celebrate positive behavior and
choices. School-wide expectations have been communicated with all students and

posted in classrooms and throughout the building,

3) Evergreen Charter School celebrates Hispanic Heritage Month (September 15,

2018-October 15, 2018).

4) Evergreen Charter School will participate in National Bullying Prevention Month

beginning Monday, October 1, 2018.

Attachments:
1. Attendance Count Reports
2. Student Assessment Results
3. 2018 August Professional Development Brochures
4. Conference Request Forms (1)

II. Questions and Comments from the Board of Trustees related to the
President of the Board’s Report:

There were none.

IILI. Questions and Comments from the Public related to Principal’s report:
There were none,
IV. Financial Report:
Presented by Ms. Knox, Director of Finance and Operations:
Mrs. Knox reported on district payments and billing issues. She stated that we have

children from 19 different school districts and 7 of them are now behind in their
payments. 2 bills were submitted already for this year, 522 children are enrolled

Questions and
comments from
the Board of
Trustees

Questions and
Comments from
the Public

Financial Report
presented by
Lisett Knox

and 2 are pending enrollment process. Billing for meals is sent at the end of the month.

V. Questions and Comments from the Board of Trustees related to the Financial
Report:

There were none.

Questions and
Comments from
the Board




VYL

VIL

VIIIL.

Questions and Comments from the Public related to the Financial Report:

There were none

Parent Association report.

Mr. Brown reported that the PA is in the process of re-arranging their board. They

Questions and
Comments from
the Public

Parent Association
Report.

have a new secretary Ms. Sandra Barrera. They have not had a meeting yet but they are looking
forward to working with the School Social Worker to set up workshops, talent shops and other

events. They welcome new parents and encourage them to participate in the PA.

Approval of Minutes

Minutes of July 17, 2018

Motion Trustee Yvonne Mowatt

Second: Trustee Ariel Sotelo

Vote: 6:0

Reading of the Resolutions:

Resolutions were read in English and Spanish.

Questions and comments from the public related to resolutions

Trustee Sarah Brewster explained the resolutions.

Approval of Resolntions

Approval of
Minutes from Past
Meeling

Reading and
Consideration of
Resolutions

Questions and
coraments from the
public

Voting of the
Resolutions




Evergreen Charter School
Agenda Items for Resolutions:
For September 26, 2018

1. Resolved, the Board of Trustees approves the following staff appointments:

Start
Date

7/9/2018
7/26/2018

8/20/2018
8/20/2018
8/20/2018
8/20/2018
8/20/2018
8/20/2018
8/20/2018
8/20/2018
8/20/2018
8/20/2018

8/20/2018

8/20/2018
8/22/2018
8/27/2018
8/277/2018
8/28/2018
8/28/2018
8/29/2018
8/29/2018

8/28/2018
8/29/2018
8/29/2018

9/10/2018
9/17/2018

Name
Alexander
Eichhorn
Jean Lopez

Maria Amaya
Thomas Bova
Lisa Camilli
Devan Casey
Taylor Foerster
Alexandra Frank
Jaclyn Lee
Jenna Rinaldi
Taylor Sciara
Virginia Sullivan
Gracia Guzman-
Guerrero

Harold Gutierrez
Martine Bellen
Kristy Restivo
Cabrina Tasevoli
Alex Benabides
Michelle Stack
Lucia Duran
Edly Munoz

Amber Evans
Giselle Sandoval
Lynett Vasquez

Avith Medrano
Rosita Fuentes

Position
Technology
Specialist
Custodian
Chef
Assistant
Teacher
Teacher
Teacher
Teacher
Teacher
Teacher
Teacher
Teacher
Teacher
Spanish
Teacher
Music
Teacher
Teacher
Teacher
Teacher
Teacher
Teacher
Lunch Aide
Lunch Aide

Lunch Aide
Lunch Aide
Lunch Aide

Lunch Aide
Lunch Aide

Status

Active
Active

Active
Aclive
Active
Active
Active
Active
Active
Active
Active
Active

Active

Active

Active

Active

Active

Active

Active

Active

Active

Started then no call no
show

Started then no call no
show

Started then no call no
show

Started then no call no
show

Active

P/T-F/T

fft
p/t

ft
frt
yijs
"
frt
fit
e
i)
fit
ft

i/t
promoted
to f/t

i

it

fit

fn

it

pft

p/t

pt
pit
p/t

p/t
pit



Danielle Endress  Teacher declined after approval i/t

Jenifer Sonsky Teacher declined after approval tt
Vanesa Morales  Teacher declined after approval ft
Melisa
Angerhousor Teacher declined after approval it
Pamela Dubler Teacher declined after approval it
Bria Dennis Lunch Aide declined after approval pit
Jean Spears Custodian  No clearance obtained p/t
didn't complete the hiring
Kamika Hill Lunch Aide process p/t
didn't complete the hiring
Tamyra Mason Lunch Aide process p/t
Janell Napoleon ~ Teacher declined after approval fit
Ginnamarie Parise Teacher declined after approval it
Jennifer
Luxemburg Teacher declined after approval 1t
Maria Turcios Lunch Aide No clearance obtained pt
Work visa expired/never
Tomasa Artero Lunch Aide started pt
Work visa expired/never
Sara Auris Lunch Aide started pit

Additional applicants:

Maria de la Cruz Ramirez Dish washey 4 hrg
Rosa Arevalo Moya Kitchen Maintenance S hrs
Mabel Collado Lunch aide . 4 hrs
Rosa Villanueva Lunch aide 4 hrs
Delma Cruz Lunch aide 4 hrs
Dilia Manjares Lunch aide 4 hrs
Mariangeli Feliciano Lunch aide 4 hrs
Francesca Segneri Lunch aide - 4 hrs
Daisy Maria Espinal Custodian 4 hrs
Lia Luzon Receptionist FT

Motion; Trustee Gladys Rodriguez

Second: Trustee Ariel Sotelo

Vote: 6:0



2. Resolved, The Board of Trustees approves the following professional development
opportunities for staff:

e) Ms. Wise to attend the Annual Recertification Training for Principal and Teacher
Evaluators workshop at Nassau BOCES on Wednesday, September 26, 2018,

f) Nurse Shaw to attend; School Nurses: Best, Current Practices for School Medical
Emergency on November 29, 2018, Legal Risks for Nurses, October 12, 2018

g) Mr. Levitan to attend the Suffolk Zone Conference in November 6, 2018

h) Ms. Hernandez to attend a Technology summit on October 15, 2018

Motion; Trustee Yvonne Mowatt
Second: Trustee Sarah Brewster
Vote: 6:0

3. Resolved, the Board of Trustees approves the following school activities:

a) Hire Calpulli Mexican Dance Company for Friday, October 12, 2018 (elementary
school) and on Friday, October 19, 2018 (middle school) as a culmination activity
for Hispanic Heritage Month.

b) National Theatre for Children Assembly (elementary school)- The Conservation
Caper on Friday, October 19, 2018 (free of charge),

¢) Presentations by Officer Galvin for students and parents regarding Cyberbullying
and Internet Safety in the month of October (grant requirement),

Motion: Trustee Sarah Brewster
Second: Trustee Gladys Rodriguez
Vote: 6:0



4. Resolved, The Board of Trustees approves the following policy regarding approval
for staff hires:

In order to expedite the hiring process, so as to not have staff wait between board
meetings to be hired, at least three members of the Board of trustees are required to
approve a recommendation by the administration for a hire. Approval may be done by
email with written conﬁrmauon

Candidates will then be ratified at the next meeting of the Board of Trustees.
Motion: Trustee Yvonne Mowatt

Second: Trustee Ariel Sotelo
Vote: 6:0

XI. OQld/New Business/New business: | Old/New Business |

There was discussion on Eagle Scout working to build the library.

XII. Announcements: | Announcements
There were none
XIII. Adjournment I Adjournment
Motion to adjourn made by: Trustee Yvonne Mowatt
Seconded by: Trustee Ariel Sotelo
Approved: 6:0

Meeting adjourned at: 9:24 pm

Minutes submitted by: M “"Lﬂ)%ﬂ"/

Gladys Rodriguez, Sec‘fetary




Evergreen Charter School
Meeting of the Board of Trustees
605 Peninsula Blvd, Hempstead, NY 11550

Minutes from
October 23, 2018
7:54 pm
Members:
Mr. Gil Bernardino Present
Dr. Sarah Brewster Present
Mr. José Canosa, Esq. | Present
Ms. Nancy Iglesias Present
Mr, Luis Ras, Esq. Present
Ms., Yvonne Mowatt Absence
Ms. Gladys Rodriguez | Present
Mr. Ariel Sotelo Present

Also present:

Ms. Karen Leeper, Interim Principal, Middie School Director
Ms. Christine Weigand, Interim Elementary School Director

Ms. Christine Wise, Director of Data and Attendance

Note: As always, the Board Meeting was conducted in English and Spanish,

1. Call to Order

President Bernardino called the meeting to order at 7:54. He welcomed everyone
and introduced Interim Principal (of Middle School) Karen Leeper for her report:

I. Monthly Principal Report by Ms. Karen Leeper

Evergreen Charter School
Principal’s Report to the Board
October 23, 2018

Welcome and Call to
order: President Gil
Bernardino

Report presented by
Ms. Karen Leeper




I. Enrollment;

Grade Level Number of Students
Kindergarten 75
First Grade 74
Second Grade 75
Third Grade 50
Fourth Grade 50
Fifth Grade 50
Sixth Grade 50
Seventh Grade 49
Eighth Grade 51
Total: 524

II. Attendance:

1)

See attached Attendance Count Report (includes absence/tardy reports from
9/4/2018-10/17/2018 and 9/18/2018-10/17/2018).

II. Cuarricalum & Instruction:

1)
2)
3

School-wide vocabulary and idiom enrichment initiatives have been planned.
Data driven student goal setting program has been implemented school-wide.
An updated Teacher Observation Template has been developed.

IV.  Professional Development:

1)

2)

3)

Thursday, October 11, 2018

Thursday, October 25, 2018

Elementary School Literacy Professional Development, Presented by Pam Kinnon
(literacy consultant).

Wednesday, October 3, 2018
Thursday, October 18, 2018

Middle School Literacy Professional Development, Presented by Michelle
McCabe (literacy consultant).

Thursday, October 4, 2018

Thursday, October 11, 2018

Thursday, October 25, 2018

Elementary Schoo] Mathematics Professional Development, Presented by Sue
Morris (math consultant).



4) Friday, October 5, 2018
Friday, October 25, 2018
Middle School Mathematics Professional Development, Presented by Anthony
Volforte (math consultant).

5) Wednesday, October 24, 2018
iReady Professional Development, Presented by Gail Schwartz

V. Parent Involvement{/Activities:

VL

VII.

VIIL.

1) A Calendar of Events was distributed to families for the month of October.

2) Cyber bullying and Internet Safety Parent Workshop-October 16, 2018

3) Hispanic Heritage Assembly at the Elementary School-October 18, 2018

4) Hispanic Heritage Assembly at the Middle School-October 19, 2018

5) Google Classroom Parent Workshop-October 23, 2018 (English) 8:00-9:15 a.m.
6) Google Classroom Parent Workshop-October 24, 2018 (Spanish) 8:00-9:15 a.m.
7) Google Classroom Parent Workshop-October 25, 2018, 6:30-7:30 p.m.

8) Purple Awards Ceremony at the Elementary School-Friday, October 26, 2018

Personnel:

Positions that need to be filled

Permanent Substitute Teacher

Middle School Special Education Teacher

Sixth Grade Teacher

Student Assessment:
1) The iReady Diagnostic Reading and Mathematics Assessments are completed for
Grades 1-8.
2) Parent reports from all NYS Assessments have been mailed home.
~3) iReady parent reports will be sent home the week of October 29, 2018,
Challenges:

1) Hiring qualified personnel.



IX, Successes:

1) Cyber bullying and Internet Safety Presentations by Officer Galvin.
2) Hispanic Heritage Month Activities.

X. Proposals:

a) The kindergarten teachers are requesting approval for a school trip to White Post
Farms in May 2019 (see attached Field Trip Request Form).

b) The first grade teachers are requesting approval for a school trip to the Long
Island Children’s Museum in March, 2019 (se attached Field Trip Request
Form).

¢) The second grade teachers are requesting approval for a school trip to the NY Hall
of Science (date to be determined) (see attached Field Trip Request Form).

d) The third grade teachers are requesting approval for a school trip to the Bronx
Zoo in May 2019 (see attached Field Trip Request Form).

e) The fourth grade teachers are requesting approval for a school trip to Old
Bethpage Village Restoration in May, 2019 (see attached Field Trip Request
Form).

f) The fifth grade teachers are requesting approval for a school trip to Heart Beet
Farms on May 8, 2019 (see attached Field Trip Request Form).

g) Mr. Rincon is requesting approval for a fourth grade school trip to Lincoln Center
on May 9, 2019 (see attached Field Trip Request Form).

h) Mr. Levitan is requesting approval for a third grade school trip to the AMF East
Meadow Lanes on March 18, 2019 (see attached Field Trip Request Form).

i) Ms. Spiazzi and Ms. Stack are requesting approval to attend the Uncovering What
a Reader Needs: Eight Authentic Methods for Conferring with Readers That Pay
off with Progress and Engagement workshop on Friday, November 2, 2018.

j) To hire Christa Buccola as a fifth grade teacher (Resume attached).

k) Elementary School After School Clubs:

Spanish Club

1) Middle School After School Clubs:

Bully Prevention Club (official name to be determined by students)
Community Service Club
Spanish Club

XI. Educational Trips and School Wide Instructional Activities:

1) The Reading to Dogs Program began the week of October 15, 2018.

2) Hispanic Heritage Assemblies, Performed by the Calpulli Mexican Dance
Company-October 18, 2018 and October 19, 2018.

3) Conservation Caper Assembly at the Elementary School, Performed by the
National Theatre for Children (sponsored by PSEG)-October 19, 2018.



4) Cyber bullying and Internet Safety Assembly for Grades 3-8-October 17, 2018.

Attachments:
1. Attendance Count Reports
2. Field Trip Request Forms
3. Resume
4, Conference Request Forms

II. Questions and Comments from the Board of Trustees related to the
President of the Board’s Report:

President Bernardino spoke about options to add 2 or more classrooms per grade
because there is a very long waiting list. He spoke about space in the Middle School
and the finances associated with it

HI. Questions and Comments from the Public related to Principal’s report:

Discussion followed on the importance of media safety and social media problems.
Children must be taught the importance of responsible social media use at a very
early age. Discussion also followed on space for expansion. Parents also talked
about wanting a high school for their children.

IV. Financial Report:
Presented by Mr. Bernardino in the absence of Ms. Knox, Director of Finance
and Operations:

President Bernardino provided a summary report in the absence of Ms, Knox. He
reported that three school districts are late with their payments Lawrence, Roosevelt
and Valley Stream.

V. Questions and Comments from the Board of Trustees related to the Financial
Report:

There were none.

VI. Questions and Comments from the Public related to the Financial Report:

There were none

Questions and
comments from
the Board of
Trustees

Questions and
Comments from
the Pablic

Financial Report
presented by M.,
Bernardino in the
absence of Ms.
Knox

Questions and
Comments from
the Board

Questions and
Comments from
the Public




VII. Parent Association report.

VIIL

IX.

Evergreen Charter School PA
5/31/18---10/29/18

Actual Expenses

Big Bounce Theory-—Carnival Day Elementary School

Water Bottles for Evergreen Employees Security Staff and Janitorial
(for Gratitude) ---Donation to Social Worker Middle School

End of Year Dinner and Meeting Parents Association

Totals

Scholastic Book Fair- Buy one Get One

Petty Cash---Withdrawal

Total of Sale

Check made of scholastic (no profit, due to special)
Total Profit/Expense

Bank Account Balance

Account Balance before event (5/31/18)
Credit interest (May-Sept)

Deposited into bank account (06/20/18)
Withdrawal from bank account (6/20/18)

Total expenses
Account Balance as of (10/29/18)

Approval of Minutes

Minutes of September 26, 2018
Motion Trustee Nancy Iglesias
Second: Trustee Luis Ras
Vote: 7:0

Reading of the Resolutions:

Resolutions were read in English and Spanish.

Parent Association
Report,

$1050.00
$ 63.93
§ 150.00
$ 121.87
$1,385.80

$ 384,00
$2,273.64
$2,273.64

$3,093.18
$ 366
$2,659.59
$3,323.64
$1,385.80
$1,712.99

Approval of
Minutes from Past
Meeting

Reading and
Consideration of
Resolutions




X. Questions and comments from the public related to resolutions Questions and
Trustee Sarah Brewster explained the resolutions, coml.nents from the
public
Approval of Resolutions Voting of the
Resolutions

Evergreen Charter School
Agenda Items for Resolutions:
For October 23, 2018

1. Resolved, the Board of Trustees approves the following field trips:

a) The kindergarten teachers are requesting approval for a school trip to White Post
Farms in May 2019 (see attached Field Trip Request Form).

b) The first grade teachers are requesting approval for a school trip to the Long
- Island Children’s Museum in March, 2019 (see attached Field Trip Request
Form).

c¢) The second grade teachers are requesting approval for a school trip to the NY Hall
of Science (date to be determined) (see attached Field Trip Request Form).

d) The third grade teachers are requesting approval for a school trip to the Bronx
Zoo in May 2019 (see attached Field Trip Request Form).

e) The fourth grade teachers are requesting approval for a school trip to Old
Bethpage Village Restoration in May, 2019 (see attached Field Trip Request
Form).

) The fifth grade teachers are requesting approval for a school trip to Heart Beet
Farms on May 8, 2019 (see attached Field Trip Request Form).

g) Mr. Rincon is requesting approval for a fourth grade school trip to Lincoln Center
on May 9, 2019 (see attached Field Trip Request Form).

h) Mr. Levitan is requesting approval for a third grade school trip to the AMF East
Meadow Lanes on March 18, 2019 (see attached Field Trip Request Form).

Motion: Trustee Gladys Rodriguez
Second: Trustee Sarah Brewster
Vote: 7:0



2. Resolved, The Board of Trustees approves the following professional
Development for staff:

a) Ms, Spiazzi and Ms. Stack are requesting approval to attend the Uncovering What
a Reader Needs: Eight Authentic Methods for Conferring with Readers That Pay
aoff with Progress and Engagement workshop on Friday, November 2, 2018.

b) Ms. Portillo, Ms. Robertson and Ms. Lemke are requesting to attend the NYS
TESOL 48" Annual Conference in Albany on November 1-2, 2018 (see attached
Field Trip Request Form).

Motion: Trustee Jose Canosa
Second: Trustee Ariel Sotelo
Vote: 7:0

3. Resolved, The Board of Trustees approves the following staff appointments:

Name Position Start Date
Christa Buccola 5% grade teacher 11/13/18
Dana Andrews 6™ grade teacher 10/31/18
Maritza Galdamez  Part Time Custodian 11/09/18

Motion: Trustee Sarah Brewster
Second: Trustee Gladys Rodriguez
Vote: 7:0

4. Resolved, The Board of Trustees approves the following clubs:

a) Elementary School After School Clubs:
Spanish Club
b) Middle School After School Clubs:
Bully Prevention Club (official name to be determined by students)
Community Service Club
Spanish Club

Motion: Trustee Luis Ras
Second: Trustee Nancy Iglesias
Vote: 7.0



5. Resolved, the Board of Trustees approves nutrition classes for parents:
1. Introduction to healthy eating habits
ii. How to prepare a healthy meal using the 5 food groups

Motion: Jose Canosa
Second: Sarah Brewster
Vote: 7:0

XI. Old/New Business/New business; Old/New Business

There was none.

XII. Announcements: | Announcements

There were none.

XIII. Adjournment Adjournment

Motion to adjourn made by: Trustee Yvonne Mowatt
Seconded by: Trustee Ariel Sofelo
Approved: 6:0

Meeting adjourned at: 8:58 pm

Minutes submitted by: M&lﬁﬂ \Eﬁ M

Gladys Rodriguez, Secré tary




Evergreen Charter School
Meeting of the Board of Trustees
605 Peninsula Blvd, Hempstead, NY 11550

Minutes from

November 28, 2018
7:56 pm
Members;

Mr. Gil Bernardino Present
Dr. Sarah Brewster Present
M. José Canosa, Esq. | Present
Ms. Nancy Iglesias Present
Mr. Luis Ras, Esq. Present
Ms. Yvonne Mowatt Present
Ms. Gladys Rodriguez | Absent
Mr. Ariel Sotelo Present
Also present:

Ms. Karen Leeper, Interim Principal, Middle School Director
Ms. Christine Weigand, Interim Elementary School Director
Ms. Christine Wise, Director of Data and Attendance

Ms. Lisett Knox, Director of Finance and Operations

Note: As always, the Board Meeting was conducted in English and Spanish.

I. Call to Order Welcome and Call to

order: President Gil
President Bernardino called the meeting to order. Bernardino




I. Monthly Principal Report by Ms. Karen Leeper

IL

IIL.

Evergreen Charter School
Principal’s Report to the Board

Report presented by
Ms. Karen Leeper

November 28, 2018

Enrollment:

Grade Level Number of Students

Kindergarten 75

First Grade 76

Second Grade 75

Third Grade 50

Fourth Grade 50

Fifth Grade 50

Sixth Grade 50

Seventh Grade 50

Eighth Grade 51

Total: 527
Attendance:

1) See attached Attendance Count Report (includes absence/tardy reports from

9/4/2018-11/21/2018 and 10/17/2018-11/21/2018).

Curriculum & Instruction:

1) School-wide vocabulary and idiom enrichment initiatives have been implemented.

2) Teacher observations have been conducted by administration.

3) Google Level I Fundamentals Training and Certification Course has been offered

to staff.

4) Test Preparation Programs began in November.

5) Test preparation strategies are being implemented in all content areas.
6) Apps and extensions to develop vocabulary have been introduced and utilized in
classrooms (grant initiative).




IV.

Professional Development:

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

7)

8)

9

Wednesday, October 31, 2018

Wednesday, November 7, 2018

Wednesday, November 28, 2018

Elementary School Literacy Professional Development, Presented by Pam Kinnon
(literacy consultant).

Wednesday, October 31, 2018

Friday, November 16, 2018

Wednesday, November 21, 2018

Wednesday, November 28, 2018

Middle School Literacy Professional Development, Presented by Michelle
McCabe (literacy consultant).

Friday, November 16, 2018
Elementary School Mathematics Professional Development, Presented by Sue
Moiris (math consultant).

Friday, November 9, 2018

Wednesday, November 14, 2018

Monday, November 26, 2018

Middle School Mathematics Professional Development, Presented by Anthony
Volforte (math consultant),

Tuesday, November 20, 2018
Leadership Professional Development, Presented by Christine Milton

Thursday, November 1, 2018 and Friday, November 2, 2018
Ms. Portillo, Ms. Robertson and Ms. Lemke attended the NYS TESOL 484
Annual Conference in Albany.

Friday, November 2, 2018

Ms. Spiazzi and Ms, Stack attended the Uncovering What a Reader Needs: Eight
Authentic Methods for Conferring with Readers That Pay off with Progress and
Engagement workshop.

Tuesday, November 6, 2018
M. Levitan attended the Suffolk Zone Conference.

Thursday, November 29, 2019
Nurse Shah will attend the School Nurses: Best, Current, Practices for School
Medical Emergencies workshop.



V.

VI.

Parent Involvement/A ctivities:

1)
2)

3)
4)
5)
6)
7
8)
9)

A Calendar of Events was distributed to families for the month of November.
Stop and Shop Rewards Program was set-up and communicated to parents the
week of November 5, 2018.

Third and Fourth Grade invited parents to Publishing Parties.

iReady Parent Informational Workshops-

Tuesday, November 20, 2018- 6:00-7:00 p.m.

Wednesday, November 21, 2018- 8:00-9:00 a.m.

Elementary School Parent Teacher Conferences- Tuesday, November 27, 2018
Middle School Parent Teacher Conferences- Tuesday, December 4, 2018 and
Thursday, December 6, 2018.

Parent Workshop at Elementary School, Helping your Child Succeed in School
{grades 2-4)- Wednesday, December 5, 2018, 8:00-9:00 a.m.

Parent Workshop at Middle School, Conununity Resources for My Family-
Tuesday, December 11, 2018, 2:45-3:45 p.m.

Middle School Holiday Show- Tuesday, December 18, 2018

10) Kindergarten Holiday Show- Wednesday, December 19, 2018
11) Purple Awards Ceremony at the Elementary School- Thursday, December 20,

2018.

12) The school is in the process of collecting all parent e-mail addresses; notices will

be sent home and e-mailed,

Personnel:

Positions that need to be filled

Permanent Substitute Teacher

Middle School Special Education Teacher

Student Assessment:

Challenges:

1) Hiring qualified personnel.

Successes:

1) Student Government Day at Hempstead Village Hall
2) Elementary School Library Beautification Project




X. Proposals:

a) To hire Cathy Hill as an Assistant Principal (Resume attached),
b) Middle School Dance Fundraiser (8" grade senior trip)
¢) Elementary School After School Clubs:
Chorus Club (Monday)
d) Middle School After School Clubs:
Art/Yearbook Club (one day a week)
Step Club (Wednesday)

X1. Educational Trips and School Wide Activities:

1) Student Council elections took place at the Middle School.

2) Students are participating in a 2019 Martin Luther King Jr. Fine Arts and Essay
Exhibition (sponsored by the NYS Education Department).

3) Middle School students participated in the 2018-19 Letters About Literature
Writing Contest (sponsored by the Library of Congress)

Attachments:
1. Attendance Count Reports

2. Resume

II. Questions and Comments from the Board of Trustees related to the

President of the Board’s Report: Questions and

comments from

Ms. Weigand spoke about the library and the efforts of an Eagle Scout who has | the Board of
donated his time and has raised funds to support the build out of the library. | Trustees

Trustee Bernardino thanks Ms. Weigand for her efforts to spearhead this project.
Parents will be invited to view the library build out when we hold our official opening,

IIT. Questions and Comments from the Public related to Principal’s report: Questions and
Comments from
Parents were pleased to hear about the library. the Public




IV. Financial Report:

Presented by Ms. Knox, Director of Finance and Operations: Financial Report
Ms. Knox reported that she will be working with the New York State Education presented by
Department to complete three intercept applications for Lawrence, Valley Stream Lisett Knox

and for Hempstead. Monies owed from Hempstead include tuition from the 2017-
2018 school year that Hempstead has still not paid despite numerous
communication attempts from Evergreen’s Business Office. Ms. Knox also spoke about the
increase of children who are picked up late by parents after the school day has ended and the
problems this generates.

V. Questions and Comments from the Board of Trustees related to the Financial | Questions and
Report: Comments from
the Board

Trustee Bernardino spoke about the problem of supervision and the lack of follow
up from parents who continually pick up their children late with no consideration
for staff.

VI. Questions and Comments from the Public related to the Financial Report; Questions and

Comments from
Parents gave suggestions about increasing late pick up fees for parents who come to the Public

pick up their children long after the school day has ended and there are no activities.
One parent suggested that report cards should not be given if late fees are owed due
to late pick up. A parent also spoke about restricting children from special activities if late fees
have not been paid. This will be under further review.

VII. Parent Association report. Parent Association
Report.

There was no fiscal report this month. The Parent Association indicated that they
are planning several activities including a movie night. Parents also spoke about graduations for
other grades including kindergarten, 5 and 8" grade.



VIIL

Approval of Minutes

Minutes of October 22, 2018

Motion Trustee Yvonne Mowatt

Second: Trustee Nancy Iglesias

Vote: 7:0

Reading of the Resolutions:

Resolutions were read in English and Spanish.

Questions and comments from the public related to resolutions

Trustee Sarah Brewster explained the resolutions.

Approval of Resolutions

Evergreen Charter School
Agenda Items for Resolutions:
For November 28, 2018

Approval of
Minutes from Past
Meefing

Reading and
Consideration of
Resolutions

Questions and
comments from the
public

Voting of the
Resolutions

1. Resolved, the Board of Trustees approves the following staff appointments:

Name Position Start Date
Cathy Hill Assistant Principal 12/10/2018
Hina Gul Permanent Substitute 11/14/2018
Sara Cuca Sequen  Lunch Aide 10/22/18
Anardo Baez Facilities Manager 11/9/18

Motion: Ariel Sotelo
Second: Yvonne Mowatt
Vote: 7.0




2. Resolved, The Board of Trustees approves the following school activity

Middle School Dance Fundraiser (8" grade senior trip).
Movie night sponsored by the Parent Association at a date to be determined.

Motion: Sarah Brewster
Second: Nancy Iglesias
Vote: 7:0

3. Resolved, the Board of Trustees approves the following school clubs

e) Elementary School After School Clubs:
Chorus Club (Monday)

f) Middie School After School Clubs:
Art/Yearbook Club (one day a week)
Step Club (Wednesday)

Motion: Yvonne Mowatt
Second: Jose Canosa
Vote: 7.0

XI. Old/New Business/New business: ] Old/New Business I

Mr. Bernardino commended the efforts of Mr. Brown and others that helped provide transportation
delivery of Turkey dinners for Thanksgiving.

XII. Announcements: | Announcements

Mr. Bernardino spoke about an immigration workshop that will be held on Saturday December 8%
to inform the community about TPS and their rights.

XIH. Adjournment | | Adjournment 7

Motion to adjourn made by: Trustee Yvonne Mowatt
Seconded by: Trustee Ariel Sotelo
Approved: 7:0



Meeting adjourned at: 8:40 pm

Minutes submitted by: /M"’?fﬂ ﬁM

Gladys Rodriguez, Secretary



Evergreen Charter School
Meeting of the Board of Trustees
605 Peninsula Blvd, Hempstead, NY 11550

Minutes from
December 12, 2018
7:55 pm
Members:

m. Gil Bernardino Present
Dr. Sarah Brewster Present
Mr. José Canosa, Esq. | Present
Ms. Nancy Iglesias Absent
Mr. Luis Ras, Esq. Absent
Ms. Yvonne Mowatt Present
Ms. Gladys Rodriguez | Present
Mr. Ariel Sotelo Present
Also present:

Ms. Karen Leeper, Interim Principal, Middle School Director
Ms. Cathy Hill, Assistant Principal
Ms. Christine Weigand, Interim Elementary School Director

Ms. Christine Wise, Director of Data and Attendance
Ms. Lisett Knox, Director of Finance and Operations

Note: As always, the Board Meeting was conducted in English and Spanish.

I. Call to Order

President Bernardino called the meeting to order. He introduced Ms. Cathy Hill
who was hired as an Administrator. She has extensive experience working as an
administrator in schools and will be supporting the elementary school and the

Welcome and Cail to
order: President Gil
Bernardino

middle school as an Assistant Principal. Parents welcomed Ms. Hill and wished her uck.

President Bernardino also introduced Ms. Evelyn Herndndez, Technology Instructor who provided

a presentation.




II. Report by Ms. Evelyn Herndndez, Technology Instructor

Ms. Evelyn Hernéndez presented about Evergreen’s Technology grant that was
awarded by the New York State. She spoke about the different technology
activities that Evergreen has been doing including the workshops for parents and

Report presented by
Evelyn Hernandez,
Technology Instructor

the use of technology in the school for students. The presentation included all the steps taken to
make excellent use of the grant and the inclusion of all grades and proper and safe use of

technology.

III. Questions and Comments from the Board of Truostees related to Ms.
Hernindez’s Report:

President Bernardino commended Evelyn on a job well done implementing
the Technology Grant. Principal Leeper also commented on Evelyn’s
dedication, her enthusiasm and work on the grant.

IV. Questions and Comments from the Public related to Ms. Herndndez’s

report:

One parent asked about the purchase of technology equipment, Ms,

Report presented by
Evelyn Hernandez,
Technology Instructor

Questions and
Comments from the
Public

Hernandez explained that all students from third to eighth grade have a chrome book.,

V. Monthly Principal Report by Ms. Karen Leeper

Evergreen Charter School
Principal’s Report to the Board

December 12, 2018
I. Enrollment:

Grade Level Number of Students
Kindergarten 74

First Grade 75

Second Grade 75

Third Grade 50

Fourth Grade 50

Fifth Grade 50

Sixth Grade 50

Seventh Grade 50

Eighth Grade 50

Total: 524

Report presented by
Ms. Karen Leeper




II. Attendance:

1) See attached Attendance Count Report (includes absence/tardy repor ts from
9/4/2018-12/7/2018 and 11/21/2018-12/7/2018).

HI. Curricalum & Instruction:

1) Data Team Meetings took place the week of December 3, 2018.

2) Students participated in activities for Computer Science Week (the week of
December 3, 2018).

3) The Wellness Committee presented classroom activity ideas (surrounding health
and nutrition) to the staff,

IV.  Professional Development:

1) Wednesday, December 5, 2018
Wednesday, December 12, 2018
Elementary School Literacy Professional Development, Presented by Pam Kinnon
(literacy consultant).

2) Friday, December 7, 2018
Middle School Mathematics Professional Development, Presented by Anthony
Volforte (math consultant),

3) Tuesday, December 11, 2018 _
Leadership Professional Development, Presented by Christine Milton

4) Thursday, November 1, 2018 and Friday, November 2, 2018
Ms. Portillo, Ms. Robertson and Ms. Lemke attended the NYS TESOL 48™
Annual Conference in Albany.

5) Monday, December 10, 2018
ENL Professional Development, Presented by Beth Lopez



V. Parent Involvement/Activities;

1) A Calendar of Events was distributed to farnilies for the month of December,

2) Middle School Parent-Teacher Conferences took place the week of December 3,
2018.

3) Parent Workshop at Middle School, Community Resources for My Family-
Tuesday, December 11, 2018, 2:45-3:45 p.m.

4) Middle School Holiday Show- Tuesday, December 18, 2018

5) Kindergarten Holiday Show- Wednesday, December 19, 2018

6) Middle School Academic Awards- Friday, December 14, 2018

7) Elementary School Spanish Awards- Monday, December 17, 2018

8) Family Code Night at the Elementary School- Tuesday, December 18, 2018

9) Evergreen’s 10" Anniversary Assembly for students- Friday, February 1, 2019

10) Bvergreen’s 10" Anniversary Assembly for the community- Saturday, February 2,
2019.

VI. Personnel:

Positions that need to be filled

Permanent Substitute Teacher (both buildings)
Middle School Special Education Teacher

VII. Challenges:

1} There is a limited number of qualified applicants with relevant experience applying for
open positions.

2) Successes:

1) Parent-Teacher Conferences:
Elementary School Attendance-282
Middle School Attendance-162

3) Proposals:

a) Science After-School Help for 8" Graders (Mondays).

b) Mr. Eichhorn is requesting approval for a seventh-grade school trip to the Federal
Reserve Bank of New York in March, 2019 (see Field Trip Request Form).

¢) Mr. Levitan is requesting approval to plan a Bring Your Parent to PE Day in
January 20192 (see attachment).

d) To order 2 Water Purification Unit for the Middle School (see attached proposal).



4) Educational Trips and School Wide A ctivities:

1) Assemblies and activities to celebrate Evergreen’s 10" Anniversary are in the

process of being planned,
2) An eighth-grade senior trip is in the process of being planned.

5) Community Qutreach

1) Ms. Perez, Middle School Social Worker has secured donations from the

Community of Service Volunteers (jackets) and Whole Food Markets.

2) Ms. Perez, Middle School Social worker is in the process of completing the

Walmart Community Grant.

Attachments:
1. Attendance Count Reports
2. TField Trip Request Form
3. PE Activity Proposal
4, Water Purification Quote

VI. Questions and Comments from the Board of Trustees related fo the
President of the Board’s Repori:

Ms. Hill was welcomed to the school. There were no additional questions.

VIL. Questions and Comments from the Public related to Principal’s report:
There were none.
VIII. Financial Report:
Presented by Ms. Knox, Director of Finance and Operations:
Ms. Knox reported that she completed an intercept with the State for the

Hempstead School District for monies owed this year and Jast year. Ms. Knox is
continuing to follow up with other districts that are not paying tuition on time.

Questions and
comients from
the Board of
Trustees

Questions and
Comments from
the Public

Financial Report
presented by
Lisett Knox




IX.

X1,

XIII.

X1V,

Questions and Comments from the Board of Trustees related to the Financial
Report:

President Bernardino thanked Ms. Knox for her follow up with New York State
Education Department.

Questions and Comments from the Public related to the Financial Report:

There were none.

Parent Association Report.

The Parent Association reported that they are working with the bank to address

Questions and
Comments from
the Board

Questions and
Comments from
the Public

Parent Association
Report.

finance charges that are occurring on the account. They requested assistance from the Business

Office to help them.

They reported that they are planning some activities in the upcoming months including a Zumba
night, the NED Show (Never Give Up, Encourage Others, Do Your Best). Another parent
suggested an evening activity with a basketball tournament with parents and students as a

fundraiser for the school.

Approval of Minutes

Minutes of November 28, 2018
Motion Trustee Yvonne Mowait
Second: Trustee Ariel Sotelo
Vote: 6:0

Reading of the Resolutions:

Resolutions were read in English and Spanish.

Approval of
Minutes from Past
Meeting

Reading and
Consideration of
Resolutions

Questions and comments from the public related to resolutions

Trustee Sarah Brewster explained the resolutions.

Questions and
comments from the
public




Approval of Resolutions Voting of the
Resolutions

Evergreen Charter School
Agenda Items for Resolutions:
For December 12, 2018

1. Resolved, the Board of Trustees approves the following activities

a) Science After-School Help for 8" Graders (Mondays).

b) M. Eichhorn is requesting approval for a seventh-grade school trip to the Federal
Reserve Bank of New York in March, 2019 (see Field Trip Request Form).

c) Mr. Levitan is requesting approval to plan a Bring Your Parent to PE Day in
January 2019 (see attachment).

Motion: Trustee Ariel Sotelo

Second: Trustee Yvonne Mowatt
Vote: 6:0

2. Resolved, the Board of Trustees approves the purchase of a water purification
unit for the Middle School.
Motion: Trustee Gladys Rodriguez

Second: Trustee Sarah Brewster
Vote: 6:0

3. Resolved, The Board of Trustees approves the following staff appointments:

Name Position Start Date
Elba Madrid Lunch Aide 12/13/18

Motion: Trustee Ariel Sotelo
Second: Trustee Gladys Rodrguez
Vote: 6:0



4. Resolved, the Board of Trustees approves to extend its existing line of credit for an
additional one year period.

Motion: Trustee José Canosa
Second: TrusteeYvounne Mowait
Vote: 6:0

3. Resolved, the Board of Trustees approves a material change to its charter add two
additional classes per grade leve] from three classes per grade level to five classes

per grade level,

See proposed enrollment table:

Grade Year1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year5
Configuration 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22

K 75 75 125 125 125

1 75 75 75 125 125

2 50 75 75 75 i25

3 50 50 75 75 75

4 50 50 50 75 75

5 50 50 50 50 75

[ 50 50 50 50 50

7 50 50 50 50 50

8 0 50 50 50 50
Total Proposed 450 525 600 675 750

Enroliment

Motion: Trustee José Canosa
Second: Trustee Ariel Sotelo
Vote: 6:0



| Old/New Business |

XV. Old/New Business/New business:

President Bernardino spoke about a positive meeting with a development specialist who provides
construction monitoring and other assistance to help with Evergreen’s building and facility plans.
He spoke about collaborating with parents, students, staff and administrators as we reach the
design phase.

President Bernardino also spoke about food that was brought to support the families of Evergreen
including bags of food as well as frozen turkeys and chickens for this holiday season.

President Bernardino mentioned a donation that was given to his organization. He will share the
donation of clothing including new clothes, shoes and hats with families in need at Evergreen.

XVI., Announcements: IAnnouncements |

President. Bernardino announced that the school will be holding its tenth anniversary celebration
on Febroary 1, 2019 for students and February 2, 2019 for students, families and the community.

XVII. Adjournment | Adjournment
Motion to adjourn made by: Trustee Yvonne Mowatt
Seconded by: Trustee Ariel Sotelo
Approved: 6:0

Meeting adjourned at: 9:05 pm

Minutes submitted by: Mﬂﬂﬂw W

Gladys Rodriguez, Sccretary




Evergreen Charter School
Meeting of the Board of Trustees
605 Peninsula Blvd, Hempstead, NY 11550

Minutes from

Janunary 30, 2019
7:55 pm
Members:
Mr. Gil Bernardino Present
Dr. Sarah Brewster Present

Mr. José Canosa, Esq. | Present

Ms. Nancy Iglesias

Absent

MTr. Luis Ras, Esq.

Present

Ms. Yvonne Mowatt Absent

Ms. Gladys Rodriguez | Present

Mr. Ariel Sotelo

Present

Also present:

Ms. Karen Leeper, Interim Principal, Middle School Director
Ms. Cathy Hill, Assistant Principal

Ms. Christine Wise, Director of Data and Attendance

Ms. Lisett Knox, Director of Finance and Operations

Note: As always, the Board Meeting was conducted in English and Spanish.

I. Call to Order

President Bernardino

Dapolito, CPA to provide an update on Evergreen’s financials.

Welcome and Call to

order: President Gil
called the meeting to order. He introduced Mr. Matt Bernardino

II. Report by Mr. Dapolito, CPA Report presented by

Mr. Matt Dapolito, CPA presented Evergreen’s financials. Mr Dapolito

Matt Dapolito, CPA

presented Un-Audited Financial Statement supporting a fifth month schedule



ending November 30, 2018.. He indicated that all is well with our finances and explained the
budget line by line. See attached copy of report.

III. Questions and Comments from the Board of Trustees related to Mr.

Dapolito’s report.

There were none.

IV. Questions and Comments from the Public related to Mr, Dapolito’s

report:

There were none.

V. Monthly Principal Report by Ms, Karen Leeper

Evergreen Charter School
Principal’s Report to the Board

Questions and
Comments from the
Board of Trustees

Questions and
Comments from the
Public

Report presented by
Ms. Karen Leeper

January 30, 2019
I. Enrollment:
Grade Level Number of Students
Kindergarten 75
First Grade 75
Second Grade 75
Third Grade 50
Fourth Grade 50
Fifth Grade 50
Sixth Grade 50
Seventh Grade 50
| Eighth Grade 50
Total: 525

II. Attendance:

1) See attached Attendance Count Report (includes absence/tardy reports from

9/4/2018-1/23/2019 and 12/7/2018-1/23/2019).




III. Curriculum & Instruction:

1) Data Team Meetings took place/are scheduled for the weeks of January 14™,
January 21 and January 28",

2) Anupdated teacher observation template has been developed by Administration.

3) Administration has conducted observations of all instructional staff.

4) Grade level meetings are scheduled for the week of January 28",

IV. Professional Development:

1) Wednesday, January 9, 2019
Wednesday, January 16, 2019
Friday, January 25, 2019
Wednesday, January 30, 2019
Elementary School Literacy Professional Development, Presented by Pam Kinnon
(literacy consultant).

2) Tuesday, January 8, 2019
Thursday, January 31, 2019
Elementary School Mathematics Professional Development, Presented by Sue
Morris (math consultant)

3) Wednesday, January 16, 2019
Middle School Mathematics Professional Development, Presented by Anthony
Volforte (math consultant).

4) Tuesday, January 8, 2019
Tuesday, January 22, 2019
Thursday, January 31, 2019
Middle School Literacy/Leadership Professional Development, Presented by
Christine Milton

5) Friday, January 11, 2019
Tuesday, January 15, 2019 and Wednesday, January 16, 2019 (scheduled
appointments)
Friday, January 25, 2019
Spanish Professional Development, Presented by Sonia Zervakos

6) Thursday, January 17, 2019
ENL Professional Development, Presented by Beth Lopez

7) Tuesday, January 22, 2019
Ms. Plaza and Ms. Perez attended the McKinney Vento Conference: Be In the
Know: Students in Temporary Housing. ‘



V.

VI.

VIL

VIIL

IX.

Parent Involvement/Activities:

1} A Calendar of Events was distributed to families for the month of January.

2) Parent Workshop, Presented by Ms. Plaza and Nurse Shah, How Nutrition and
Lifestyle Affects Learning-Thursday, January 10, 2019, 8:00-9:00 a.m.

3) Bring Your Parent to PE Day at the Elementary School, Organized by Mr.
Levitan-Wednesday, January 16, 2019 and Thursday, January 17, 2019.

4) Parent Workshop, Presented by Ms. Perez, Understanding your Adolescent-
Tuesday, January 22, 2019, 6:00-7:00 p.m.

5) Evergreen’s 10" Anniversary Assembly for students- Friday, February 1, 2019,

6) Evergreen’s 10% Anniversary Assembly for the community- Saturday, February 2,
2019.

Personnel:

Positions that need to be filled

Permanent Substitute Teacher (both buildiﬁgs)
Middle School Special Education Teacher

Student Assessment:

1) A Math Mock Exam was administered to Grades 3-8 the week of J anuary 7, 2019,

2) AnELA Mock Exam was administered to Grades 3-8 the week of January 14 2019.

3) Middle School Mid-Term Exams are scheduled for the week of J anuary 28, 2019,

4) The Mid-Year i-Ready Diagnostic is scheduled to begin the week of J anuary 28,
2019.

Challenges:
1) Transportation/Busing for School Activities.

Successes:

1) Middle School Basketball Program,.
2) Bring Your Parent to PE Day,

Proposals:

a) 8" Grade Senior Trip (see attached itinerary).

b) Additional Test Preparation classes at the Middle School.

¢} To hire a Part-Time Library Clerk.

d) United Skates Fundraiser for 8 Grade Senior Trip (see attachment).



e) Workshop presented by Planned Parenthood for 7' and 8™ Graders (scheduled during
school hours at the Elementary School).
f) To hire Erin Kelly as 2 Permanent Substitute Teacher (resume attached).

XI. Educational Trips and School Wide Activities:

1) Assemblies and activities to celebrate Bvergreen’s 10® Anniversary continue to be
planned.

I.  Community Outreach

Attachments:

Attendance Count Reports
Senior Trip Itinerary
United Skates Fundraiser
Resume

i S

VI. Questions and Comments from the Board of Trustees related to the

President of the Board’s Report: Questions and

comments from

There were none. the Board of
Trustees
VII. Questions and Comments from the Public related to Principal’s report: Questions and
Comments from
the Public

Parents asked about the scheduling of games. Discussion folowed.

VII. Financial Report:

Presented by Ms. Knox, Director of Finance and Operations: Financial Report
presented by
Ms. Knox reported that most districts have paid on time except two. There willbe | y jgett Knox

a State Intercept for Hempstead and Lawrence Districts for failure to make
payments on time. Many attempts were made to collect payment. Ms. Knox
explained the intercept process. There are 525 students are enrolled and meals have
been paid on time.



IX. Questions and Comments from the Board of Trustees related to the
Financial Report:

Discussion followed on intercept process.
X. Questions and Comments from the Public related to the Financial Report:
Discussion on intercept process and amonnt of money owed by these two districts.
XI. Parent Association Report.

There was no report this month,

XII. Approval of Minutes
Minutes of December 12, 2018
Motion Trustee Sarah Brewster
Second: Trustee Jose Canosa
Vote: 6:0
XIII. Reading of the Resolutions:

Resolutions were read in English and Spanish.

Questions and
Comments from
the Board

Questions and
Comments from
the Public

Parent Association
Report.

Approval of
Minutes from Past
Meeting

Reading and
Consideration of
Resolutions

XIV. Questions and comments from the public related to resolutions

Trustee Sarah Brewster explained the resolutions.

Questions and
comments from the
public




Approva'l of Resolutions Voting of the
Resolutions

Evergreen Charter School
Agenda Items for Resolutions:
For January 30, 2019

1. Resolved, The Board of Trustees approves the following school trips:

8 grade trip to Washington D.C.
Dates and additional details to be determined.

Motion: Trustee Gladys Rodriguez
Second: Trustee Jose Canosa
Vote: 6:0

2. Resolved, The Board of Trustees approved additional educational support classes at
the middle school.

Motion: Trustee Sarah Brewster
Second; Trustee Ariel Sotelo
Vote: 6:0

3. Resolved, The Board of Trustees approved a fundraiser for 8™ graders at United
Skates.

Dates to be determined,

Motion: Trustee Sarah Brewster
Second: Trustee Ariel Sotelo
Vote: 6:0

4. Resolved, the Board of Trustees approves health workshops for students for 7% and
8™ graders at the elementary school.
A provider will be determined.
Motion: Trustee Ariel Sotelo

Second: Trustee Jose Canosa
Vote: 6:0



5. Resolved, The Board of Trustees approves the following staff:

Name Position Effective Date
Wendy Lemus Lunch Aide 1/30/2019
Leticia Acosta Lunch Aide 1/30/2019
Edith Pineda Lunch Aide 1/30/2019
Jenifer Castro lunch Aide 1/30/2019
Erin Kelly Permanent Substitute Teacher 1/30/2019
Rahmel McCargo Custodian 1/30/2019

Motion: Trustee Ariel Sotelo
Second: Trustee Jose Canosa
Vote: 6:0

I

Resolved, the Board of Trustees approves the attached resolution approving the
school to borrow from future proceeds of revenue bonds for the acquisition of real
property and related activities.

See attached,

Motion: Trustee Sarah Brewster
Second: Trustee Ariel Sotelo
Vote: 6:0

™~

Resolved, the Board of Trustees approves the lease with Circulo de la Hispanidad
subject to modifications made by its attorney.

Motion: Trustee Luis Ras

Second: Trustee Gladys Rodriguez

Abstentions: Trustee Gil Bernardino
Trustee Sarah Brewster
Trustee Ariel Sotelo

Vote: 3:0

| Old/New Business |

XV. Old/New Business/New business:

President Bernardino spoke about the hearing for the expansion of the school. The hearing will
take place on February 13,2019, He explained the importance of attending this meeting, Everyone
is invited.



XVI. Announcements: | Announcements |

President Bernardino announced that the school will be holding its tenth
anniversary celebration of Evergreen CS on February 1, 2019 for students and February 2, 2019
for students, families and the community.

A Public Hearing will take place on Wednesday, February 13, 2019 at 6pm at ABGS Middle
School Band Box 70 Greenwich St. Hempstead, NY 11550 for the proposal of the expansion of
Evergreen Charter School.

XVII. Adjournment | Adjournment |

Motion to adjourn made by: Trustee Sarah Brewster
Seconded by: Trustee Gladys Rodriguez
Approved: 6:0

Meeting adjourned at: 8:57 pm

Minutes submitted by: M‘p(% ﬁt’t\——\/

Gladys Rodriguez, Sect’etary




Evergreen Charter School
Meeting of the Board of Trustees
605 Peninsula Blvd, Hempstead, NY 11550

Minutes from
February 27, 2019
8:15 pm
Members:
Mr. Gil Bernardino Present
Dr. Sarah Brewster Present
My, José Canosa, Esq. | Absent
Ms. Nancy Iglesias Absent
Mr. Luis Ras, Esq. Present
Ms. Yvonne Mowatt Absent
Ms. Gladys Rodriguez | Present
Mr. Ariel Sotelo Present — had to
leave early

Also present:

Ms. Karen Leeper, Interim Principal, Middle School Director
Ms. Cathy Hill, Assistant Principal
Ms. Lisett Knox, Director of Finance and Operations

Note: As always, the Board Meeting was conducted in English and Spanish.

I. Cail to Order Welcome and Call to

order: President Gil
President Bernardino called the meeting to order. He welcomed everyone and | Bernardino

thanked them for being here tonight: He introduced Interim Principal Karen
Leeper to present her report.



II. Monthly Principal Report by Interim Principal Karen Leeper Report presented by

L

IL

HI,

IV.

Ms. Karen Leeper

Evergreen Charter School
N Principal’s Report to the Board
February 27, 2019

Enrollment:
Grade Level Number of Students
Kindergarten 75
First Grade 75
Second Grade 75
Third Grade 50
Fourth Grade 50
Fifth Grade 50
Sixth Grade 50
Seventh Grade 50
Eighth Grade 50
Total: 525

Attendance:

1) See attached Attendance Count Report (includes absence/tardy reports from
9/4/2018-2/25/2019 and 1/23/2019-2/25/2019).

Curricalum & Instruction:

1) Data Team Meetings continue to take place on 2 monthly basis.

2) A new reading program is currently being researched.

3) A Google Classroom has been developed for teachers as a resource.
4) Teachers and staff have set individual professional growth goals.

Professional Development:

1) Tuesday, February 5, 2019
Wednesday, Febrary 13, 2019
Elementary School Literacy Professional Development, Presented by Pam Kinnon
(literacy consultant),

2) Thursday, February 28, 2019
Elementary School Mathematics Professional Development, Presented by Sue
Morris (math consultant)

3) Tuesday, Febroary 5, 2019
Wednesday, February 13, 2019



Permanent Substitute Teacher

Middle School Special Education Teacher

VII. Student Assessment:
1) The Mid-Year i-Ready Diagnostic will be completed by Friday, March 1, 2019.
VIIL. Chailenges:
1) Substitute Teaching Coverage.
IX. Successes:
1) Evergreen’s 10" Anniversary Assembly.
2) Attendance at Public Hearing.
X. Proposals:
1) To assign Gabriella Burgos as a Teacher Mentor.
2) Ms. Hernandez is requesting approval to attend the ISTE Conference and Expo
scheduled for June 23, 2019 - June 26, 2019 (Conference Request Form Attached).
3) Ms. Hernandez is requesting approval to attend the NASTECH-Microsoft Leadership
Conference scheduled for March 8, 2019 (Conference Request Form Attached).
4) Ms. Perez is requesting approval to attend a McKinney Vento Training scheduled for
March 21, 2019 (Conference Request Form Attached).
3) Ms. Leeper, Ms. Weigand, Ms. Hill, Ms. Wise and Ms. Spiazzi are requesting
approval 1o attend the Introduction to F & P Classroom: A Design for Coherent
Literacy Instruction K-4 scheduled for March 11, 2019 - March 12, 2019.
6) To purchase 30 Chromebooks and a charging cart for the Elementary School (See
Attachment).
XI. Educational Trips and School Wide Activities:
1) Kindness Awareness activities have been planned for the month of March.
2) Dr. Seuss/Read Across America day activities have been planned for the Elementary
School.
3) Attendance Counts Poster Contest is being held at the Elementary School.
I.  Community Qutreach
Attachments:

1. Attendance Count Reports



2. Conference Request Forms (4)
3. Chromebook Quote

III. Questions and Comments from the Board of Trustees related to the
President of the Board’s Report:

There were none

IV. Questions and Comments from the Public related to Principal’s report:

Discussion followed on the Jr. Honor Society and the moving up ceremony for the
fifth graders. Parents also asked about Kindergarten gradvation. Principal Leeper
explained the different ceremonies planned for these occasions and that

Questions and
comments from
the Board of
Trustees

Questions and
Comments from
the Public

kindergarten will have an end of the year concert celebration instead of a graduation.

V. Financial Report:
Presented by Ms. Knox, Director of Finance and Qperations:
Ms. Knox reported that all districts are up to date on their payments except

Lawrence. State intercept is already in progress and the application was already
approved. Meals are all up to date. Children form 19 districts attend Evergreen.

VI. Questions and Comments from the Board of Trustees related io the
Financial Report:
There were none
VII. Questions and Comments from the Public related to the Financial Report:

There were none.

VIII. Parent Association Report,
The parent association presented dates for activities including

March 15, 2019 ELA/Zumba Night
March 29, 2019 Stem Night

Financial Report
presented by
Lisett Knox

Questions and
Comments from
the Board

Questions and
Comments from
the Public

Parent Association
Report.




Vote: 4:0

6) Resolved, the Board of trustees approves the following staff appointments:
Name Position Effective
Christian Aguilar Business Office Assistant March 1, 2019

Motion: Trustee Sarah Brewster
Second: Trustee Gladys Rodrignez
Vote: 4:0

| Old/New Business |

XIII. Old/New Business/New business:

President Bernardino spoke about the hearing for the expansion of the school at Hempstead Middle
School. He thanked parents and board members for their turnout, There were so many Evergreen
parents, students and supporters in attendance the room did not accommodate everyone and there
were over thirty parents and students outside the room. Instructions given to parents however was
intimidating as parents were told that only tax payers or home owners could sign.

President Bernardino talked about a news article in Newsday about Charter Schools which was
very negative and a “very damaging article” --This article was one-sided and did not mention the
great accomplishments and excellent education that Charter Schools provide 1o our communities.
He urged parents to respond to Newsday.,

Discussion followed on the article and its negative impact.

XIV. Announcements: | Announcements

President Bernardino announced that a meeting would be held with the 8"
graders and their parents to discuss the trip to Washington.
Ms. Knox reminded people of registration for the Lottery which will take place on April 1, 2019.

XV. Adjournment I Adjournment
Motion to adjourn made by: Trustee Gladys Rodriguez
Seconded by: Trustee Sarah Brewster
Approved: 4:0

Meeting adjourned at: 9:20

Minutes submiited by: M

Gladys Rodriguez, Secretary



Evergreen Charter School
Meeting of the Board of Trustees
605 Peninsula Blvd, Hempstead, NY 11550

Minutes from
March 27, 2019
8:00 pm

Members:
Mr. Gil Bernardino Present
Dr. Sarah Brewster Present
Mr. José Canosa, Esq. | Present
Ms. Nancy Iglesias Present
Mr. Luis Ras, Esq. Present
Ms. Yvonne Mowatt Present
Ms. Gladys Rodriguez | Present
Mr. Ariel Sotelo Absent

Also present:

Ms. Karen Leeper, Interim Principal, Middle School Director
Ms. Christine Weigand, Interim Principal, Elementary School
Ms. Cathy Hill, Assistant Principal

Ms. Lisett Knox, Director of Finance and Operations

Note: As always, the Board Meeting was conducted in English and Spanish.

I. Call to Order Welcome and Call to

order: President Gil
President Bernardino called the meeting to order. He welcomed everyone and Bernardino.

thanked them for being here tonight: He introduced Interim Principal Karen
Leeper to present her report:



II. Monthly Principal Report by Interim Principal Karen Leeper Report presented by
Ms. Karen Leeper

_Evergreen Charter School
Principal’s Report to the Board

March 28, 2019
I.  Enrollment:

Grade Level Number of Students
Kindergarten 75

First Grade 74

Second Grade 75

Third Grade 50

Fourth Grade 50

Fifth Grade 50

Sixth Grade 50

Seventh Grade 50

Eighth Grade 50

Total: 524

II. Attendance:

1) See attached Attendance Count Report (includes absence/tardy reports from
9/4/2018-3/20/2019 and 2/25/2019-3/20/2019).

III. Curriculum & Instruction:

1) Data Team Meetings continue to take place on a monthly basis.

2) A new reading program continues to be researched.

3) At the close of the second marking period meetings took place to identify students
with promotion in doubt.

4) Meetings have taken place to establish the second Response to Intervention (RTI)
cycle.

5) Elementary school students will participate in a Sunflower Planting Project in
connection with the book Sunflower Circle written by Scott Wright.

IV.  Professional Development:

1) Wednesday, March 6, 2019



Thursday, March 14, 2019
Elementary School Literacy Professional Development, Presented by Pam Kinnon

(literacy consultant).

2) Thursday, March 14, 2019
Thursday, March 28, 2019
Elementary School Mathematics Professional Development, Presented by Sue
Morris (math consultant)

3) Tuesday, March 5, 2019
Thursday, March 14, 2019
Thursday, March 29, 2019
Middle School Literacy/Leadership Professional Development, Presented by
Christine Milton

4) Tuesday, March 12, 2019 (scheduled appointments)
Friday, March 15, 2019 (scheduled appointments)
Spanish Professional Development, Presented by Sonia Zervakos

5) Monday, March 11, 2019
Tuesday, March 26, 2019
ENL Professional Development, Presented by Beth Lopez

6) Monday March 11, 2019- Tuesday, March 12, 2019
Karen Leeper, Christine Weigand and Eufrasia Spiazzi attended an Introduction
to F&P Classroom Conference, presented by Irene Fountas at Lesley University.

V. Parent Involvement/A ctivities:

1) A Calendar of Events was distributed to families for the month of March.,

2) Academy Charter School High School Presentation for 8" Grade Parents took
place on Thursday, March 7, 2019 at 6:00 p.m. the Elementary School.

3) An 8" Grade Parent Meeting to discuss the Senior Trip to Washington DC took
place on Monday, March 11, 2019.

4) A Spanish Awards Assembly for the Elementary School is scheduled for
Wednesday, March 27, 2019.

5) STEM Night is scheduled for Friday, March 29, 2019 at the Elementary School
for Grades K-8.

VI. Personnel:

Positions that need to be filled

Permanent Substitute Teacher
Middle School Special Education Teacher




VIL. Student Assessment:
1) Students in Grades 3-8 will take the NYS ELA Exam April 2-3, 2019.
VIII. Challenges:
1) Substitute Teaching Coverage.
IX. Successes:
1) Second Grader Wilber Cordova was recognized as a winner for the Cyber Security
Awareness New York State K-12 Poster Contest.
2) PA Family Zumba Night
X. Proposals:
1) First Grade is requesting to change their previously approved field trip to the Queens
County Farm Museum on Thursday, May 16, 2019 (field trip request form attached).
2) Ms. Munro is requesting approval for a Student Council field trip to the United
Nations on Friday, May 10, 2019 (field trip request form attached).
3) Mr. Rincon is requesting approval to run after school music clubs at the elementary
and middle school once a week beginning April 1, 2019.
4) Mr. Gutierrez is requesting approval to run an after-school music club at the
elementary school once a week beginning April 1, 2019.
5) Membership with National Junior Honor Society (Grades 6-9) (see attachment).
6) To purchase ‘Good Luck’ t-shirts for the staff to wear on the days of the NYS
Assessments (cost proposal attached).
7) Ms. Markey is requesting approval to attend the “On the Spot” Techniques for
Children and Adolescents with Emotional and Behavioral Problems seminar on
Thursday, June 6, 2019.
8) To hire Carmen Flores to support the Elementary School Library.
XI. Educational Trips and School Wide Activities:
1) As aculminating activity for Black History Menth Musical IQ presented assemblies
on Wednesday, March 20, 2019.
2) NYS ELA Exam Pep Rallies for Grades 3-8 are scheduled for Monday, April 1, 2018.
I. Community Outreach
Attachments:
1. Field Trip Request Forms (2)
2. National Junior Honor Society Handouts
3. T-Shirt Cost Proposal
4. Conference Request Form



HI. Questions and Comments from the Board of Trustees related to the
President of the Board’s Report:

There were none.

IV. Questions and Comments from the Public related to Principal’s report:

There were none.

V. Financial Report:
Presented by Ms. Knox, Director of Finance and Operations:

Ms. Knox reported that there are 7 districts that have been late with their payments.
These is an intercept in place for the districts of Hempstead and Lawrence. Meal
payments are up to date and have been deposited into account.

Ms. Knox spoke about recruitment efforts and reaching out to promote the school

Questions and
comments from
the Board of
Trustees

Questions and
comments from
the Public

Financial Report
presented by
Lisett Knox

in different churches and to the whole community. Ads were also placed in the newspaper. She

reminded everybody about the lottery and explained the process.

VI. Questions and Comments from the Board of Trustees related to the
Financial Report:

President Bernardino spoke about the importance and the need to have a more
diverse school with respect to racial and ethnic diversity. Recruitment efforts are

one of our top priorities.
VIL. Questions and Comments from the Public related to the Financial Report:

Discussion followed on recruitment and ways to reach out to our community.

VIII. Parent Association Report.

Dates of events were reviewed and presented by the Mr. Brown, will have a full
report and breakdown of dates for next meeting,

Questions and
Comments from
the Board of
Trustees

Questions and
Comments from
the Pubilic

Parent
Association
Report.




Questions and
Comments from
the Board of

There were none. Trustees

IX. Questions and Comments from the Board of Trustees related to the
Parent Association Report:

Questions and Comments from the Public related to the Parent Association. [ Question and

C ts f
Discussion followed on the events scheduled for the year. ommelf rom
the Public

X. Approval of Minutes
Minutes of February 27, 2019

Moticn Trustee Yvonne Mowatt
Second: Trustee Sarah Brewster

Vote: 7:0
XI. Reading of the Resolutions: Reading and
Consideration of
Resolutions were read in English and Spanish. Resolutions
XII. Questions and comments from the public related to resolutions Questions and

comments from the

Trustee Sarah Brewster explained the resolutions. .
public

Approval of Resolutions Voting of the
Resolutions

Evergreen Charter School
Agenda Items for Resolutions:
For March 28, 2019

Resolutions
1) Resolved, the Board of Trustees approves the following field trips:

First Grade is requesting to change their previously approved field trip to the Queens
County Farm Museum on Thursday, May 16, 2019 (field trip request form attached).



Ms. Munro is requesting approval for a Student Council field trip to the United
Nations on Friday, May 10, 2019 (field trip request form attached).

Mr. Rincon is requesting approval for an 8™ grade trip to Lincoln Center on
Wednesday, May 8% 2019 (field trip request form attached).

Mr. Eichhorn is requesting approve for a 7 grade field trip to the VEI International
Trade Show on Wednesday, April 17, 2019 (field trip request form attached).

Ms. Munro, Ms. Sullivan and Ms. Foerster are requesting approval for a 7% and 8t
grade field trip to the Long Island Seaport and Eco Center on Wednesday, June 12%
2019 (field trip request form attached).

Motion: Trustee Jose Canosa
Second: Yvonne Mowatt
Vote: 7:0

2) Resolved, the Board of Trustees approves the following clubs:

Mr. Rincon is requesting approval to run after school music clubs at the elementary
and middle school once a week beginning April 1, 2019.

Mr. Gutierrez is requesting approval to run an after-school music club at the
elementary school once a week beginning April 1, 2019.

Motion: Trustee Sarah Brewster
Second: Trustee Jose Canocsa
Vote: 7:0

3) Resolved, the Board of Trustees approves Evergreen Charter School’s Membership
with National Junior Honor Society (Grades 6-9) (see attachment).

Motion: Trustee Gladys Rodriguez
Second: Trustee Nancy Iglesias
Vote: 7:00



4) Resolyed the Board of Trustees approves the following professional development for
staft:

Ms. Markey “On the Spot” Techniques for Children and Adolescents with Emotional
and Behavioral Problems seminar on Thursday, June 6, 2019.

Leading Self for Lisett Knox, Chef Josh, Evelyn Hernandez. An invitation has also
been made to board members. The training is scheduled for March 31 — April 2,
2019.

Ms. Guzona is requesting approval to participate as a Dele Examiner at the Instituto
Cervantes, Friday June 6, 2019 (conference form attached).

Ms. Leeper, Ms. Weigand and Ms. Knox are requesting approval to attend the
Ensuring Operational Excellence Workshop on Monday April 15,2019 (conference
forms attached).

Motion: Trustee Yvonne Mowatt
Second: Trustee Nancy Iglesias
Vote: 7:00

5) Resolved, the Board of Trustees makes the following staff appointments:
Name Position Effective
Carmen Flores Library Assistant Immediately
Motion: Trustee Sarah Brewster

Second: Trustee Jose Canosa
Vote: 7:00



6) Resolved, the Board of Trustees approves the following activities:

A request by administration to invite Keith Davis to present whole school assemblies
for the elementary and middle school on either Friday April 12, 2019 or Monday
April 29, 2019 to support student potential, inspire and address academic
achievement, character development and motivation (see attachment).

An author visit from published Author Scott Wright on Tuesday, April 30, 2019 (see
attachment).

Motion: Trustee Gladys Rodriguez
Second: Trustee Sarah Brewster
Vote: 7:00

7) Resolved, the Board of Trustees approves the request by administration to change to
SchoolTool (replacing PowerSchool) as the school’s student management system.

Motion: Trustee Nancy Iglesis
Second: Trustee Yvonne Mowatt
Vote: 7:00

8) Resolved, the Board of Trustees approves a policy to address head lice. See School
Lice Policy.

Motion: Trustee Sarah Brewster
Second: Trustee Nancy Iglesias
Vote: 7:00

9) Resolved, the Board of Trustees ratifies the unanimous written consent of the Board
of Director of Evergreen Charter School.

(Note: the three Board Members affiliated with Circulo signed for the unanimous
consent indicating that they approved that the vote be taken at the same time they
indicated they would abstain from the vote to approve the lease and ROFO
agreement),

See attached:

Motion: Trustee Jose Canosa
Second: Trustee Luis Ras
Vote: 5:0

2 abstentions: Trustee Sarah Brewster and President Gil Bernardino



10) Resolved, the Board of Trustees approves the Lease agreement and ROFO agreement
with Circulo Real Property Holding Corporation and Evergreen Charter School.

See attached:

Motion: Trustee Jose Canosa

Second: Trustee Luis Ras

Vote: 5:0 Trustee

2 abstentions: Trustee Sarah Brewster and President Gil Bernardino

XIII. Old/New Business/New business: Oid/New
Business
None.
XIV. Announcements: Old/New
Business
The Lottery for Evergreen will take place on April 1, 2019

XV. Adjournment

. - Ad » t
Motion to adjourn made by: Trustee Yvonne Mowatt journmen
Seconded by: Trustee Sarah Brewster
Approved: 7:0

Meeting adjourned at; 8:57

Minutes submitted by: Mfwﬁﬂ % M

Gladys Rodriguez, Seéretary
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Evergreen Charter School
Meeting of the Board of Trustees
605 Peninsula Blvd, Hempstead, NY 11550

Minutes from

April 17, 2019
8:00 pm
Members:
Mr. Gil Bernardino Present
Dr. Sarah Brewster Present
Mr. José Canosa, Esq. | Present
Ms. Nancy Iglesias Absent
Mr. Luis Ras, Esq. Absent
Ms. Yvonne Mowatt Present
Ms. Gladys Rodriguez | Present
Mnr. Ariel Sotelo Present

Also present:

Ms. Karen Leeper, Interim Principal, Middle School Director
Ms. Christine Weigand, Interim Principal, Elementary School
Ms. Cathy Hill, Assistant Principal

Ms. Lisett Knox, Director of Finance and Operations

Note: As always, the Board Meeting was conducted in English and Spanish.

I. Call to Order

President Bernardino called the meeting to order. He welcomed everyone and
thanked them for being here tonight: He introduced Wilmer Cordova, a second
grader who won New York State’s Kid’s Safe Online Poster Contest Winner.
He was presented with a plaque. The Mayor of the Village of Hempstead sent
Wilmer with a certificate of appreciation presented by Trustee Gladys

Rodriguez.

Welcome and Call to
order:

President Gil
Bernardino.

President Bernardino also introduced Mr. Faulter who introduced the boys and girls basketball
teams. Trophies were distributed to the teams. Mr. Faulter thanked students for their efforts and

|




complimented them for their team work and outstanding dedication. President Bernardino also
commended students on their efforts as Evergreen’s first basketball team members. Interim
Principal Karen Leeper also thanked Mr. Faulter for his time and dedication and congratulated that
teams for great effort and hard work this season and for the great accomplishments for Evergreen.

President Bernardino introduced Interim Principal Karen Leeper to present her report:

II. Monthly Principal Report by Interim Principal Karen Leeper

Evergreen Charter School
Principal’s Report to the Board

Report presented by
Ms. Karen Leeper

April 19, 2019
I. Enrollment:

Grade Level Number of Students
Kindergarten 75

First Grade 75

Second Grade 75

Third Grade 50

Fourth Grade 50

Fifth Grade 50

Sixth Grade 50

Seventh Grade 50

Eighth Grade 50

Total: 525

II. Attendance:

1) See attached Attendance Count Report (includes absence/tardy reports from

9/4/2018-4/19/2019 and 3/20/2019-4/19/2019).

OI. Curriculum & Instruction:

1) Data Team Meetings continue to take place on a monthly basis.
2) A new reading program continues to be researched.

3) Students in Grades 3 and 7 will participate in a Financial Education Program
sponsored by People’s United Bank.
4) The Spanish Department has coordinated multi-media projects with students from

Spain.




IV. Professional Development:

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

Friday, April 5, 2019

Thursday, April 11, 2019

Thursday, April 18, 2019

Elementary School Mathematics Professional Development, Presented by Sue
Morris

Tuesday, April 16, 2019

Tuesday, April 30, 2019

Middle School Literacy/Leadership Professional Development, Presented by
Christine Milton

Wednesday, April 10, 2019

Wednesday, April 17, 2019

Middle School Mathematics Professional Development, Presented by Anthony
Volforte

Friday, April 5, 2019

Wednesday, April 10, 2019

Friday, April 12, 2019

Spanish Professional Development, Presented by Sonia Zervakos

Friday, April 5, 2019
Friday, April 12, 2019
ENL Professional Development, Presented by Beth Lopez

V. Parent Involvement/Activities:

1)
2)
3

4)
5)

6)

A Calendar of Events was distributed to families for the month of April.

Family Movie Night is scheduled for Friday, April 12, 2019.

Elementary School iReady and Poetry Awards Ceremony is scheduled for
Wednesday, April 17, 2019.

Middle School Awards Ceremony is scheduled for Monday, April 29, 2019.
Elementary School Parent-Teacher Conferences are scheduled for Tuesday, May
7,2019.

Middle School Parent-Teacher Conferences are scheduled for Thursday, May 9,
2019 and Tuesday, May 14, 2019,



VI‘

VII.

VIIIL.

IX.

Personnel:

Positions that need to be filled

Permanent Substitute Teacher

Middle School Special Education Teacher

Student Assessment:

1) Students in Grades 3-8 took the NYS ELA Exam April 2-3, 2019.

2) Students in Grades 3-8 will take the NYS Math Exam May 1-2, 2019.

3) The administration of the speaking portion of the NYSELATT Exam began the week
of April 8, 2019.

4) Students in Grade 8 participated in a Mock FLAC Exam the week of April 8, 2018
with the support of the Spanish Consultant.

Challenges:

1} Substitute Teaching Coverage.

Successes:

1) Second Grader Wilber Cordova was recognized as a winner for the Cyber Security
Awareness New York State K-12 Poster Contest.

2) Evergreen’s Expansion Request was Approved

3) Elementary School Spanish Awards

4) STEM Night

Proposals:

1) Teacher Appreciation Week Activities (see attachment).

2) Ms. Ishmael is requesting approval to participate in the FLES Extension Course at
Queens College (Conference Request Form Attached).

3) Classes will raise money by recycling plastic bottles to adopt marine mammals and
sea turtles from the Riverhead Foundation for Marine Research and Preservation as
part of the Earth Day Network 2019 Theme: Saving our Species (see attachment).

4) Spring Clubs:

Elementary School:

STEM Club, Ms. Mulvaney

Cooking Club, Ms. Vasquez

Gardening Club, Ms. Camilli

Cheerleading Club (Grades 1-2), Ms. Davies



Cheerleading Club (Grades 3-4), Ms. Sciara
Fitness Club, Mr. Levitan

Zumba Club, Ms. Burgos

Math Club, Ms. Smith

Spanish Club, Ms. Figuera

Middle School:

Drama Club, Ms. Munro and Ms. Mendez (goal to perform a play at the end of the school

year)

Glee Club, Ms. Restivo

Debate Club, Mr. Benavides

5) Saturday Homework Detention Program for the remainder of the school year.

6) Student Council is requesting to run a Chipotle and Nature’s Vision Fundraiser (see
attachment).

7) To hold a Community Resource Fair on Thursday, June 20, 2019.

8) Tower Garden Initiative (see attachment).

9) Updates to Parent Manual (see attachment),

XI. Educational Trips and School Wide Activities:
1) NYS ELA Exam Pep Rallies for Grades 3-8 took place on Tuesday, April 2, 2018.
2) A 7" and 8" Grade Dance took place on Friday, April 5, 2019.
3) Motivational Speaker, Keith Davis Presentation is scheduled for Friday, April 12,
2019.
4) Earth Day Activities have been scheduled the week of April 15, 2019.
5) Scott Wright Author Visit is scheduled for Tuesday, April 30, 2019.
6) An 8" Grade Brunch Fundraiser for the Senior Trip to Washington DC has been
scheduled for Saturday, May 4, 2019.
7) Picture Re-Take Day/8™ Grade Cap and Gown Pictures are scheduled for Monday,
May 6, 2019.
Attachments:
L. Teacher Appreciation Week Activities
2. Conference Request Form
3. Riverhead Foundation for Marine Research and Preservation Flyer
4. Fundraiser Documents
5. Tower Garden Information



III. Questions and Comments from the Board of Trustees related to the
President of the Board’s Report:

President Bernardino thanked everyone and announced the great news of the
expansion approval for Evergreen “the dream is a little closer”

He also spoke about the excitement in the school about the trip to Washington DC
to celebrate this year’s graduation. There will be a breakfast on May 4" for a

Questions and
comments from
the Board of
Trustees

fundraiser for this trip. All children graduating will be able to attend. The school has planned

many fundraisers for the trip and has received donations as well.

President Bernardino reminded everyone that there are rules and regulations to follow during this
trip and they must be followed for the safety of the children and adults. Both president Bernardino

and Trustee Sarah Brewster will be going on the trip.

IV. Questions and Comments from the Public related to Principal’s report:

There were none.

V. Financial Report:
Presented by Ms. Knox, Director of Finance and Operations:
Mrs. Knox explained that some districts are behind with their payments and that
applications were submitted to intercept two districts. Her office is preparing

invoices for the last billing of the last cycle of the school year, Payments for meals
are up to date.

VI. Questions and Comments from the Board of Trustees related to the
Financial Report:

There were none.

VIL. Questions and Comments from the Public related to the Financial Report:

Discussion followed on fundraising for the Washington DC trip and other activities
for students. One parent suggested that people should be kept informed about the
progress of the fundraising so that they can see the urgency of promoting it.

Questions and
Comments from
the Public

Financial Report
presented by
Lisett Knox

Questions and
Comments from
the Board

Questions and
Comments from
the Public




VIII. Parent Association Report.

Trustee Brewster stated that the PA reported that movie night was very successful.
In addition, she reported that the PA would sending information out shortly for
talent show registration,

Parent Association
Report.

IX. Questions and Comments from the Board of Trustees related to the
Parent Association Report:

There were none.

Questions and
Comments from
the Board of
Trustees

Questions and Comments from the Public related to the Parent Association.

There were none.

Question and
Comments from
the Public

X. Approval of Minutes
Minutes of March 27, 2019
Motion Trustee Yvonne Mowatt
Second: Trustee Jose Canosa
Vote: 6:0
XI. Reading of the Resolutions:

Resolutions were read in English and Spanish.

XII. Questions and comments from the public related to resolutions

Trustee Sarah Brewster explained the resolutions.

Reading and
Consideration of

Resolutions

Questions and
comments from the
public




Approval of Resolutions Voting of the
Resolutions

Evergreen Charter School
Agenda Items for Resolutions:
April 17, 2019

Resolutions

1) Resolved, the Board of Trustees approves the proposed list of activities for teacher
appreciation week. See attachment.

Motion: Trustee Sarah Brewster
Second: Trustee Jose Canosa
Vote: 6:0 Trustee

2) Resolved, the Board of Trustees approves the following workshops and PD for
staff:

Ms. Ishmael is requesting approval to participate in the FLES Extension Course at
Queens College (Conference Request Form Attached).

Motion: Trustee Ariel Sotelo
Second: Trustee Yvonne Mowatt
Vote: 6:0 Trustee
3) Resolved, the Board of Trustees approves the following school activities:
a) Earth day activities to raise awareness: This involves classes raising money by
recycling plastic bottles to adopt marine mammals and sea turtles from the
Riverhead Foundation for Marine Research and Preservation as part of the Earth
Day Network 2019 Theme: Saving our Species (see attachment).
b) Community Resource Fair to be held on Thursday, June 20, 2019.
¢) Fundraiser at Chipotle Restaurant to raise funds for 8" grade trip.
d) Natures vision fundraiser supporting earth activities for 8" grade trip.
Motion: Trustee Jose Canosa

Second: Trustee Yvonne Mowatt
Vote: 6:0 Trustee



4) Resolved, the Board of Trustees approves the following spring clubs:

Elementary School:

STEM Club, Ms. Mulvaney

Cooking Club, Ms. Vasquez

Gardening Club, Ms. Camilli

Cheerleading Club (Grades 1-2}, Ms. Davies
Cheerleading Club (Grades 3-4), Ms. Sciara
Fitness Club, Mr. Levitan

Zumba Club, Ms. Burgos

Math Club, Ms. Smith

Spanish Club, Ms. Figuera

Middle School:

Drama Club, Ms. Munro and Ms. Mendez (goal to perform a play at the end of the school
year)

Glee Club, Ms. Restivo

Debate Club, Mr. Benavides

Motion: Trustee Ariel Sotelo
Second: Trustee Yvonne Mowatt
Vote: 6:0 Trustee

5) Resolved, the Board of Trustees approves the Tower Garden Initiative.

Motion: Trustee Yvonne Mowatt
Second: Trustee Sarah Brewster
Vote: 6:0 Trustee



6) Resolved, the Board of Trustees approves updates to the parent manual.

Motion: Trustee Gladys Rodriguez
Second: Trustee Ariel Sotelo
Vote: 6:0 Trustee

7) Resolved, the Board of Trustees approves a Saturday homework detention program
for the remainder of the school year.

Motion: Trustee Gladys Rodriguez
Second: Trustee Yvonne Mowatt
Vote: 6:0 Trustee
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8) Resolved, the Board of Trustees approves a change to its bereavement policy. This
will be retroactive for the 2018-2019 school year.

Current:
Up to 3 days of paid bereavement leave will be provided to eligible employees in the

following classification:

e full time employees

Bereavement leave will be normally granted unless there are unusual business needs or staffing
requirements. Employees may, with their supervisor’s approval, use any available paid leave for
additional time off as necessary.

ECS defines “immediate family” as the employee's spouse, domestic partner, parent, child, sibling;
the employee’s spouse’s parent, child or sibling; the employee’s child’s spouse; grandparents or
grandchildren. Proof may be requested.

Change:
Up to 3 days of paid bereavement leave will be provided to eligible employees in the

following classification;

¢ full time employees

Bereavement leave will be normally granted unless there are unusual business needs or staffing
requirements. Employees may, with their supervisor’s approval, use any available paid leave for
additional time off as necessary.

ECS defines “immediate family” as the employee's spouse, domestic partner, parent, child, sibling;
the employee’s spouse’s parent, child or sibling; the employee’s child’s spouse; grandparents or
grandchildren. Proof may be requested.

An additional 2 days of bereavement leave will be provided to eligible employees for the death of
a spouse, domestic partners, parent, child or sibling for a total of 5 days of paid bereavement
leave.

To qualify as a domestic partner, the individual and individual’s partner must have registered
with New York State as a domestic partner.

Motion: Trustee Jose Canosa
Second: Trustee Gladys Rodriguez
Vote: 6:0 Trustee
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9} Resolved, the Board of Trustees approves the following staff appointments:

Name Position Effective

Miriam Zetino Garcia (lunch aide) P/T 4/17/2019
Janitzia Romero (lunch aide) P/T 4/17/2019
Majallia Rodriguez (custodian)  P/T 4/17/2019
Gillermo Rivera Jr. (custodian)  F/T 4/17/2019

Motion: Trustee Yvonne Mowatt
Second: Trustee Jose Canosa
Vote: 6:0 Trustee

10) Resolved, the Board of Trustees approve the contract with a substitute company
called School Professional to help secure substitutes.

Motion: Trustee Jose Canosa
Second: Trustee Yvonne Mowatt
Vote: 6:0 Trustee

11) Resolved, The Board of Trustees authorizes and approves opening two bank accounts
with Peoples United Bank. Accounts will include an operating account and savings
account.

Evergreen will move its reserve funds from Well Fargo to People’s United bank. It
will also operate an operating account.

Motion: Trustee Ariel Sotelo
Second: Trustee Jose Canosa
Vote: 6:0 Trustee
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XIII. Old/New Business/New business:

| Old/New Business |
None.
| Announcements
XIV. Announcements:
There were none.
XV. Adjournment Adjournment

Motion to adjourn made by: Trustee Yvonne Mowatt
Seconded by: Trustee Ariel Sotelo
Approved: 6:0

Meeting adjourned at: 8:52 M
Minutes submitted by: M""‘{‘mfb

Gladys Rodriguez, Secré tary
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Evergreen Charter School
Meeting of the Board of Trustees
605 Peninsula Blvd, Hempstead, NY 11550

Minutes from
May 22, 2019
8:10 pm

Members:
Mr. Gil Bernardino Present
Dr. Sarah Brewster Present
Mr. José Canosa, Esq. | Absent
Ms. Nancy Iglesias Present
Myr. Luis Ras, Esq. Present
Ms. Yvonne Mowatt Absent
Ms. Gladys Rodriguez | Present
Mr. Ariel Sotelo Present

Also present:

Ms. Karen Leeper, Interim Principal, Middle School Director
Ms. Christine Weigand, Interim Principal, Elementary School
Ms. Cathy Hill, Assistant Principal

Ms. Lisett Knox, Director of Finance and Operations

Note: As always, the Board Meeting was conducted in English and Spanish.

I. Call to Order Welcome and Call to
order: President Gil
President Bernardino called the meeting to order at 8:10. He welcomed Bernardino.

everyone and thanked them for being here tonight: He presented Interim
Principal Karen Leeper for her report



II. Monthly Principal Report by Interim Principal Karen Leeper

Evergreen Charter School

Principal’s Report to the Board

Report presented by
Ms. Karen Leeper

May 22, 2019
1. Enrollment:

Grade Level Number of Students
Kindergarten 75
First Grade 75
Second Grade 75
Third Grade 50
Fourth Grade 50
Fifth Grade 50
Sixth Grade 50
Seventh Grade 50
Eighth Grade 50
Total: 525

II. Attendance:

1) See attached Attendance Count Report (includes absence/tardy reports from

9/4/2018-5/15/2019 and 4/19/2019-5/15/2019).

oI. Curriculum & Instruction:

1) Data Team Meetings continue to take place on a monthly basis.
2) Cornell University will partner with Evergreen Charter School to provide

nutrition workshops with students.

IV.  Professional Development:

1) Monday, May 20, 2019

2)

Thursday, May 23, 2019
Elementary School Mathematics Professional Development, Presented by Sue
Morris

Wednesday, May 8, 2019
Friday, May 10, 2019
Tuesday, May 14, 2019
Wednesday, May 15, 2019
Tuesday, May 21, 2019



V.

VL.

VIL

3) Wednesday, May 8, 2019

4)

3)

Tuesday, May 28, 2019
Middle School Literacy/Leadership Professional Development, Presented by
Christine Milton

Friday, May 24, 2019

Friday, May 31, 2019

Middle School Mathematics Professional Development, Presented by Anthony
Volforte

Friday, May 10, 2019
ENL Professional Development, Presented by Beth Lopez

Parent Involvement/A ctivities:

1)
2)

3)

4)

A Calendar of Events was distributed to families for the month of May.
Elementary School Parent-Teacher Conferences took place Tuesday, May 7,
2019.

Middle School Parent-Teacher Conferences took place Thursday, May 9, 2019
and Tuesday, May 14, 2019.

8™ Grade Washington D.C Parent/Student Meeting is scheduled for Thursday,
May 23, 2019.

Personnel:

Positions that need to be filled

Permanent Substitute Teacher

Middle School Special Education Teacher

Student Assessment:

1) Students will take the iReady Diagnostic beginning the week of May 20, 2019.

2) The administration of the speaking portion of the FLAC Exam (Grade 8) began the
week of May 6, 2019,

3) Students in Grades 4 and 8 will take the performance portion of the NYS Science
Exam May 22, 2019-May 23, 2019.




VIIL.

IX.

X.

Successes:

1)
2)

8% Grade Fundraisers- Brunch, United Skates, Car Wash
April Purple Awards Ceremony

Proposals:

1y
2)

3)
4)

3)

6)

7)
8)
9)

Policy on the Education of Students in Temporary Housing (see attachment).
Parents’ Bill of Rights for Data Privacy and Security Policy/Notification of Rights
Under FERPA (see attachment).

Field Trip Consent, Waiver and Release Form (see attachment).

Mr. Levitan is requesting approval for The National Circus Project to visit the
elementary school and perform a whole school assembly and grade level workshops
(see attachment).

Ms. Hill is requesting approval to attend a Dignity for all Students Act training on
Wednesday, June 12, 2019 at Eastern Suffolk BOCES (Conference Request Form
attached).

Ms. Brutus is requesting approval to attend the Over 75 Quick “On -The-Spot”
Techniques for Children and Adolescents with Emotional and Behavioral Problems
workshop on Thursday, June 6, 2019 (Conference Request Form attached).

To purchase and implement Pearson My View/My Perspective reading program for
grades K-8 in the 2019-20 school year (see attachment).

Elementary and Middle School Carnival Day (see attachment).

Summer School Budget (see attachment).

Saturday Detention (see attachment).

10) Ms, Perez is requesting approval for a field trip for her Community Service Club to

Family and Children’s Association on Friday, June 7, 2019.
Ms. Perez is requesting approval for a field trip for her Community Service Club to
Habitat for Humanity on Thursday, June 13, 2019.

Educational Trips and School Wide Activities:

Attachments:
McKinney-Vento Policy
Parents’ Bill of Rights for Data Privacy and Security Policy

SRR o Sl

Field Trip Consent, Waiver and Release Form

The National Circus Project Rationale
Conference Request Forms (2)

Pearson My View Reading Program
Carnival Day Proposal

Summer School/Detention Budget Proposal

Field Trip Request Forms (2)



OI. Questions and Comments from the Board of Trustees related to the
President of the Board’s Report:

President Bernardino reviewed the rules and regulations for the trip to
Washington, consent, waiver and release forms, and thanked Mrs. Joy Samuels

for her donation of a $1000.00 for this trip.
Discussion followed on the improvement of the foreign language program.

IV. Questions and Comments from the Public related to Principal’s report:

Discussion followed on trip to Washington.

V. Financial Report:
Presented by Ms. Knox, Director of Finance and Operations:

Ms. Knox reported that most districts are up to date on their payments. Some of
them are still pending for last payments.. Her office is in the process of preparing
the invoices for next year. Mrs. Knox indicated that funds have been received from
the Hempstead district for last year. A state intercept for Lawrence will be filed for

Questions and
comments from
the Board of
Trustees

Questions and
Comments from
the Public

Financial Report
presented by
Lisett Knox

the second half of the school year. She is waiting for the funds for the first application that was

approved.
Meal payments are up to date,

VI. Questions and Comments from the Board of Trustees related to the
Financial Report:
President Bernardino spoke about an article published by Newsday on Sunday,
May 12, 2019 that he and Dr. Brewster wrote in response to the negative article
about Charter Schools published by Newsday on May 1, 2019. He spoke about the
importance on educating the community about Charter Schools.

VIL. Questions and Comments from the Public related to the Financial Report:

There were none.

Questions and
Comments from
the Board

Questions and
Comments from
the Public




VIII. Parent Association Report.

IX.

X.

XL

XIL.

PA will donate to cover two children for the trip to Washington.

In the process of planning a trip to an acrobat show for elementary and Middle
School children.

Book fair will take place next week.

Talent show is scheduled for the 14" of June

Questions and Comments from the Board of Trustees related to the
Parent Association Report:

President Bernardino congratulated the PA for an excellent job done throughout
the year.

Parent Association
Report.

Questions and
Comments from
the Board of
Trustees

Questions and Comments from the Public related to the Parent Association.

There were none.

Question and
Comments from
the Public

Approval of Minutes

Minutes of April 22, 2019
Motion Trustee Sarah Brewster
Second: Trustee Nancy Iglesias
Vote: 6:0

Reading of the Resolutions:

Resolutions were read in English and Spanish.

Questions and comments from the public related to resolutions

Trustee Sarah Brewster explained the resolutions.

Reading and
Consideration of
Resolutions

Questions and
comments from the
public




Approval of Resolutions Voting of the
Resolutions

Evergreen Charter School
Agenda Items for Resolutions
For May 22, 2019

Resolutions

1) Resolved, The Board of Trustees approves the McKinney-Vento Policy. See
attachment.

Motion: Trustee Gladys Rodriguez
Second: Trustee Ariel Sotelo
Vote: 6:0

2) Resolved, The Board of Trustees approves the Parents’ Bill of Rights for Data
Privacy and Security Policy (see attachment).

Motion: Trustee Luis Ras
Second: Trustee Ariel Sotelo
Vote: 6:0

3) Resolved, the Board of Trustees approves the Field Trip Plan (see attachment).
Motion: Trustee Gladys Rodriguez

Second: Trustee Sarah Brewster
Vote: 6:0



4) Resolved, the Board of Trustees approves the following school activities:

a) Mr. Levitan is requesting approval for The National Circus Project to visit the
elementary school and perform a whole school assembly and grade level
workshops (see attachment).

b) Elementary and Middle School Carnival Day (see attachment).

c) Field trips for community service (see attachment).

Motion: Trustee Sarah Brewster
Second: Trustee Gladys Rodriguez
Vote: 6:0

5) Resolved, the Board of Trustees approves the following training for staff:

Ms. Hill is requesting approval to attend a Dignity for all Students Act training on
Wednesday, June 12, 2019 at Eastern Suffolk BOCES (Conference Request Form
attached).

Ms. Brutus is requesting approval to attend the Over 75 Quick “On -The-Spot”
Technigues for Children and Adolescents with Emotional and Behavioral Problems
workshop on Thursday, June 6, 2019 (Conference Request Form attached).

Motion: Trustee Ariel Sotelo
Second: Trustee Nancy Iglesias
Vote: 6:0

6} Resolved, the Board of Trustees approves the purchase of Pearson My View reading
program for grades K-8 in the 2019-20 school year (sec attachment).

Motion: Trustee Luis Ras
Second: Trustee Gladys Rodriguez
Vote: 6:0



7) Resolved, the Board of Trustees approves the Summer School Budget (see
attachment).

Motion: Trustee Sarah Brewster
Second: Trustee Nancy Iglesias
Vote:  6:0

8) Resolved, the Board of Trustees approves the following staff appointments:

Name Position Effective
Raul Gonzalez-Sanchez (Custodian) P/T 5/22/2019

Motion: Trustee Gladys Rodriguez
Second: Trustee Ariel Sotelo
Vote: 6:0

XIII, Old/New Business/New business: Old/New

Business

President Bernardino gave an update on the process of looking to expand the
school and explained the different options such as looking for a building in the
community to temporary rent space and the long process of buying land and building.

XIV. Announcements: Announcements |

There were none.

XV. Adjournment Adjournment

Motion to adjourn made by: Trustee Nancy Iglesias

Seconded by: Trustee Ariel Sotelo
Approved: 6:0
Meeting adjourned at: 9:01 -

Minutes submitted by: Wf’

Gladys Rodriguez, Secrétary |




Evergreen Charter School
Meeting of the Board of Trustees
605 Peninsula Blvd, Hempstead, NY 11550

Minutes from

June 19, 2019
8:10 pm
Members:
Mr. Gil Bernardino Present
Dr. Sarah Brewster Present
Mr. José Canosa, Esq. | Absent
Ms. Nancy Iglesias Absent
Mr. Luis Ras, Esq. Present
Ms. Yvonne Mowatt Present
Ms. Gladys Rodriguez | Present
Mr. Ariel Sotelo Present

Also present:

Ms. Karen Leeper, Interim Principal, Middle School Director
Ms. Christine Weigand, Interim Principal, Elementary School
Ms. Cathy Hill, Assistant Principal

Ms. Lisett Knox, Director of Finance and Operations

Note: As always, the Board Meeting was conducted in English and Spanish.

I. Call to Order Welcome and Call to
order: President Gil
President Bernardino called the meeting to order at 8:10. He welcomed Bernardino.

everyone and thanked them for being here tonight: He presented Interim
Principal Karen Leeper for her report:



II. Monthly Principal Report by Interim Principal Karen Leeper

Evergreen Charter School

Principal’s Report to the Board

1. Enrollment:

June 19, 2019

Report presented by
Ms. Karen Leeper

Grade Level Number of Students
Kindergarten 75
First Grade 75
Second Grade 75
Third Grade 50
Fourth Grade 50
Fifth Grade 50
Sixth Grade 50
Seventh Grade 50
Eighth Grade 50
Total: 525

II. Attendance:

1) See attached Attendance Count Report (includes absence/tardy reports from

9/4/2018-6/12/2019 and 5/15/2019-6/12/2019).

III. Curriculum & Instruction:

1) Data Team Meetings continue to take place on a monthly basis.

2) Annual Review Meetings have been held to determine appropriate IEP goals,

modifications and accommodations for the 2019-20 school year.

3) Summer School for selected students will begin on Monday, July 8, 2019.
4) Summer Projects (ELA and math) were sent home the week of June 17, 2019.

IV. Professional Development:

1) Friday, June 7, 2019
Thursday, June 13, 2019
Elementary School Mathematics Professional Development, Presented by Sue

Morris

2) Monday, June 10, 2019
Thursday, June 13, 2019
Wednesday, June 19, 2019
Thursday, June 20, 2019
Friday, June 21, 2019




V.

VI

VIL

3)

4)

3)

Thursday, June 27, 2019
Middle School Literacy/Leadership Professional Development, Presented by
Christine Milton

Wednesday, June 5, 2019
Middle School Mathematics Professional Development, Presented by Anthony
Volforte

Friday, June 7, 2019

Tuesday, June 11, 2019

Wednesday, June 19, 2019

Wednesday, June 20, 2019

ENL Professional Development, Presented by Beth Lopez

Parent Involvement/Activities:

1)

A Calendar of Events was distributed to families for the month of June.
June 14, 2019-Family Dance held by Parent Association

June 19, 2019-Middle School Spring Concert

June 20, 2019-Community Resource Fair

June 22, 2019-8" Grade Graduation

June 25, 2019-Elementary School Royal Brunch and 5% Grade Moving Up
Ceremony

June 26, 2019-Elementary School Spring Concert

June 27, 2019-Kindergarten End of the year Celebration

Personnel:

Positions that need to be filled for the 2019-20 School Year

Permanent Substitute Teacher

Middle School Special Education Teacher

4 Kindergarten Teachers

Third Grade Teacher

ENL Teacher

Student Assessment:

1) The administration of the written portion of the Earth Science Regents (Grade 8)
takes place Thursday, June 20, 2019.

2) The administration of the written portion of the FLAC Exam (Grade 8) takes place
Monday, June 24, 2019.

3) Grades K-5 are currently being assessed for reading levels using the Fountas &
Pinnell Benchmark Assessment.




VIII.  Successes:
1) 8" Grade Washington D.C Trip

IX. Proposals:

1) 2019-20 School Budget (see attachment).

2) Ms. Mendez and Ms. Andrews are requesting approval for a sixth grade field trip to
the Cradle of Aviation Museum on Monday, June 24, 2019 (see attachment).

3) To hire Christian Aguilar as a Spanish Teacher (resume attached).

4) To hire Lymari Tattnall as a School Counselor (resume attached).

5) To hire Geraldine Galvani as an ENL Teacher (resume attached).

X. Educational Trips and School Wide Activities:
1) June 17, 2019-Middle School Field Day
2) June 18, 2019-Elementary School Carnival Day

Attachments:
1. Attendance Count Reports
2. Field Trip Request Form
3. Resumes (3)

III. Questions and Comments from the Board of Trustees related to the

President of the Board’s Report: Questions and

comments from

Trustee Sarah Brewster explained the importance of the Annual Charter School | the Board of
Conference. Staff and board members attended last year and learned valuable | Trustees

information. In addition contacts were made that were helpful for the school as

Evergreen is looking to build its own facility. The conference will be June 30-

July 3. Members of the board and Evergreen staff will attend. Information will be shared with the
board, leaders and staff.

IV. Questions and Comments from the Public related to Principal’s report: Questions and
Comments from
Discussion followed on summer school and who will teach. Interim Principal | the Public

Karen Leeper explained that children will receive summer projects to take home
during the summer and to be returned in September.

President Bernardino mentioned all school events and activities that took place at the end of the
school year and congratulated the teachers and thanked those who participated.



V. Financial Report:

Presented by Ms. Knox, Director of Finance and Operations: Financial Report

presented by
Director of Finance and Operations Lisette Knox reported that all meals are up to | Lisett Knox

date. Billing was completed. All districts are up to date except Hempstead ,
Rockville Centre and Westbury. The district of Lawrence is being intercepted by
the state for the second half of the school year. Funds for the first part of the year
were received.

VI. Questions and Comments from the Board of Trustees related to the | Questions and
Financial Report: Comments from
the Board

Trustee Sarah Brewster explained the budget, teachers’ raises and the new
expenses of the school. The budget includes a $5,000 increase for instructional
staff as well as the social workers and nurse. Additionally the budget includes a
3% increase for all other full and time school staff. The budget also includes an increase in the
school match of the 403 (b) pension plan up to 5%.

VII. Questions and Comments from the Public related to the Financial Report: Questions and
Comments from

Discussion followed on the School Calendar. the Public
Calendar will be reviewed and a final version will be distributed with changes
proposed.
VIII. Parent Association Report. Parent Association
Report.

It was reported that PA President Phil Brown will be leaving and today is his last
day. President Bernardino thanked him on behalf of Evergreen for the excellent
work he has done for the school, the children and for Parent Association board. There will be
changes on the PA board that will be reported at next meeting. PA president Brown stated that
there is a balance of $1446.16 on the PA account and that the middle school dance was very
successful. A form was established to recruit parents for the PA and will be sent out to all parents
this week.

A written finance report for the PA was submitted from 4/1/19 to 6/25/19.



IX. Questions and Comments from the Board of Trustees related to the
Parent Association Report:

President Bernardino congratulated the PA for an excellent job done throughout
the year and thanked PA president Phil Brown for his outstanding work.
Questions and Comments from the Public related to the Parent Association.

Everyone thanked PA president on his last day at Evergreen.

X. Approval of Minutes
Minutes of May 22, 2019
Motion Trustee Yvonne Mowatt
Second: Trustee Ariel Sotelo
Vote: 6:0
XI1. Reading of the Resolutions:

Resolutions were read in English and Spanish.

XII. Questions and comments from the public related to resolations

Trustee Sarah Brewster explained the resolutions,

Questions and
Comments from the
Board of Trustees

Question and
Comments from
the Public

Reading and
Consideration of
Resolutions

Questions and
comments from the
public




4) Resolved the Board of Trustees approves the following request by Ms. Mendez and
Ms. Andrews for a sixth grade field trip to the Cradle of Aviation Museum on
Monday, June 24, 2019 (see attachment).

Motion: Trustee Sarah Brewster
Second: Trustee Ariel Sotelo
Vote: 6:0

5} Resolved, the Board of Trustees approve the following professional development
workshops for staff and board:

a) Ms. Lisett Knox, Matt Dapolito, Shaun Skariah, Gil Bernardino and Sarah
Brewster to attend the Annual Charter School Conference in Las Vegas,
Nevada June 30 - July 3, 2019

b) Ms. Wise to attend the 15" Annual Leadership Academy “Leading for
Educational Excellence and Equity” workshop July 10-11, 2019 (see
attachment).

Ms. Cathy Hill, Administrator will also attend.

¢) Ms. Wise, to attend the Consolidated Application Training held on 6/27/2019
in Holstville. See attached.

d) Ms. Hill to attend training called Instructional Coaching held 7/30/2019 —
8/1/2019.

Motion: Trustee Luis Ras
Second: Trustee Yvonne Mowatt
Vote: 6:0



XIII. Old/New Business/New business: Old/New

Business

President Bernardino gave an update on the process of looking to expand the
school and explained the different options such as looking for a building in the
community to temporary rent space and the long process of buying land and building. Trustee
Sarah Brewster explained that there are many options when space is rented. Such as 3™ grade
would stay at Evergreen and 4% through 8" would go to the other building. The younger grades
would stay in our building. President Bernardino explained that we are in a transition period and
nothing has been decided yet as the Board is still in negotiations and reviewing all options. When
a decision is finalized information will be shared.

Discussion followed on the transition and grade options.

XIV. Announcements: Announcements f

There were none.

XY¥. Motion to Go Into Executive Session

Motion to Go

Motion to Go into Executive Session for the purpose of discussing | Into Executive
matters leading to the appointment, or dismissal of a particular person | Session

or persons, matters concerning proposed, pending or current litigation,
and matters involving Civil Service Law, Article 14.

Motion made by: Trustee Sarah Brewster
Seconded by: Trustee Luis Ras

Approved: 6:0
XVIL Adjournment Adjournment
Motion to adjourn made by: Trustee Yvonne Mowalt
Seconded by: Trustee Ariel Sotelo
Approved: 6:0

Meeting adjourned at: 11:28 pm.

Minutes submitted by: MW

Gladys Rodriguez, Secfétary
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Entry 10 Enroliment and Retention of Special

Populations
Created: 07/15/2019 -« Last updated: 07/16/2019

Instructions for Reporting Enrollment and Retention Strategies

Describe the efforts the charter school has made in 2018 19 toward meeting targets to attract and retain
enrollment of students with disabilities, English language learners/Multilingual learners, and students who
are economically disadvantaged. In addition, describe the school’s plans for meeting or making progress

toward meeting its enroliment and retention targets in 2019 20.

EVERGREEN CHARTER SCHOOLSection Heading

Recruitment/Attraction Efforts Toward Meeting Targets

Econom
ically
Disadva
ntaged

Describe Recruitment Efforts in 2018 19

Evergreen Charter School attempts to recruit
students in a number of ways, beginning
with alerting various community and
religious based institutions and organizations
such as The Nassau County Department of
Social Services, The Family Services
Corporation, The Interfaith Nutrition Network,
Union Baptist Church, Miracle Christian
Center, The Hagerdorn Family Resource
Center, and The Hispanic Counseling Center,
among others. Information is posted on the
school’s website regarding support services.
Open Houses are organized in an effort to
provide an awareness of the educational
programs and opportunities that Evergreen
offers. The Parent Association supports
recruitment efforts. Flyers are distributed
throughout the community and placed in

low income housing buildings. All
correspondences are written in English and
Spanish in an effort to accommodate the
diverse members of the Hempstead
community.

1/4

Describe Recruitment Plans in 2019 20

Evergreen Charter School will continue to
recruit students in a number of ways,
beginning with alerting various community
and religious based institutions and
organizations such as The Nassau County
Department of Social Services, The Family
Services Corporation, The Interfaith Nutrition
Network, Union Baptist Church, Miracle
Christian Center, The Hagerdorn Family
Resource Center, and The Hispanic
Counseling Center, among others. More
detailed information will be posted on the
school’s website regarding support services.
Open Houses will continue to be organized in
an effort to provide an awareness of the
educational programs and opportunities that
Evergreen offers. Additional advertisements
will be posted to increase the attendance of
the Open Houses. The school will continue to
involve the Parent Association to support
recruitment efforts. Updated flyers will be
distributed throughout the community and
placed in low income housing buildings. All
correspondences will continue to be written
in English and Spanish in an effort to
accommodate the diverse members of the
Hempstead community. These recruitment
efforts will continue to enable Evergreen to
reach out to underserved families of low to



English
Langua
ge
Learner
s/Multili
ngual
Learner
S

Evergreen Charter School attempts to recruit
students in a number of ways, beginning
with alerting various community and
religious based institutions and organizations
such as The Nassau County Department of
Social Services, The Family Services
Corporation, The Interfaith Nutrition Network,
Union Baptist Church, Miracle Christian
Center, The Hagerdorn Family Resource
Center, and The Hispanic Counseling Center,
among others. Information is posted on the
school’s website and flyers are distributed
throughout the community. In addition
Evergreen places announcements in local
community papers including Spanish
newspapers. All correspondence is written in
English and Spanish in an effort to
accommodate the diverse members of the
Hempstead community.

Evergreen Charter School attempts to recruit

2/4

moderate income including families with
children who have disabilities and families
with children that are English Language
Learners.

Evergreen Charter School will continue to
recruit students in a number of ways,
beginning with alerting various community
and religious based institutions and
organizations such as The Nassau County
Department of Social Services, The Family
Services Corporation, The Interfaith Nutrition
Network, Union Baptist Church, Miracle
Christian Center, The Hagerdorn Family
Resource Center, and The Hispanic
Counseling Center, among others. More
detailed information will be posted on the
school’s website regarding support services.
Open Houses will continue be organized in an
effort to provide an awareness of the
educational programs and opportunities that
Evergreen offers. Additional advertisements
will be posted to increase the attendance of
the Open Houses.Updated flyers will be
distributed throughout the community.
Evergreen will place additional
announcements in local community papers
including Spanish newspapers. All
correspondences will continue to be written
in English and Spanish in an effort to
accommodate the diverse members of the
Hempstead community. These recruitment
efforts will continue to enable Evergreen to
reach out to underserved families of low to
moderate income including families with
children who have disabilities and families
with children that are English Language
Learners.

Evergreen Charter School will continue to
recruit students in a number of ways,
beginning with alerting various community
and religious based institutions and
organizations such as The Nassau County
Department of Social Services, The Family
Services Corporation, The Interfaith Nutrition
Network, Union Baptist Church, Miracle
Christian Center, The Hagerdorn Family
Resource Center, and The Hispanic



Student
s with
Disabilit
ies

students in a number of ways, beginning
with alerting various community and
religious based institutions and organizations
such as The Nassau County Department of
Social Services, The Family Services
Corporation, The Interfaith Nutrition Network,
Union Baptist Church, Miracle Christian
Center, The Hagerdorn Family Resource
Center, and The Hispanic Counseling Center,
among others. Information is posted on the
school’s website and flyers are distributed
throughout the community. In addition
Evergreen places announcements in local
community papers including Spanish
newspapers. All correspondence is written in
English and Spanish in an effort to
accommodate the diverse members of the
Hempstead community.

Retention Efforts Toward Meeting Targets

Econom
ically
Disadva
ntaged

Describe Retention Efforts in 2018 19

To retain and address the needs of
economically disadvantaged students,
Evergreen provides individualized and small
group interventions designed to accelerate
learning and close achievement gaps.
Students’ progress toward attaining goals
determines the type, duration, and intensity
of continued support.

Due to these needs Evergreen has on staff

the full time equivalent of two (2 FTE) Math
Teachers, two (2 FTE) Reading Teachers and
one (1FTE) AIS Teacher.

To support the needs of families, Evergreen
provides outreach workshops and programs.

Evergreen has on staff the full time
equivalent of two (2 FTE) Social Workers to
provide services to at risk students as
needed, support to parents and provide

3/4

Counseling Center, among others. More
detailed information will be posted on the
school’s website regarding support services.
Open Houses will continue to be organized in
an effort to provide an awareness of the
educational programs and opportunities that
Evergreen offers. Additional advertisements
will be posted to increase the attendance of
the Open Houses.The school will continue to
involve the Parent Association to support
recruitment efforts. Updated flyers will be
distributed throughout the community.
Evergreen will place additional
announcements in local community papers
including Spanish newspapers. All
correspondences will continue to be written
in English and Spanish in an effort to
accommodate the diverse members of the
Hempstead community. These recruitment
efforts will continue to enable Evergreen to
reach out to underserved families of low to
moderate income including families with
children who have disabilities and families
with children that are English Language
Learners.

Describe Retention Plans in 2019 20

Evergreen will continue to provide
individualized and small group interventions
designhed to accelerate learning and close
achievement gaps.

To support the needs of families, Evergreen
will continue to increase the number of
outreach workshops and programs. Surveys
will be distributed in an effort to better serve
the interests and needs of the community.



English
Langua
ge
Learner
s/Multili
ngual
Learner
S

Student
s with
Disabilit
ies

social and emotional help to students.

Evergreen Charter School participates in the
Community Eligibility Provision Program
which entitles all students to free breakfast
and lunch.

To retain and address the needs of students
with limited English proficiency, Evergreen

has on staff the full time equivalent of four (4

FTE) English as Second Language Teachers
who provide individualized and small group
instruction to support the needs of English
Language Learners. These teachers work
collaboratively with classrooms teachers to
support and scaffold learning.

Professional development is provided to all
staff in the area of best teaching practices
and strategies for English Language
Learners.

To retain and address the needs of students
with disabilities, Evergreen faculty
administers a screening evaluation to all
students at the start of the school year, and
struggling learners are provided with
individualized interventions, designed to
accelerate learning and close achievement
gaps. Students’ progress toward attaining
goals determines the type, duration, and
intensity of continued support services.

Due to these needs Evergreen has on staff
the full time equivalent of three (3 FTE)
Special Education Teachers and one Special
Education Coordinator.

Parent workshops are held throughout the

year in an effort to support families of
students with disabilities.

4/4

Teachers will continue to provide
individualized and small group instruction to
support the needs of English Language
Learners. These teachers will work
collaboratively with classrooms teachers to
support and scaffold learning.

Professional development will continue to be
provided to all staff in the area of best
teaching practices and strategies for English
Language Learners.

To support the needs of families, Evergreen
will increase the number of outreach
workshops and programs.

Evergreen will continue to administer
screening evaluations throughout the year to
collect data and provide individualized
interventions for struggling learners.

Additional parent workshops will be held
throughout the year in an effort to support
families of students with disabilities.
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Entry 11 Classroom Teacher and Administrator
Attrition

Report changes in teacher and administrator staffing.

Instructions for completing the Classroom Teacher and Administrator Attrition Tables
Charter schools must complete the tables titled 2018-2019 Classroom Teacher and
Administrator Attrition to report changes in teacher and administrator staffing
during the 2018-2019 school year. Please provide the full time equivalent (FTE) of
staff on June 30, 2018; the FTE for any departed staff from July 1, 2018 through June
30, 2019; the FTE for added staff from July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019; and the
FTE of staff added in newly created positions from July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019
using the tables provided.

1. Classroom Teacher Attrition Table

FTE Classroom FTE Classroom FTE Classroom FTE Classroom FTE of

Teachers on Teachers Teachers Filling Teachers Added  Classroom

6/30/18 Departed 7/1/18 Vacant Positions in New Positions Teachers on
6/30/19 7/1/18 6/30/19 7/1/18 6/30/19 6/3019

45 20 10 6 46

2. Administrator Position Attrition Table

FTE FTE FTE FTE FTE

Administrative Administrators Administrators Administrators Administrative

Positions on Departed 7/1/18 Filling Vacant Added in New Positions on

6/30/18 6/30/19 Positions 7/1/18  Positions 7/1/18  6/30/19
6/30/19 6/30/19

4 3 1 0 4

1/2



3. Tell your school's story

Charter schools may provide additional information in this section of the Annual
Report about their respective teacher and administrator attrition rates as some
teacher or administrator departures do not reflect advancement or movement within
the charter school networks. Schools may provide additional detail to reflect a
teacher’s advancement up the ladder to a leadership position within the network or

an administrator’s movement to lead a new network charter school.

(No response)

4. Charter schools must ensure that all prospective employees receive clearance
through the NYSED Office of School Personnel Review and Accountability (OSPRA)
prior to employment. After an employee has been cleared, schools are required to

maintain proof of such clearance in the file of each employee. For the safety of all
students, charter schools must take immediate steps to terminate the employment of
individuals who have been denied clearance. Once the employees have been
terminated, the school must terminate the request for clearance in the TEACH
system.

Have all employees have been cleared through the NYSED TEACH system?

Yes

5. For perspective or current employees whose clearance has been denied, have you
terminated their employment and removed them from the TEACH system?

Not Applicable

Thank you

2/2



ﬁ Entry 12 Uncertified Teachers

Instructions for Reporting Percent of Uncertified Teachers

The table below is reflective of the information collected through the online portal for
compliance with New York State Education Law 2854(3)(a-1) for teaching staff
qualifications. Enter the relevant full time equivalent (FTE) count of teachers in each
column. For example, a school with 20 full time teachers and 5 half time teachers
would have an FTE count of 22.5. If more than one column applies to a particular
teacher, please select one column for the FTE count. Please do not include
paraprofessionals, such as teacher assistants.

FTE count of uncertified teachers on 6/30/18, and each uncertified teacher should be
counted only once.
FTE Count
1. Total FTE count of uncertified teachers (6 30 19) 0

2. FTE count of uncertified teachers with at least three years
of elementary, middle or secondary classroom teaching 5
experience (6 30 19)

3. FTE count of uncertified teachers who are tenured or
tenure track college faculty (6 30 19)

4. FTE count of uncertified teachers with two years of Teach
for America experience (6 30 19)

5. FTE count of uncertified teachers with exceptional
business, professional, artistic, athletic, or military 2
experience (6 30 19)

6. FTE count of uncertified teachers who do not fit into any
of the prior four categories (6 30 19)

FTE Count of All Uncertified 9
Teachers as of 6/30/19

FTE Count of All Certified 40
Teachers as of 6/30/19

Thank you.
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Organizational Chart - Evergreen Charter School
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EVERGREEN CHARTER SCHOOL
2019-2020 CALENDAR/CALENDARIO (Effective July 2019 and subject to change)

JULY - 2019 AUGUST - 2019 SEPTEMBER - 2019
S|IM|[T|W |Th|F S SI{M|T|[W]|Th|[F [ S S| M|[T|[W|[Th| F | S
1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 1 2 3 4 5 6 7
7 8 9 [10 |11 ) 12| 13 4 5 6 7 8 9 [ 10 8§ [ 9 (1011|1213 ] 14
14 [ 1516 | 17 | 18 | 19 | 20 11 (12 |13 (14 | 15| 16 | 17 15|16 (17 | 18 | 19 | 20 | 21
21 | 22 | 23 | 24 | 25| 26 | 27 18 | 19 | 20 | 21 | 22 | 23 | 24 22 (231242526 | 271 28
28 | 29 [30 | 31 25 | 26 | 27 | 28 [ 29 [ 30 | 31 | |39 [ 30 T
OCTOBER - 2019 NOVEMBER - 2019 DECEMBER - 2019
SIM|T|W|Th | F|[S SI(M|T|[W]|Th|[F [ S S| M| T|[W]|Th| F [ S
1 2 3 4 5 1 2 1 2 3 4 5 6 7
6 7 8 9 10 | 11 | 12 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 8 9 |10 11 |12 | 13 | 14
13|14 |15 |16 | 17 | 18 | 19 10 | 11 | 12 |13 |14 | 15| 16 15116 | 17 | 18 | 19 | 20 | 21
20 | 21 | 22 | 23 | 24 | 25 | 26 17 | 18 | 19| 20 | 21 | 22 | 23 22 | 23|24 | 25|26 |27 | 28
27 128129130 |31 21 24 |25 (26|27 |28 |29 |18 29 | 30 [ 31
15
JANUARY -2020 FEBRUARY -2020 MARCH -2020
SI(M|[T|[W|Th| F [ S SI{M|T|[W]|Th| F S SI{M|T|[W]|Th| F [ S
1 2 3 4 1 29
516 7 8 9 |10 | 11 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 1 2 3 4 5 6 7
12 |13 | 14 |15 [ 16 | 17 | 18 9 |10 ] 11 |12 |13 |14 | 15 8 9 (10|11 |12 |13 ] 14
19 |20 ] 21 | 22 | 23 | 24| 25 16 22 15|16 | 17 | 18 1 19 | 20 | 21
26 | 27| 28 |29 | 30 | 31 |21 23 |1 24 | 25 27 | 28 | 15 22 123 (24 | 25|26 | 27| 28
29 {30 |31 22
APRIL -2020 MAY -2020 JUNE - 2020
SI(M|T|[W|Th| F [ S S M| T|[W]|Th| F [ S S| M|T|W | |Th| F | S
1 2 3 4 1 2 1 2 3 4 5 6
5 6 74 8 9 |10 | 11 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 7 8 9 [ 10 | 11 | 12| 13
12 | 13 | 14 | 15 | 16 | 17 | 18 10 | 11 |12 |13 |14 | 15| 16 14 | 15|16 | 17 | 18 | 19| 20
19 [ 20 | 21 [ 22 | 23 | 24 [ 25 17 | 18 | 19 | 20 | 21 | 22 | 23 21 | 22 | 23 | 24 | 25| 26 | 27
26 | 27 | 28 |1 29 | 30 16 24 1 25|26 |27 [ 28]29] 30 28 1 29 | 30 22
31 20
Staff Professional Dev. Aug. 19 —Aug 30 Davs of Instruction per Evergreen Charter School Pledge:
First Day for Students: Sept. 3 Last Day: June 30 Month I pledge to protect the Earth, respect the web of life upon it, and to
*Paossible Snow days if more than 2 davs 5/22. 4/17 Sept. 20 Feb. 15 honor the dignity of every member of our global family. One planet,
SCHOOL CLOSED Oct. 21 Mar. 22 one people, one world, in harmony, with peace, freedom and justice
Sept 2 Labor ]_)ay Nov. 18 Apr. 16 for all.
Oct 9 Yom Kippur Dec. 15 May 20 Juramento de la Estfuela Evergreen: ) ) )
Oct 14 Columbus Day Jan. 21 T 22 Juro proteger la Tierra, respetar la diversidad de vida sobre ella, v
Nov. 11 Veteran's Day honrar la dignidad de todoes los miembros de nuestro entorno. Un

Academic Year
Total Days of Instruction: 189 a
Total Staff Days: 199 P

Nov 28 & 29 Thanksgiving Recess
Dec 22-Jan 1 Holiday Recess

planeta, un pueblo, un mundo, en armonia, con paz, libertad y justicia

Jan 20 MLK Jr. Day T R TR S Evergreen Charter School Promise:

Feb 17-21 Winter Recess m I promise to respect myself, respect others and respect our Earth’s
e sl the school calendar, 5/22 and R

May 25 Memorial Day 417 Promesa de la Escuela Evergreen: Prometo respetarme a mi mismo,
BOARD MEETINGS: 9/25,10/23,11/26, 12/11, I respetar a los demas, y respetar los recursos de nuestro planeta.

1/29, 2126, 3/25, 422, 5/217, 6/24






